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CORPORATE PROFILE
EEEHN

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 2128) is a leading large-scale industrial group that
manufactures piping and building materials in China. After more than
38 years of rapid development, the Group has evolved into a leader in
the industry of building materials and home improvement. It provides
high-quality products and services such as plastic piping, building
materials and home improvement, new energy, environmental
protection, and operates a supply chain service platform.

Currently, the Group has established over 30 advanced production
bases in 19 provinces of China and in foreign countries. The Group has
established a nationwide sales network and has also developed long-
term strategic partnerships with 2978 independent and exclusive first-
tier distributors that enable timely and efficient supply of
comprehensive, quality products and professional services to
customers. As an integrated manufacturer of a comprehensive range of
piping and building materials, China Lesso provides over 10,000 types
of quality products, which are widely applied to such fields as home
improvement, civil architecture, municipal water supply, drainage,
energy management, electric power transmission, telecommunication,
gas supply, fire services, environmental protection, agriculture and
marine aquaculture,
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

M=

Change
2024 2023 25
For the year ended 31 December HE12B31BLEE
(RMB'000) (AR®T )
Revenue WA 27,026,490 30,868,289 (124)%
Gross profit E7 7,293,298 8121014 (102)%
Finance costs & A AR 951,335 112,761 (14.5)%
EBITDA R BT BT A A 4,731,553 5,612,534 (157)%
Profit before tax B 1 A1 A 2,124,019 2,664,169 20.3)%
Profit for the year F N T 1,638,017 2,320,346 (294)%
Profit attributable to owners of the Company A2 &) A A FE k35 F 1,683,900 2368,062 (28.9)%
At 31 December (RMB'000) R12A31B (AR¥TT)
Total assets BERT 58,329,059 60,031,270 28)%
Cash and bank deposits R & RIRITER 6,642,551 6,552,984 14%
Total debts! by 19,645,705  20,695637 (51%
Net debt® B FE 13,003,154 14,142,653 8%
Total equity R 24,415,375 24,311,078 04%
Share information (RMB) BHER (AR
Earnings per sharel” =TI
- Basic —HK 0.55 077 (286)%
- Diluted —¥E 0.55 077 (28.6)%
Proposed final dividend per share (HK cents) Bk R E RS (BAL) 20 20 -
Equity attributable to owners of BRANEIHE AEGERY
the Company per share 7.69 758 15%
Financial ratios B LE =
Gearing Ratio (%) BEABEE©%) 44.6 460
Net debt to equity® (%) B F 58 ¥ s b & E(%) 53.3 582
Interest cover! (times) FBRF LR () 4.97 504
Note: Bt 5
(@) Represented borrowings and lease liabilities. (@ BEFREEEE -
(b) Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. (b) TBEBEERE S RIRITFER
(© Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the  (c) KRG GREARREERAN 2 HEF AR GE B ]REK
Company are set out in note 11to consolidated financial statements, Pt EE T o
(d) Represented equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the number of () EARNTEA AEEERGR AR R ERRSLEITROEK
issued Shares at the end of the reporting period. E
©) Represented net debt divided by total equity. ©)] TEER FRER A S 5 -
] Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs, ] R BRI AT B AR AR E AR -

2 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFERBHHME

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RESULTS : ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TT ARBTT ARETT
REVENUE 'ON 27,026,490 30,868,289 30767211 32057584 28073065
GROSS PROFIT EF 7,293,298 8,121,014 8241423 8447693 8383979
EXPENSES* Mk (4,512,569)  (4531700)  (4,645305) (4441810)  (3851675)
FINANCE COSTS A& A (951,335) (1m2,767) (681,084) (546,149) (435,892)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE A SR 2,124,019 2,664,169 3190424 3807282 4753560
Income tax expense FrisHim X (486,002) (343,823) (669,874) (744,359) (995,673)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 1,638,017 2320346 2520550 3062923 3,757,887
Profit attributable to: AT FEAE 3 A -
Owners of the Company ARREBA 1683900 2368062 2,521,245 3,087,112 3,751,337
Non-controlling interests FEfEH (45,883) (@ar.ne) (695) (24,89) 6,550

1,638,017 2,320,546 2520550 5062923 3,157,887

At 31 December

M12A 318
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020*
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
FINANCIAL POSITION AR TR ARETRT ARETT AREBTT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMENEE 38,614,003 39217270 35010056 30176907 26,860,475
Current assets MEEE 19,715,056 20,814,000 23993045 24351923 19,668,591
Total assets BEREE 58,329,059 60031270 59,004,001 54528830 46,529,066
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities EREBARE 12,331,999 1207472 14915843 1,812,823 10115255
Currentliabilities mEaE 21,581,685 24512720 21447072 20863603 16,058,382
Total liabilities BERE 33,913,684 35720192 36362015 32676426 26173637
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REBEERE
(LIABILITIES) (B8 (1,866,629) (3698720) 2545973 3488320 3,610,209
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NECIEZ ZS DN
of the Company FE(LRE = 23,844,324 23503483 21842409 20815374 19,842,407
Non-controlling interests VTR 571,051 807,595 798,677 1,037,030 513,022
Total equity EIS B 24,415,375 2431078 2264086 21852404  20,355429
# Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses ~ # HEERDHEMAY  ITBRXME MR LR -
and other expenses.
Restated : KE5|
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHREE

Dear Shareholders,

As China Lesso marked its 38th anniversary, | am honoured to present,
on behalf of the Board, a report on the Group's performance in 2024 and
our strategic plans for future development.

In 2024, the global economic recovery lost momentum, geopolitical
risks escalated, and trade protectionism gained traction. Mainland
China faced its challenges, including revitalise the real estate market,
sluggish domestic demand, and structural economic imbalances,
Nevertheless, the Chinese government actively pursued
macroeconomic policies to restore market confidence and sustain
steady growth. As a result, the country’s gross domestic product (GDP)
expanded by 5.0% year-on-year, underscoring the resilience of the
Chinese economy.

China Lesso has consistently adhered to its development strategy of
‘further developing the piping business and capitalising on the
emergence of green energy for mutual benefit’. Guided by the principles
of "striving for customer satisfaction by prioritising quality and driving its
development with industry-leading technology’, China Lesso remains
committed to delivering high-value products and services to society.
Through years of dedication, the Group has evolved into a
conglomerate with business operations spanning piping systems,
building materials and home improvement, environmental protection,
new energy, and supply chain service platforms.

During the year, the Group has remained steadfast in executing a
prudent growth strategy, focusing on five key pillars: “Concentration’,
‘Cultivation’, "Smart Manufacturing’, “Innovation’, and “Global Expansion”.
By developing its piping systems business alongside diversified
operations, the Group continues to expand its revenue base, unlock
long-term value, and progress towards even higher-quality growth. The
Group has remained committed to its core brand strategy of “quality,
platform development, and global expansion’, consistently advancing
through innovation and craftsmanship. By integrating technological
progress with superior quality, the Group has elevated a hallmark of
Chinese manufacturing in the modern era, empowering Chinese
brands to reach the global stage through the strength of its piping
solutions.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFRES

In 2024, China Lesso remained steadfast in adhering to the principles of
prudent business development. The Group has adjusted its internal
resources, investing more in its core piping business, focusing on
market cultivation, and continually strengthening its market foundation
while enhancing product quality. Riding on its strong resilience, the
Group has maintained stable business operations. Amid a fluctuating
environment, the Group has sustained steady development and
consistently delivered reliable returns for the Shareholders and
investors. The Group recorded revenue of RMB27,026 million, with profit
attributable to owners of the Company amounting to RMB1,684 million.
The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 to express gratitude to
the Shareholders for their support and to share with them the fruits of
the Group's endeavours.

Looking towards 2025, despite the uncertainties of the external
environment, the fundamentals of China’s economy remain robust, with
confidence in achieving steady and sustainable growth. Building on its
solid 38-year foundation, China Lesso will harness its powerful piping
expertise, with a focus on quality and innovation as its key drivers. It will
seize the opportunities of the times, extend its reach internationally, and
strive to create new possibilities, continuously advancing towards a
brighter future and delivering long-term value for the Shareholders.

| am confident that China Lesso is poised to seize new development
opportunities. We will continue to align closely with national policy
direction and the infrastructure demands arising from economic
recovery. While maintaining a strong focus on the piping sector, we will
actively expand our industrial footprint, striving to strengthen and refine
our core products, continually optimise our product portfolio, and
increase both market share.

To achieve this goal, we will accelerate the advancement of smart
manufacturing upgrades. By fully leveraging advanced technologies
such as Al the Internet, and the 10T, alongside digital intelligent
operations management, we aim to establish smart factories that
seamlessly combine intelligent manufacturing with automated
production, thereby significantly boosting the Group’'s core
competitiveness.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFRES

Although the challenges and uncertainties remain ahead of us, | am
confident in the future of China Lesso. | will continue to lead the entire
management team with a united vision, staying closely aligned with
market trends, continuously upgrading and innovating, seizing overseas
opportunities, and persistently enhancing and optimising management
standards, all while striving for progress within a framework of stability.
We will continue to uphold the corparate spirit of “pioneering, pragmatic
Innovation, scientific management, and pursuit of excellence’, guided by
the principles of sustainable development. This will drive the industry's
sustainable transformation and contribute the strong and unwavering
force of China Lesso towards building a brighter future.

The Board and | would like to express our heartfelt gratitude to all our
staff for their contributions. China Lesso will strive for good results, share
the fruits with its customers, business partners and employees, and
continue to create value for society and the Shareholders.

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 28 March 2025

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA

B E R AT MBI N EE 1 - BEARA S
BE B ARKFTMED AABEETAERE

BERK FT—0 BRIEETISBE T
WA BGIEEEIIMEE  WIHERAELE
BKE - AP SIGED - BT ERTIA
WMEN KEAF RBER BBl e
¥ UNBFERRIESASIE  S|EITEN
AHEER  ABEETAREMBEEEAH
BhHE |

RAAERKREZCHAKE  AEEEINEN
ERBARLHE - FEBEER D FIREIESE
BWKE BREF 61BN BIHZHEK
R ARR -BEF BINLESAEEE-
EFTE

HHE

FH 20253 H28H



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEASEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 62, is the founder of the Group, the chairman
of the Company and has been appointed as an executive director of the
Company for over 15 years, with effect from 5 November 2009 (with the
term of his current service contract being from 1January 2024 to 31
December 2026). He is also a director of various companies within the
Group. He is primarily responsible for the Group's overall strategic
planning and business management. Mr. Wong has approximately 28
years of experience in plastic pipe operations and management. He
served as the chairman in Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co, Ltd.
from December 1996 to April 1999 and was awarded "Outstanding
Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde People’'s Government of
Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has been a permanent honorary president of
Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber of Commerce since 2018,
Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping and the brother-in-law of Mr,
Zuo Manlun. Mr. Wong is the founder of a trust which holds the entire
issued share capital of Xi Xi Development and New Fortune, the
controlling sharehalders of the Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 52, is the chief executive of the Group and has
been appointed as an executive director of the Company for over 15
years, with effect from 27 February 2010 (with the term of his current
service contract being from 1January 2024 to 31 December 2026). He is
also a director/general manager/supervisor of various companies
within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the management of the
daily business operations of the Group. Mr. Zuo has approximately 25
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Zuo joined the Group
in December 1999 and has held various positions in operation
management since joining the Group. Mr. Zuo is currently (i) a non-
executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code:
98), which is listed on the Stock Exchange; and (i) an executive director
of Keda Industrial Group Co, Ltd. (stock code: 600499), which is listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange; and (iii) a non-executive director of EDA
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 2505), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Zuo won several awards including “Outstanding Worker of
the Plastic Industry in the PRC" by China Plastics Processing Industry
Association in 2009 and was awarded as "Senior Plastic Product
Engineer (Technical Entrepreneur)’ by the Guangdong Human
Resources and Social Security Department in 2019, Mr. Zuo completed
a programme of EMBA from Sun Yat-Sen University in April 2001 Mr. Zuo
is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Luen Hei and the younger brother of
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEASEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 58, is a vice president of the Group and has
been appointed as an executive director of the Company for over 15
years, with effect from 27 February 2010 (with the term of her current
service contract being from 1January 2024 to 31 December 2026). She is
also a director of various companies within the Group. She is primarily
responsible for procurement control and logistics management of the
Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 28 years of experience in the plastic
pipe industry. Ms, Zuo served as a director of Foshan Shunde Liansu
Industrial Co, Ltd. from December 1996. In 1999, upon establishing the
Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hel, she held various positions in
procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr. Wong Luen Hei and the elder
sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.

Mr. Lal Zhigiang, aged 58, is a vice president of the Group and has been
appointed as an executive director of the Company for over 15 years,
with effect from 27 February 2010 (with the term of his current service
contract being from 1January 2024 to 31 December 2026). He is also a
director of multiple companies within the Group and primarily
responsible for the production management of multiple companies
within the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 28 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of Foshan
Shunde Liansu Industrial Co, Ltd. from December 1996 to November
1999, Mr. Lai joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 59, is a vice president of the Group and has
been appointed as an executive director of the Company for over 15
years, with effect from 27 February 2010 (with the term of his current
service contract being from 1January 2024 to 31 December 2026). He is
also a director/general manager/supervisor of various companies
within the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible for the China's sales
of the Group and has approximately 31 years of experience in the plastic
pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in production management and sales since joining
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory
manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from March
1993 to January 1999 and served as a manager in the production
department of Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co, Ltd. from January
1999 to November 1999,

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEASEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 57, is a vice president of the Group and has
been appointed as an executive director of the Company for over 15
years, with effect from 27 February 2010 (with the term of his current
service contract being from 1January 2024 to 31 December 2026). He is
also a director of various companies within the Group and primarily
responsible for the production management of certain companies in
the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 35 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in December 1999 and
has held various positions in production management and engineering
since joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen was a
manufacturing engineer in the technology department at Guangdong
Province Zhaoging Gaojiang Plastic Products Co, Limited from July 1989
to July 1993, From July 1993 to September 1999, he was a deputy factory
manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen
served as a manager in the production department of Foshan Shunde
Liansu Industrial Co, Ltd. from September 1999 to November 1999, Mr,
Chen has been a deputy secretary general of Plastic Pipe Special
Committee of China Plastics Processing Industry Association since
2005. Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor's degree in polymer chemical from
South China University of Technology in July 1989,

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 49, is a vice president of the Group and has
been appointed as an executive director of the Company for over 15
years, with effect from 27 February 2010 (with the term of his current
service contract being from 1January 2024 to 31 December 2026). He is
also a director of various companies within the Group. Dr. Lin is primarily
responsible for the overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has
approximately 22 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin
joined the Group in July 2002 and has held various positions in research
and development and overseas sales since joining the Group. Dr. Lin is
currently a director of WIIK Public Company Limited (stock code: WIIK),
which is listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Over the years, Dr. Lin
has won various awards including “National May First Labour Medal" by
All-China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr. Lin received a
Doctorate degree in polymer chemical and physics from Sun Yat-sen
University in June 2002,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBEASEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 53, has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company for 15 years, with effect from 2 April 2010 (with the term of his
current service contract being from 1January 2024 to 31 December 2026).
He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various companies
within the Group. Mr. Luo has approximately 32 years of experience in
accounting and worked at Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to
March 1996, Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability
from April 1996 to December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng
Accounting Firm from January 2002 to December 2007. Mr. Luo worked
for Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co, Limited as a
certified public accountant from January 2008 to April 2016. Mr. Luo is
currently an executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(stock code: 98)and a non-executive director of EDA Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2505), which are listed on the Stock Exchange,
respectively. Mr. Luo is a member of The Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Luo obtained a Bachelor's degree in economics
from Guangdong University of Business Studies in June 1993,

Dr. Song Keming, aged 42, has been an executive director of the
Company for 10 months, with effect from 24 May 2024 (with the term of
his current service contract being from 24 May 2024 to 23 May 2027)
and is a vice president, chief engineer and president of the Research
Institute of the Group, primarily responsible for technical research and
development and quality process management. Dr. Song is currently a
director of WIIK Public Company Limited (stock code: WIIK), which is
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand, a member of the National
Technical Committee for Standardization of Plastic Products (SAC/
TC48). He has been an expert entitled to special allowance from the
State Council since 2025. Dr. Song was awarded the title of “National
Model Worker" in November 2020. Dr. Song received a Doctorate degree
in polymer chemical and physics from Sun Yat-sen University in June
2009 and was accredited as a professor-level senior engineer in April
2018,

The primary research field of Dr. Song is the forming and processing
technology of new-type plastic pipe and its application. Dr. Song
presided over and participated in a number of science and technology
projects at provincial and ministerial level. His main research directions
include high-performance plastic pipe processing technology,
composite pipe manufacturing technology, polymer composite material
research, etc. His scientific achievements was highly regarded and he
wan various awards, including the first prize of the Science and
Technology Progress Award of the China Light Industry Federation, the
first prize of the Science and Technology Progress Award of the Ministry
of Education, the first prize of the Guangdong Province Science and
Technology Progress Award, and the China Patent Excellence Award. Dr.
Song published more than ten scientific papers (included in SCI) and
obtained nearly 100 patents. He took part in the formulation and revision
of a number of national and industry standards.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEASEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 59, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company for over 9 years, with effect from 1
September 2015 (with the term of his current engagement letter being
from 1January 2024 to 31 December 2026). Dr. Tao is currently Professor
of Strategy and Economics and Associate Dean for Europe at Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business. He previously taught at the
University of Hong Kong as HSBC Endowed Professor (Global Economy
and Business Strategy), Chair Professor of Economics and Strategy, and
he was the director of the Institute for China and Global Development,
Dr. Tao received his BSc. in management science from Fudan University
in1986, and PhD in economics from Princeton University in 1992,

Mr. Cheng Dickson, aged 55, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company for over 8 years, with effect from
T July 2018 (with the term of his current engagement letter being from 1
January 2024 to 31 December 2026). Mr. Cheng is currently the general
manager at the investor relations department of The Hong Kong and
China Gas Company Limited (stock code: 3), which is listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Prior thereto, Mr. Cheng worked in JP. Morgan between August 1994 and
February 1996. In December 1995, he was promoted to TCRM
professional in its global markets department Between March 1996 and
June 2000, Mr. Cheng worked in the securities lending department of
The Bank of New York, Hong Kong Branch. From July 2000 to August
2002, Mr. Cheng worked as an assistant vice president in the equity
capital markets division of BOCI Asia Limited. In August 2002, Mr. Cheng
joined ICEA Capital Limited and worked in its investment banking
division until October 2005 when he was a senior vice president. Mr.
Cheng was an executive director at the respective capital markets
department in the investment banking division of Mitsubishi UFJ
Securities (HK) Capital, Limited and Mizuho Securities Asia Limited from
November 2005 to October 2016, From July 2017 to December 2021, Mr.
Cheng worked as a managing director and head of the investment
banking department of Shanggu Securities Limited. He also acted as its
responsible officer. Mr. Cheng has more than 25 years of experience in
investment banking industry. Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor's degree in
arts majoring in economics from University of Toronto in June 1994 and
a Master of applied finance degree majoring in corporate finance from
Macquarie University of Australia in November 2000,

From March 2021 to February 2024, Mr. Cheng acted as an independent
director of Magnum Opus Acquisition Limited (‘"Magnum”) (Ticker: OPAU),
a company incorporated in Cayman Islands which was listed on the
New York Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Magnum was dissolved on 8 February 2024 because it was unable to
consummate a business combination on or before 25 January 2024
pursuant to its amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association. Magnum was primarily engaged in mergers, share
exchanges, asset acquisitions, share purchases, rearganisations or
similar business combination with one or more businesses. On 22
January 2024, Magnum decided to redeem all of its outstanding
ordinary shares that were included in the units issued in its initial public
offering. Magnum'’s securities were delisted from the New York Stock
Exchange and the registration of its securities was terminated under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. According to Mr.
Cheng, he is not a party to such dissolution proceedings and is not
aware of any current or potential claim that has been or will be made
against him as a result of such proceedings.

Ms. Lu Jiandong, aged 55, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company for aver 4 years, with effect from 1
September 2020 (with the term of her current engagement letter being
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026). From 1 January 2022 to 31
December 2024, Ms. Lu was an executive director and chief financial
officer of Jiaxing TechnoDerma Medicines, Ltd. Ms. Lu also served as an
executive director in a subsidiary of the Company from January 2018 to
July 2018, Ms. Lu worked for JP. Morgan from August 2001 to February
2017, during which, she served as a managing director for JP. Morgan
investment banking team, junior resource manager for Asia Pacific
region, chief operating officer for JP. Morgan China securities joint
venture, managing director and China head for J.P. Morgan
infrastructure fund. Ms. Lu has extensive investment banking and
investment experiences. She also has deep knowledge about capital
markets and operation management. Ms. Lu served as a senior
representative at John Hancock Mutual Life Insurance Company Beijing
Representative Office from July 1994 to June 1999, and she also served
as a public officer and chief translator in The Chinese People's
Friendship Association with Foreign Countries from August 1991 to July
1994, Ms. Lu obtained a Master degree in business administration from
The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in May 2001 and a
Bachelor's degree in economics from Beljing International Studies
University in July 1991,
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Dr. Hong Ruijiang, aged 59, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company for over 1year, with effect from
10 May 2023 (with the term of his current engagement letter being from
10 May 2023 to 9 May 2026). He is a professor and doctoral advisor of
the School of Physics, Sun Yat-sen University. He is also an executive
deputy director of the Institute of Solar Energy Systems of Sun Yat-sen
University. Prior to joining Sun Yat-Sen University in March 2009, Dr.
Hong conducted doctoral research at the Fraunhofer Institute for Thin
Film and Surface Technology in Germany from March 2001 to May
2004. From June 2004 to December 2006, he worked as a researcher
at the Institute of Materials Engineering, University of Siegen. From July
1992 to February 2001, he worked as a researcher at Guangzhou
Institute of Nonferrous Metals. From January 2013 to December 2024, he
was a Director of Energy and Environmental Materials Professional
Committee of Guangdong Materials Research Society, and a resident
chairman of Shenzhen Solar Energy Society since January 2010. He
obtained a Doctoral degree in engineering from University of Siegen in
July 2004,

The main research areas cover new energy materials, solar photovoltaic
technology and application. Dr. Hong hosted and participated in a
number of national, provincial and municipal scientific research
projects. The main research directions include polycrystalline silicon
material growth mechanism and technology, high-efficiency crystalline
silicon salar cell preparation technology, photovoltaic system
integration technology, research on new solar energy utilisation and
conversion materials, high-efficiency and low-cost copper indium
gallium selenide (CIGS), and copper zinc tin sulfide (CZTS) thin-film solar
cell technology. He has published more than 100 papers in Science
Citation Index (SCI) journals and authored a monograph.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Ms. Lee Vanessa, aged 40, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company for over 1year, with effect from
10 May 2023 (with the term of her current engagement letter being from
10 May 2023 to 9 May 2026). She has 17 years of experience in
investment and investment banking. Since June 2024, she has been the
Staff Director of Corporate Development at FedEx Corporation (NYSE;
FDX), leading merger and acquisitions, equity investments, and other
corporate development initiatives globally for FedEx. She was the
managing director and co-head of technology and consumer
department of VMS Investment Group (HK) Limited with a focus on the
Greater China region from January 2021 to March 2024, and was
primarily responsible for strategising, sourcing, and executing
investments in the technology and consumer sectors,

From June 2015 to November 2020, Ms. Lee worked at China
Renaissance Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and last held the position
of director in investment banking department, focusing on technology,
media and telecom (TMT) and new economy companies’ private and
public market transactions in Asia Pacific and Greater China. From
March 2008 to May 2015, she worked at JP. Morgan Chase & Co and last
held the position of vice president in global investment banking
department, managing corporate finance and investment banking
practices in Asia Pacific and Greater China. She obtained a Master's
degree in Business Administration for Executives from Massachusetts
Institute of Technology (MIT) Sloan School of Management in
Massachusetts, the United States in May 2024 and a Bachelor's degree
in finance and accounting from the State University of New York at
Binghamton, the United States in December 2007.

Between August 2021 to March 2024, Ms. Lee has been licensed by the
Securities and Futures Commission as a representative to carry out
Type 1(dealing in securities) regulated activity, and a responsible officer
to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity
between October 2016 and November 2020, Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activity between November 2021 to March
2024 and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activity between
January 2022 to March 2024,
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 43, is a vice president and the chief financial
officer of the Group and is responsible for the Group's overall financial
and accounting affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior
to this, he worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and
was a sub-branch manager of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, Foshan Shunde Haliginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr.
Liu completed a Diploma in finance from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics in September 2005, a program in laws at
Guangdong University of Business Studies from March 2007 to January
2010, as well as obtaining a Master degree in engineering from
Chongging University upon the completion of courses for the master
degree in software engineering (specialised in financial informatisation)
in June 2014, He is an associate member of the Association of
International Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 47, is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in June
2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kwan
worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants from March 2000 to
November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers from November 2004 to
October 2007 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from November 2007 to
September 2009. Mr. Kwan graduated with a Bachelor's degree in
Commerce from Deakin University of Australia in September 2000 and
obtained a Master degree in business administration from University of
South Australia in August 2012, He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEELGRE

CORPORATE STRATEGY AND CULTURE

China Lesso has been conforming its codes of business conduct and
ethics. Embracing the corporate philosophy of integrity and impartiality,
trust and collaboration, and sustainability and a market-oriented
approach, China Lesso has optimised its industrial footprints with a
steadfast commitment to its principal businesses and speeded up the
expansion of overseas markets. With great importance attached to the
development of sub-markets, areas and channels, China Lesso has
increased efforts in the development of products and ancillaries with
active and extensive cooperation with professional third-party teams,
providing high-quality products to the community and becoming an
important force for a better living space.

China Lesso has put in place a comprehensive responsibility system,
which requires to integrate key indicators such as resource
consumption, health and safety, product innovation and risk
management into operational management to strengthen the
Company's operational awareness. Meanwhile, we have established a
sound risk management structure and a communication channel for
risk management information connecting all levels, departments and
business units. We will continuously improve and strengthen our
capabilities in risk identification, monitoring and prevention.

For more detalls, please refer to the code of business conduct and
ethics and sustainability reports published on the Company's website.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices and business ethics of the Group. The
Board believes that good corporate governance practices and business
ethics are essential for achieving sustainable development, establishing
investors’ confidence in the Company and safeguarding and enhancing
the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the
Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations of the
Shareholders for continual improvement, and fulfill its commitment of
pursuing excellent corporate governance. In the opinion of the directors,
the Company complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Code during the reporting period.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA

EERE R

TEBERFORTRAENRBEMRE - AHE
EE  EERE AIHEENEERER  UH5
RER BIFEE BLEEMR  MRAORSE
SN BERMAD ™S - B RENER N
AEREMMEARENHRSE  BHREFEXE=)
BEFRAREZAIE RHEREEEER KA
XL EERNEENE -

TEBEEEEREES  HERERE  RER
ZE EmAH AREEZHEREERALE
ERENR BEARNELEEH - AR - R
YEENRERERRBIERESR  SMPIME
BEANERESZERSBRE THHETS
Heg bR - BEER M ERE S -

EENHBAELBARFRUETENEETRE
AMBERE N HEERBRS -

EREGER

PEBE -HERNREAEEDKTHLEER
ERAREEER - EEGRE  REFOBEEAR
ERRBEER RERITRERRE BURKE
& YA R 10 150 DA AR B R IR B SR HE 25 10 7
$iE o

RERREMEKTOCLEEER EEGT
ERARATNLLEEAESR  UEHREYHE
BEEMHE  LAETEYERSHAEEA
B A - BER BN RS BARAFE T T
0 B A 1A R B X



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEELGRSE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to other specific
senior management of the Company. The directors’ and chief
executive's interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 68 to 69.

BOARD
THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 14 directors, including 9 executive
directors and 5 independent non-executive directors,

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the "Articles’),
any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing directors shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting (‘AGM’) of the Company after his appointment and shall then
be eligible for re-election. In addition, at every AGM of the Company, not
less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart from
retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-executive
director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no director will
remain in office for a term of more than three years. For details relating
to any relationship among the members of the Board, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship, please
refer to the sections headed "Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” and ‘Directors” and Chief Executive's Interests and
Short Pasitions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of the
Directors' Report.

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF BOARD

Mr. Huang Guirong retired from his office as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 24 May 2024. Dr. Song Keming has been
serving as an executive director of the Company with effect from 24 May
2024. Dr. Song Keming obtained the legal advice referred to in Rule
308D of the Listing Rules on 23 May 2024 and has confirmed that he
understood his obligations as a director of a listed issuer.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information in respect of the
directors of the Company required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.518(1) of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD (Continued)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the post
of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and
Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important duties of the
chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board always acts in the
best interests of the Group. The chairman shall ensure the effective
operation of the Board and fully perform his/her duties and ensure all
important issues are discussed at Board meetings in a timely manner,
All directors will be consulted for any proposed items in the agenda. The
chairman has delegated the drafting of the agenda of each Board
meeting to the chief executive and the company secretary. With the
assistance of the chief executive and the company secretary, the
chairman aims to ensure all directors are adequately briefed on any
issues being put forward at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and
reliable information in a timely manner.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors provide various expertise and
experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the interests
of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in Board meetings
and committee meetings and make independent judgements on
issues related to the Group's strategies, performance, interest conflicts
and management process so as to ensure the interests of all
Sharehalders are properly considered.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board exercises
its rights in management decision on the aspects of the Company’s
development strategy, management structure, investment and
financing, planning, financial control and personnel in accordance with
the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company's independent
auditor to review the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2024 and to audit the annual results for the year ended 31 December
2024. The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements included in the annual
report and the interim report. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, the directors have
selected and applied appropriate accounting policies and have made
prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external auditor
of the Company on the Company's consolidated financial statements is
setoutin the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 76 to 85.
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BOARD (Continued)
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
including:

(a)  to develop and review the Company's palicies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

() toreview and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  toreview of the effectiveness of the Company's risk management
and internal control system;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and

() toreview the Company's compliance with Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code).

The Board has performed the above duties during 2024.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board convened 12 meetings
to review operating performance, funding requirement and recent
market conditions. The Board also considered and approved the
Group's overall strategy, audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2023 and reviewed interim results for the six months ended
30 June 2024.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman/chairlady of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee attended the AGM of the Company held on 24 May 2024,
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BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued) EE2ERRRAE @)

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the Board at =~ FR#EHJ 2024 FEFEIKENEFEEHIEN
the meetings held in 2024:

Meetings attended/eligible to attend®
HERE, AEREENRYC

Audit Nomination Remuneration

AGM®! Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors RRBFAGY EVEEE REZEE FMZEE
Executive directors HTES
Wong Luen Hei HHE 1 /12 - 1 11
Zuo Manlun iR 1 12/2 - " l
Zuo Xiaoping i =2 1l o/ - - -
Lai Zhigiang FEbot 11 2/12 - -
Kong Zhaocong ALK 11 2/12 - - -
Chen Guonan BREI R 11 212 - - -
Lin Shaogquan wrz 1 212 - - -
Huang Guirong® HHRO 1l 4/4 - - -
Luo Jianfeng i3e4:3 1l 12/12 - - -
Song Keming® REERO - 8/8 - - -
Independent non-executive directors BIFHITES
Tao Zhigang bl 11 /12 22 1 11
Cheng Dickson iz 11 /12 2/2 - -
LuJiandong BRER 11 212 212 11 11
Hong Ruijiang T 11 2/12 - il 11
Lee Vanessa rEE 1l /12 2/2 il -

Note: B eE -

(@) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of video  (g) BESRART EEHVEY  FREERNEME
conference in accordance with the Articles. EeEpTEEAS -

(b) There was no other general meeting held in 2024. (b) R2024F A - BIEHMRE ARG RIT -

() The change in composition of Board is set out under the section headed "Change in (©) B/ ESNETEESSHARET | —5 -
composition of Board” on page 17.

20 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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BOARD (Continued)
BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meetings to the directors
and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance with the Articles
and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda and the relevant
documents are provided to all directors in a timely manner. The
chairman gives a proper briefing to all directors on items to be put
forward at a Board meeting. To ensure compliance with the procedure
of Board meetings and all applicable rules and regulations, all directors
gain a full understanding of all relevant data in a timely manner and
receive advice and services from the company secretary. The minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available
for inspection by the directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package covering the
summary of the responsibilities and obligations of a director of a Hong
Kong listed company, the Company’s constitutional documents and the
Guides on Directors’ Duties issued by the Hong Kong Companies
Registry to each newly appointed director to ensure he/she to have
sufficient awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the directors with written materials, as
well as organises seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director's duties and
responsiblilities.

In 2024, the Company provided six seminars on the topic of ‘Recent
Update on Corporate Governance’, “Smart Shaping the Future: Al+
Industrial Ecological Innovation Seminar’, “Sharing of Recent Tax Hot
Topics', "ESG Exposure Recent developments in exposure, response
strategies to climate change risk’, "Building a Line of Defense to Prevent
Occupational Crimes" and "Current Situation of Energy Development
and Development Hope — Challenges and Opportunities of Lesso'.
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BOARD (Continued) EEE @)

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued) BEEEIRZE @

Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on the B 7 _Lilt AAN R R EHAEEHIN - RIBESZHA
training records provided to the Company by the directors, the directors R Bl IR M EF L8 R2024F - EZ AL
also participated in the following trainings during 2024: EE AT

Type of trainings

Directors =2 EIEE
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei | AC
Zuo Manlun T fm AC
Zuo Xiaoping Vi P AC
Lai Zhigiang FEE SR AC
Kong Zhaocong KR AC
Chen Guonan PR EN g AC
Lin Shaoquan Mz AC
Huang Guirong® HEKO AC
Luo Jianfeng mRRIE AC
Song Keming® R A}HER O AC
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Tao Zhigang B8 2 el ABC
Cheng Dickson £ 52 AC
Lu Jiandong EER AC
Hong Ruijiang 3T ABC
Lee Vanessa FrE AC

Note: Bt 5

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEMTE R REER LwiE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: R E R/ REER RwBES

C reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the G MEFHAEFEHRE L oRiE REREAQF

responsibilities of directors, economy, finance, investments and business of the EBWER  BE - FIMRER
Company

(@) Retired as director with effect from 24 May 2024 (@) MR2024F5A24RRFEES -

(b) Appointed as director with effect from 24 May 2024 (b) R2024F5 A4 AREZRXAES -

22 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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BOARD (Continued)
COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedures of the Board meeting and ensure the
Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations and corporate
governance development and has considered opinions of the directors
when making a decision. The company secretary is responsible for
advising the Board on the Group’'s compliance with its continuing
obligations under the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and
Mergers and Share Buy-backs, Companies Ordinance, SFO and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the reporting period, the company secretary has received no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh his
knowledge and skills,

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

A permitted indemnity provision for the Group's directors and officers
was/is in force throughout the reporting period and as at the date of this
report. The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors' and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in the
discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors and
officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust
proven against them.

In accordance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Islands
Companies Act (as revised), every director, auditor or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/
her as a director, auditor or other officer of the Company in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in
his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain committees
under its supervision, including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (collectively known as
"Board Committees’). Board Committees can engage intermediaries to
provide professional opinions and the reasonable expenses incurred as
aresult are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Dr. Tao Zhigang
(chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lee Vanessa, Mr. Cheng Dickson
and Ms. Lu Jiandong (all are independent non-executive directors). The
major responsibility of the Audit Committee is to conduct independent
and objective audit of the truth and accuracy of the Group's economic
operation and financial activities, financial policies, financial procedures,
risk management, internal control, external audit, internal audit, financial
information reporting and financial data and assist the Board in
discharging its relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each year. In
2024, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 20.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during 2024:

review of the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2023, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence and its
report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2023, with a recommendation to the Board for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young at the 2024 AGM;

review of continuing connected transactions;
review of the Group's internal audit reports;
review of the interim report and the interim results announcement

for the six months ended 30 June 2024, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2024;

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2023 and the corporate governance disclosures for
the six months ended 30 June 2024, with recommendations to the
Board for approval,

review of the sustainable development report for the year ended
31 December 2023 with a recommendation to the Board for
approval; and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk management,
internal control system and internal audit function under the Code,
with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual
report, annual results announcement and sustainable development
report for the year ended 31 December 2024 with a recommendation to
the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the service fees paid or payable
by the Group to Ernst & Young, the external auditors, are set out as
follows:
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provision of these services by external auditors were cost effective and efficient due
to their professional knowledge.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
EXTERNAL AUDITORS (Continued)

Ernst & Young have been the auditors of the Company for a total of 15
years since 2010. Ernst & Young have partner rotation policy of rotating
audit engagement partner every 7 years to ensure their compliance of
independence requirements, and they have complied with such
reqguirements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely Dr. Tao
Zhigang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Ms. Lu Jiandong,
Dr. Hong Ruijiang (all are independent non-executive directors), Mr,
Wong Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun (both of them are executive
directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying and
formulating the Company's remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company's directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to members of the Board, factors such as market rates,
each director's workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken
into account. The following factors are considered when determining
the remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

business requirements;
individual performance and contribution to results;

company performance and profitability, including but not limited
to ESG indicator achievement;

retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand
fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and

general economic situation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the review process, no individual director is involved in decisions
relating to his/her own remuneration,

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2024, the Remuneration Committee convened one meeting,
assessed the performance of the Company's directors and senior
management, reviewed terms of their service contracts, and made
recommendation of the remuneration packages for directors and
senior management to the Board. The attendance record of the
meeting is set out on a named basis on page 20.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the remuneration of the two senior management fell within the band of
less than RMBIT million,

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises six members, namely Ms. Lu
Jiandong (chairlady of the Nomination Committee), Dr. Tao Zhigang, Dr.
Hong Ruijiang, Ms. Lee Vanessa (all of them are independent non-
executive directors), Mr. Wong Luen Hel and Mr. Zuo Manlun (both of
them are executive directors). The major duty of the Nomination
Committee is to study and make recommendations on the candidates,
selection criteria and procedure in respect of the Company's directors
and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifies
suitable candidates if necessary and makes recommendations to the
Board. The director nomination policy sets out the approach and
procedures the Board adopts for the nomination and selection of
directors of the Company including the appointment of additional
directors, replacement of directors, and re-election of directors. Below
are details of the selection criteria and nomination process and
procedures as set out in the director nomination policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the potential contribution such candidate can
dedicate to the Board in terms of his ar her qualifications, skills,
experience, independence, age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity
ete. The Nomination Committee shall consider the following selection
criteria and such other factors that it may consider appropriate for a
directorship, including but not limited to: (a) attributes complementary to
the Board, (b) business experience, board expertise and skills, (c)
availability, (d) motivation, (e) integrity, (f) independence and (g) diversity
in all aspects.

The director nomination policy takes the independence of independent
non-executive directors as one of the factors that must be considered
to ensure that the Board can obtain independent views and opinions.

For the appointment of new and replacement directors, if the Board
determines that an additional or replacement director is required, it will
deploy multiple channels for identifying suitable director candidates,
including referral from directors, shareholders, management, advisors
of the Company and executive search firms. Upon compilation and
interview of the list of potential candidates, the Nomination Committee
will make recommendation to the Board based on the selection criteria
and such other factors that it considers appropriate. The Board has the
final authority on determining suitable director candidate for
appointment

For the re-election of directors, where a retiring director, being eligible,
offers himself/herself for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if
appropriate, recommend such retiring director to stand for re-election
at a general meeting. The requisite information about the retiring
director will be included in the circular which will be published
electronically on the Company's website and the website of the Stock
Exchange before the general meeting. Meanwhile, printed copies will be
sent to the shareholders according to the method they opted to receive
corporate communications.

For nomination of directors by Shareholders, they must follow the
"Procedures for shareholder(s) of the Company proposing a person for
election as a director” which is available on the website of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Director Nomination Policy (Continued)

In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-election
and/or appointment of the directors shall be conducted in compliance
with the Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

For further details, please refer to the director nomination policy that is
available on the website of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2024, the Nomination Committee convened one meeting. The
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board, recommended the Board on the list of retiring directors for
re-election and one new candidate of executive director for election at
the 2024 AGM in accordance with the director nomination policy and
Board diversity policy of the Company, and reviewed the independence
of all independent non-executive directors. The attendance record of
the meeting is set out on a named basis on page 20.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE AND REFRESHMENT

The portfolio of existing practices of the Company's corporate
governance is in place to ensure the independence of the Board. The
Board reviews the implementation and effectiveness on an annual
basis.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed to the
Company his independence under Rule 313 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers that all independent non-executive directors are
independent The independent non-executive directors have actively
participated in meetings of the Board and Board Committees to provide
independent apinions. When performing their duties, they will make
significant decisions with reference to professional advices from
external agents.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy is
available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level will
support the attainment of the Company's strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factars, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities.
The Company will also take into consideration its own business model
and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the
Board diversity palicy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

The Company identifies and nurtures potential successors to the Board
by: (a) training programs for talents to expedite the readiness and ability
for the succession, (b) engagement of recruitment consultant, and (c)
considering gender diversity as a factor in the course of recruitment of
a suitable management candidate,

According to the Listing Rules, the Company has achieved the
requirement of at least one female director on the Board. The Company
selects and appoints director based on the selection criteria set out in
the board diversity policy, apart from the gender requirement.

The Board diversity targets are as follows:

Board diversity targets

Current performance
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at least one director possessing industry

3 female directors on the Board
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8 executive directors and 1 independent non-

Target achieved
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1 executive director and 3 independent non- Target achieved
executive directors with risk management
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Target achieved

knowledge executive director possessing industry
knowledge
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 14 directors. Three of
them are females. Over one-third of the Board members are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The composition of the Board
reflects the necessary balance of skills, professional experience and
knowledge for effective leadership of the Company.

The Nomination Committee, after taking into account the business
model of the Group, believes that the existing Board is adequate in
terms of size, diversity and compaosition that are appropriate to facilitate
effective decision making. The Nomination Committee also believes
that each existing Board member possesses diverse skills and
experience required for an effective Board and the Board collectively
possesses core competencies necessary for the effective functioning
of the Board and an informed decision-making process. The Board
believes that board diversity is beyond just about gender diversity and
embraces various factors such as a need for persons from different
backgrounds, skill sets, experiences and competencies for a better
Board performance. The Board will continue to evaluate and monitor
the implementation of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the
board diversity policy to ensure that it remains fit for purpose and aligns
with the Group's businesses, strategies and objectives, such that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives,
in addition to independent judgments provided by our independent
non-executive directors,

Currently, women employees form 30% of the Group's workforce and
171% of its middle or above managerial level. All employees are treated
equally regardless of gender, nationality, age, race or religion. The
recruitment procedures are impartial and non-discriminative and each
candidate is selected on the basis of objective criteria such as skills,
experience or competency. The Board is of the view that the current
gender ratio in the workforce is appropriate to the development of the
Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's
strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has established and
maintained appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Board is also responsible for monitoring the design,
implementation and review on the risk management and internal
control system as carried out by management, while management has
the responsibility to provide confirmation on the effectiveness of such
system. To this end, management continues to allocate resources for a
risk management and internal control system compatible with the
COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system of the Group
and in achieving business objectives of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously monitored
and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal contral system, and the Board is of the view
that the existing risk management and internal control system is
sufficient, effective and adequate. The review covered all material
aspects with regard to control, including financial control, operational
control and compliance control during the reporting period. The internal
audit reports submitted to the Audit Committee by the Group also cover
aspects of risk management and internal control. The Board is not
aware of any significant areas of concern which may affect the
Shareholders, and believes that the Group has fully complied with the
code provisions on internal controls, including compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, as set forth in the Code. The Board,
through the appraisal performed by the Audit Committee, reviewed,
ensured and confirmed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs received by the staff and budget of
the Group's accounting, internal audit, financial reporting function and
ESG performance and reporting at the Board meeting. In light of the
Group's nature of business and the recommendations on the Board's
role in risk management, the Group has developed risk management
system and palicies, and established a risk management project team,
which is responsible for the Group's risk management, to communicate
and assess the Group's risk profile and material risks, and track the
progress of mitigation plans and activities of material risks and report
on detailed examinations of specific risks as required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM ElEERARER

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation structure to AEBEREY —ExSAELEE  HWAEEFR
manage the risks encountered by the Group. The risk management FE¥HARRETERE - PEBBHRKREIERE
structure of China Lesso comprised of two key factors: risk BIEREBREEZ  RREEEENRREER
management structure and risk management program. e
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)
(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

Regulatory Organisation
The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the overall risk
management

determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve risk
management strategies, major risk mitigation solutions and
risk management measures;

comprehend and manage each major risk faced by the
enterprise and its existing management situations, and
make effective risks management decisions; approve the
decision making standards and mechanisms regarding
major operating decisions, major risks, major events and
major business processes;

approve risk management report related to major decisions;
and

approve the annual comprehensive risk management
report,

Risk Management Organisation
The Audit Committee, the highest risk management organisation
in the Company which is accountable to the Board

e

review the establishment and planning of the comprehensive
risk management system;

review the proposal on the structure of the risk management
organisations and their responsibilities;

review the annual comprehensive risk management report
and submit to the Board;

review risk management strategies, major risk management
solutions and risk management measures; and

review the annual risk management work plan.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Leading Risk Management Organisation
Risk management project team, the leading risk management
organisation
responsible for the establishment and amendment of the
Company's risk management policies and mechanisms;

formulate and submit annual risk management work plan to
the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss major
risks as faced by the Company; and

assess the soundness, reasonability and the effectiveness
in implementing the risk management system, and review
the annual comprehensive risk management report, risk
management strategies and day-to-day risk management
solutions.

Risk Implementation Organisation
Each functional department of the Company shall accept the
coordination and monitoring carried out by the risk management
project team

implement the basic process in risk management;

consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the
functional department;

analyse and propose risk assessment report of the
functional department;

properly carry out risk management work of the functional
department; and

establish a comprehensive risk management process of the
functional department,
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)

Risk Supporting Organisation

Internal control team
assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal control
documents in accordance with risk management solutions;

assist the risk management project team to inspect,
examine, evaluate and improve the implementation of risk
management in each functional departments and operating
units; and

assist the timely rectification and improvements to existing
deficiencies of each functional department based on the
findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department
assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

after carrying out internal audit, deliver the auditing results to

internal control team and risk management project team
timely.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)
(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management
program which is led by the risk management project team and
implemented with the assistance of the internal audit department
and internal control team. The risk management program is as
follows:

(a)  tocollect first-hand information for risk management;
(b)  toanalyse and assess risks;

(c) to propose risk management strategies and form risk
management solutions; and

(d)  tosupervise the implementation of risk management works
performed by each business units and verify the overall

score.

Key Corporate Risk Management Program
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole process of
risk management, connecting the channels of communication of risk
management information along the reporting lines and among various
departments and business units to ensure the timely, accurate and
complete communication of information and this has laid the
foundation for the supervision and enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating to the first-
hand information collection for risk management, risk assessment, risk
management strategies, critical control activities and the
implementation of risk management solutions. The risk management
project team carries out an annual review and examination on the
implementation of the works on risk management by different
departments and business units and its effectiveness for the year,
assesses risk management strategies and evaluates inter-
departmental risk management solutions and business units’ risk
management solutions, proposes suggestions for adjustments and
improvements and issues evaluation and recommendation reports
which will be sent to the relevant senior management in a timely
manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

The material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for market competition,
risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of adjustments of
policies in relation to the environmental protection, economy and
industry, cybersecurity risks and climate change risks.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects of
macro-economy’s volatility and the pressure of inflation. The Group's
corresponding measures on risk management include reviewing the
management strategies and mechanism for macro-economic risks;
reviewing the relevant mechanism on the collection of intelligence
about the changes in the external macro-economic environment;
clearly defining the macro-economic risk analysis session; analysing,
reviewing, adjusting and improving the strategies for managing macro-
economic risks in future.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market competition
arise from the risks involved in the formulation of competition strategies
and risks involved in the collection of clients” information. The Group's
risk management measures include reviewing the management
mechanism for market competition strategies; analysing the Company's
position in market competition, reviewing the corresponding market
competition strategies; and timely devising and reviewing the
management strategies in response to the changes in the market
competition environment and submitting report thereon to
management; collecting the market competition information of new
products and offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise
because the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company is
easily affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes in
manufacturers’ power and labour cost structure, changes in the price of
resins made from coal and petrochemicals. The Group's risk
management measures include clearly stating the risk management
strategies and mechanism for the fluctuation of raw materials price in
the relevant systems; collecting information in relation to the fluctuation
of raw materials price and releasing such information internally through
an established channel; regularly reporting and analysing the
fluctuation of raw materials price; clearly defining the analysis session
for the increased risks of fluctuation of raw materials price; analysing,
reviewing, adjusting and improving the management strategies for the
risks of fluctuation of raw materials price.

The potential risks of adjustments of policies in relation to the
environmental protection, economy and industry arise from the risks of
adjustments of environmental palicies; risks of adjustments of
urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of construction projects of
significant water works including water saving and water supplies; risks
of adjustments of real estate policies. The Group's risk management
measures include reviewing the management strategies and
mechanism for risks involved in the adjustments of policies in relation
to the environmental protection, economy and industry; collecting
information in relation to changes in environmental protection,
economy and industry policies and releasing such information internally
through an established channel; reviewing the mechanism for
monitoring and collecting the information on laws and regulations that
affect the industry.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE (Continued)

The potential risks of cybersecurity risks arise from two aspects: on the
one hand, the vulnerability of networks to different kinds of cyber attacks
because of its own security defects; on the other hand, external and
internal risks of the Group. External risks mainly represent intentional or
unintentional damage and threats from outsiders, such as malicious
attacks by “hackers’, illegal interception of network data and
transmission of computer viruses. Internal risks mainly include misuse
or abuse of critical and sensitive information, theft, intentional or
unintentional disclosure of confidential information by employees. The
Group's corresponding measures on risk management include
establishing online permissions; developing and using software for
communication within the Group; establishing two sites and three
centers and implementing dual-active and duplication of intra-city and
inter-city data centre; and strengthening development in four areas;
environment, data, terminals and cybersecurity.

Climate change risks are a kind of compound risk in the global risk
society. This risk can be classified into economic risk, political risk, social
risk, and ecological risk, etc. The Group’s corresponding measures on
risk management include improving environmental management,
practicing green operations, improving the efficiency of use of energy
resources, exercising strict management on waste discharge in the
production and operation process, actively transmitting the concept of
green development to the public, and building a green operation
roadmap to the harmonious coexistence of enterprises and the
environment.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA

AEETTEEmENEXERE (@)

BREzzRENEERRELEMIE  —HE
EEE@%%E%E%TEM;?%&F&%E&QEJXEX X

MIRE  B—HEMNRBREEERERAEEINE
&W%EE’\J HNBRBEBRIIINEABNEE
SEEMNEZERE  WIBREINEERE -
EEHNIEEZEDMERRSNERES - EKQJL
E¥ERNTNHEETEERANEABE SR
ER BIBN  EEREELBERRERSE -

AEBRBEGEEREREMEN LT

Eﬂiéﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬂﬁé‘%l WEDBREEE M=
D BIRRE A i E R RO EE B R o [
MEBAERE ER - KENEBRLT2I T ENE

ﬁﬂ%ﬁm—t REERNERHLEESR TN —BES
J—Hgﬁ #JZ\(:%/F! EA /III}—L PR Zigﬁl, EAR N
E%J’LM% AEERBELSEREETERE
BB BIIKECES  RARKRERERARE -
BREREELLBEPEDIR  BERASK
EEREBIEEAAR  BECEERIBMEHL
ERGEEBE 2 -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEELGRSE

MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing obligations on
information management and disclosure to formally regulate the
monitoring of inside information that arises during the course of its
current business development and has established the practice of
delivering such information to shareholders, the media and analysts.
When the Group handles the relevant matters, it will comply with
‘Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the related provisions issued by
regulatory organisations and the Group has clearly stated that the
unautharised use of confidential or inside information is prohibited. The
Group has a system of answering enquiries about the Group's matters
by external parties, and has appointed and authorised the senior
executives of the Group to act as the Company's spokesperson in
response to enquiries on a particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to an open and transparent culture and has
formulated a whistleblowing policy whereby employees can report any
matters including misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud regarding
financial matters and accounting practices to the anti-fraud control unit
anonymously. According to the type of each reported case, the case will
be submitted to the relevant departments for investigation and reported
to the Audit Committee to ensure fair treatment towards relevant
matters. This policy encourages employees to raise concerns without
fear of being accused. Any Shareholder or stakeholder can also report
similar concerns in writing or verbally in confidence to the anti-fraud
control unit. The anti-fraud management system and whistleblowing
policy are available on the website of the Company.

DIVIDENDS POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the
Company's discretion. Dividends may be paid only out of its distributable
reserves as permitted under the relevant laws. The Company has
adopted a general dividend policy of declaring and paying dividends on
a semi-annual basis of around 30% of its profit attributable to the
owners of the Company. The Board would review the Company's
dividend palicy from time to time considering factors including but not
limited to debt covenants, capital investment and business plan.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, there was no change to the memorandum
and articles of association of Company and they are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

CONVENING OF GENERAL MEETINGS AND PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Act (as revised). However, pursuant to the Articles, the
Shareholder(s) may request for the convening of general meetings
following the procedures below:

Any one or more Shareholder(s) (including a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s))) may request for the convening of
general meetings by written requisition as at the date of deposit of
the requisition, shares representing minimum of one-tenth of the
voting rights of the Company, on a one vote per share basis, in the
share capital of the Company. The written requisition shall be
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office,
the registered office. The requisition shall specify the object of the
meeting, the resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and
be signed by the requisitionist(s)

The Board shall proceed to convene the general meeting within 21
days from the date of deposit of the requisition.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which the meeting may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

An annual general meeting shall be called by not less than 21
days' notice in writing and all other general meetings shall be
called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The notice of the
meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda of the meeting,
particulars of the resolutions to be considered and in the case of
special business, the general nature of that business.

Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the website of the Company.

a2 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS'
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company to
the Board at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or
by email or through the Company's investor relations whose contact
details are provided in the "Corporate Information” section of this report.
In addition, the Shareholders can contact Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, the Company's branch share registrar, if they
have any enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlements to
dividend.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency in
communication with the Shareholders and investors in general, and will
review the Company's shareholder communication policy annually.
Communication between the Company and Shareholders is conducted
through various channels, including interim and annual reports,
information published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.lesso.com) and general
meetings. The Company encourages Shareholders to attend the
Company's general meetings.

The Company's shareholder communication policy is available on the
website of the Company. Shareholders and investors can contact our
investor relations at ir@lesso.com for any inquiries about the Company.
Investor relations communicated regularly with the Board regarding
Shareholders and investors' inquiries about the Company in order to
ensure that Shareholders and investors' opinions and questions were
reflected, and when necessary, the opinions and questions will be on
the agenda of the board meeting for discussion.

The Company's senior management endeavours to maintain an open
dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they have a
thorough understanding of the Company and its operations and
strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of the
function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent third
party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/analyst
meetings from time to time and led investors and analysts to visit its
plants.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

As regards investor relations, the Group will actively conduct activities
related to investor relations in the future to strengthen its corporate
responsibility so that global investors can have an adequate knowledge
and understanding of the Company's operating strategy, financial
performance and development prospects. The Company will actively
develop and maintain close relationship with investors, analysts and
media to achieve sound investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does not
comment on market prospects or factors affecting business and
performance, or engage in discussion on events or trends related to the
reporting period. The Company will not initiate any meeting or
conference call with public in which these matters are discussed. A
quiet period starts at 60 days or 30 days prior to the disclosure of
annual results or interim results respectively, and lasts until the
announcement of the annual results or the interim results.

Having considered all of the above disclosures, the Company believes
that the shareholder communications policy is effectively implemented.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AR Sk

MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2024, escalating geopolitical turbulence and a rise in trade
protectionism have led to a sluggish global ecanomic recovery.
Mainland China continues to face significant challenges, with the
property market in urgent need of revitalisation, domestic demand yet
to be fully unleashed, and economic structural imbalances becoming
increasingly evident. These factors have posed considerable challenges
to various industries. Amidst these economic headwinds, the Chinese
government has adopted timely macroeconomic measures to stabilise
the market, boost confidence, and support steady economic growth.
According to data from the National Bureau of Statistics of China, the
country's gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 5.0% year on year in
2024, reaching approximately RMB134.9 trillion. This performance places
China among the world's leading economies, demonstrating the
resilience of its economy and maintaining a steady trajectory of
progress,

In 2024, the National Development and Reform Commission, along with
relevant departments, coordinated efforts in both "hard investment” and
"soft infrastructure”, achieving a strong start for the “twofold”
development strategy. The central government made solid progress in
advancing this initiative, delivering notable results by stabilising
infrastructure investment and driving investment in emerging
productive forces. These efforts provided robust support for economic
growth throughout the year and further promoted high-quality
development. Nationwide infrastructure investment grew by 4.4% over
the year, accelerating by 0.3 percentage points compared to the first
three quarters. Notably, investments in railway transport and water
conservancy, both led by central government fundingrose by 13.5% and
41.7% year-on-year, respectively, contributing to the steady and
sustained development of the infrastructure and piping sectors.
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MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued)

However, the foundation of China’'s economic recovery remains
unstable. The sluggish property market has further strained the finances
of local governments and businesses, leading to a more cautious
market environment and hindering infrastructure investment. As a
result, the building materials and piping industries are facing a dual
challenge of weakening demand and excess capacity. Intense price
competition has also added pressure to the sector.

Over the past year, amid the deep adjustment in China's property
market and strong palicy support, stabilisation after the downturn has
become a key focus both now and in the foreseeable future. The
government's efforts to support the real estate sector have been
unprecedented in both scale and frequency, creating the most
accommodative policy environment in history. However, the hardships
facing real estate developers remain severe, with addressing debt and
enhancing cash flow being top priorities. Meanwhile, buyer confidence
has yet to recover, which continues to affect the building materials and
home improvement industries,

Energy saving and carbon reduction are key drivers in the steady and
proactive pursuit of carbon peaking and carbon neutrality, as well as in
advancing national development and facilitating the green transition of
the economy and society. Since the implementation of the “Action Plan
for Energy Saving and Carbon Reduction in 2024 to 2025", the Chinese
government has demonstrated unprecedented determination and
commitment to enhancing energy efficiency, cutting emissions,
accelerating the transition to green development and steadily
progressing toward the ambitious goals of carbon peaking and carbon
neutrality.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2024, China Lesso, as the world's leading piping and building
materials conglomerate, proudly celebrates its 38th anniversary. It has
consistently adhered to its development strategy of “further developing
the piping business and capitalising on the emergence of green energy
for mutual benefit’. Guided by the principles of “striving for customer
satisfaction by prioritising quality and driving its development with
industry-leading technology’, the Group remains committed to
delivering high-value products and services to society. Through years of
dedication and innovation across multiple sectors, the Group has
achieved high-quality growth, evolving into a conglomerate with
business operations spanning piping systems, building materials and
home improvement, environmental protection, new energy, and supply
chain service platform. During the year, the Group has remained
steadfast in executing a prudent business strategy, focusing on five key
pillars: “Concentration’, “Cultivation”, “Smart Manufacturing’, “Innovation’,
and “Global Expansion”. By advancing its piping systems business
alongside diversified business operations, the Group continues to
broaden its revenue base, unlock long-term corporate value, and
progress towards even higher-quality development.

Over 38 years of dedicated growth in the piping industry, the Group has
remained committed to its core brand strategy of “quality, platform
development, and global expansion’, along with stability and precision,
continuously advancing through innovation and craftsmanship. By
integrating technological progress with superior quality, the Group has
elevated a hallmark of Chinese manufacturing in the modern era,
empowering Chinese brands to reach the global stage through the
strength of its piping solutions. During the year, the Group has received
numerous accolades and recognition from various sectors, including
“The Most Popular Enterprise in the Stock Connect in 2024, “China’s
Leading Home Improvement Brand in 2024", "Top 100 Most Valuable
Caompanies in China's Home Improvement Industry 2024", and the 2024
Emerging Enterprise Award in China's Energy Storage Industry”,
Additionally, the Group ranked 19th among the “Top 500 Manufacturing
Enterprises in Guangdong Province” and was named one of the “Top
100 Innovative Large Enterprises in China 2024, These achievements
not only reaffirm the Group's diversified strength but also highlight its
strong innovation capabilities, setting a new benchmark for industry
development.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

Meanwhile, as a major player in the "dual carbon” strategy, the Group
has consistently adhered to the concept of sustainable development.
Driven by emerging productive forces, it has continually enhanced
resource utilisation efficiency, reduced energy consumption and
emissions, built green factories, and created green value, positioning
itself at the forefront of low-carbon development Currently, the Group's
piping products have received multiple green building material
certifications, and some of its building materials and home
improvement products have also received China Environmental
Labeling Program certification. The Group continues to break through
technological barriers, achieving product iterations and upgrades,
further building an efficient, green, and intelligent new industrial chain,
and steering its overall business towards a mare environmentally
friendly and sustainable development direction.

Revenue by Region?
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Revenue % of total revenue
A HHEWBA %
2024 2023
RMB million RMB million Change
ARMEERT AREBEST &

Southern China =4 12,404 14,079 (119%) 45.9% 456%
Other than Southern China ER M & 12,336 14,236 (133%) 45.6% 461%
Outside China HENE SN 2,286 2553 (10.5%) 8.5% 8.3%

27,026 30,868 (124%) 100.0% 100.0%
# Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to this ~ # EENEEBEFBTHNNGAEUMBREWTA -

consolidated financial statements.

HZE2024FN2A3BLEFE  AEEREZEHE
HEE Y BR — AR BB B E 20784 (2023
F:0853%) - AKENFEMSEBELAER™M
5 (EAREELAUA A A50% (2023 4F : 456%) -
H b0 & R U A (R B 5 541% (2023 5 : 544%) o

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the number of the Group's
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors across the country
increased to 2,978 (2023; 2,853). Southern China remained the Group's
major revenue-contributing market, accounting for 45.9% of the Group's
total revenue (2023: 45.6%), while the revenue from other regions
accounted for 541% (2023: 54.4%).
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

Revenue by Business Unit

% of total revenue

BB A%

Revenue
A

2024 2023

RMB million
ARMBER

RMB million

Change
ARBBET &

Plastic piping systems BHEBRL 22,819 24,585 (72%) 84.4% 706%

Building materials and BV R EEm
home improvement 2,27 2,839 20.0%) 8.4% 9.2%
Others Hith 1,936 3444 (438%) 7.2% 112%
27,026 30,868 (124%) 100.0% 100.0%

In 2024, domestic economic growth was slow, and the real estate
industry remained bottoming out, with companies facing operational
pressures and adopting a cautious approach to business expansion
and investment Nevertheless, China Lesso has consistently remained
proactive, adhering to the principles of prudent business development,
The Group has adjusted its internal resources, investing more in its core
piping business, focusing on market penetration, continuously
solidifying its market foundation, and enhancing product quality.
Through its strong resilience, the Group has maintained stable business
operations by continuously improving its operational efficiency,
optimising its product portfolio, and actively expanding its market
presence, so as to further strengthen its business foundation and
maintain a stable and reasonable level of profitability.

During the year, the Group recorded revenue of RMB27,026 million
(2023: RMB30,868 million). Grass profit was RMB7,293 million (2023;
RMB8,121 million) and gross profit margin was 27.0% (2023: 26.3%) mainly
because the costs of the raw materials stayed low throughout the vear,
Due to a decline in sales, the Group's EBITDA decreased by 157% to
RMB4,732 million (2023 RMB5,613 million), and the EBITDA margin was
17.5% (2023: 18.2%). Profit before tax decreased by 20.3% to RMB2,124
million (2023: RMB2,664 million). Net profit margin was 6.1% (2023: 7.5%).
Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 28.9% to
RMB1,684 million (2023: RMB2,368 million). The main reasons for the
profit decline were a decrease in gross profit by RMB828 million and a
reduction in the share of profits of associates by RMB220 million. Basic
earnings per share were RMB0.55 (2023: RMBO.77). The effective tax rate
was 22.9% (2023:12.9%).

To express gratitude to the Shareholders for their support and to share
with them the fruits of the Group’s endeavours, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: HK20 cents per share).
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Plastic Piping Systems

In 2024, under the financial pressures faced by local governments and
the tight capital situation of businesses, coupled with the continued
instability in the real estate market, the domestic plastic piping systems
industry showed an overall downward trend. However, in order to boost
the economy and mitigate the impact of declining real estate
investment, the government accelerated the issuance of special
government bonds to support local infrastructure projects. These
projects covered a wide range of areas, including transportation
infrastructure, energy, agriculture, forestry and water conservancy,
modern industrial systems, new infrastructure, energy saving, emissions
and carbon reduction, post-disaster recovery and reconstruction,
enhancement of disaster prevention, mitigation, and relief capabilities,
and the construction of security infrastructure. These strongly
supported steady economic growth and offered stable demand for the
plastic piping systems industry, contributing to its stable development.

The Group has kept up with the times, flexibly adjusting its resource
allocation and focusing on developing its core plastic piping systems
business, continuously strengthening the competitiveness of its piping
business. At the same time, the Group has actively expanded both
domestic and international markets and implemented its product
diversification strategy. In overseas markets, the Group has been
adopting a light-asset operating model, exploring localisation strategies
for production and sales to quickly respond to local demands. In the
domestic market, the Group is committed to optimising its customer
base structure and exploring new customers with stronger financial
capabilities. Additionally, in response to national palicies and market
development trends, the Group continually develops and introduces
more high-quality products and services. Furthermore, through
technological innovation, the Group has improved production efficiency
and quality while prudently controlling financing costs. These measures
have enabled the Group to maintain stable product prices and sales
volumes, preserve a reasonable gross margin, and demonstrate its
ability to withstand economic risks, further consolidating its leading
position in the piping systems market despite the challenging market
environment.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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CEIERE VR
BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued) EBOFRRERE @)
Plastic Piping Systems (Continued) BREBERG (@)
Revenue by Region WAt E 85
Revenue % of revenue
L'ON IR A %
2024 2023 2024
RMB million RMB million Change
ARBEERT ARBAST g
Southern China E3) 10,605 11,445 (73%) 46.5% 465%
Other than Southern China FErAIMDE 11,039 12184 (94%) 48.4% 496%
Outside China LR R 1,175 956 229% 51% 39%
Total st 22,819 24,585 (72%) 100.0% 100.0%
Revenue by Product Application WAZRERERES
Revenue % of revenue
LON EBA %
2024 2023 2024
RMB million RMB million Change
ARWEER ARBEST &
Water supply oK 9,129 9422 351%) 40.0% 383%
Drainage K 8,299 9175 (9.5%) 36.4% 373%
Power supply and B KA
telecommunications 3,215 3,733 (139%) 14.1% 152%
Gas transmission RIS 459 509 (9.9%) 2.0% 21%
Others Hith 1,717 1746 (16%) 75% 71%
Total st 22,819 24,585 (7.2%) 100.0% 100.0%
Average Selling Price, Sales Volume, and Revenue by Product REQUBEINTFHIEE HERBADE
Material
Average selling price Sales volume Revenue
THER ON
2024 2024
RMB anne Change \RMB million
AR®
ARK , 28 mEn
PVC products PICER 7183 7209 04%) 1799077 1941263 (73%) 12,923 13996 (7%
Non-PVCproducts  FEPVCER 14,473 15010 (56% 683723 705461 (51%) 9,896 10589 (65%)
Total Bt 9,191 9,289 (1% 2,482,900 2646724 62%) 22,819 24585 (72%)
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
Plastic Piping Systems (Continued)

During the vear, the plastic piping systems business recorded revenue
of RMB22,819 million (2023: RMB24,585 million), accounting for 84.4% of
the total revenue of the Group (2023: 79.6%).

In 2024, sales volume of the Group's products decreased by 6.2% year
on year. Sales volume of PVC products declined by 7.3% year on year to
1,799,177 tonnes (2023: 1,941,263 tonnes), while that of non-PVC products
fell by 3.1% year on year to 683,723 tonnes (2023: 705,461 tonnes).
Revenue from sales of PVC products decreased by 7.7% year on year to
RMBI12,923 million (2023: RMB13,996 million), while revenue from sales of
non-PVC products decreased by 65% year on year to RMB9,896 million
(2023: RMBI10,589 million).

During the vear, the Group took advantage of low raw material prices,
combining with effective procurement strategies to optimise the cost,
At the same time, through precise pricing strategies, the Group
enhanced the market competitiveness of its products. Despite the
challenging market environment, the Group successfully stabilised the
overall selling prices of its piping systems products and maintained a
steady sales volume, while keeping the gross margin at a reasonable
level. This fully demonstrated the Group's high-quality operational
management capabilities. The average selling price of the Group's
plastic piping products was RMB9,191 per tonne (2023: RMB9,289 per
tonne). The gross profit margin at this business was 28.7% (2023: 28.5%)

The Group has always adhered to high-quality development and
actively implemented the concept of green manufacturing in
production. By enhancing “traditional manufacturing” with “smart
intelligent manufacturing’, the Group has leveraged new-generation
information technologies such as artificial intelligence (Al), 5G
telecommunication technology, Internet, and the 10T, combined with
digital operations management, to upgrade and establish smart
factories integrating IoT, smart manufacturing, and automated
production. During the year, the Group's annual designed production
capacity for plastic piping systems was 329 million tonnes, with a
capacity utilisation rate of approximately 76.4%. While improving
manufacturing capabilities and business efficiency, smart intelligent
manufacturing has also effectively reduced carbon emissions and
pollution. Notably, the Group's factory was successfully included in the
2024 Guangdong Province Green Factory List’, which fully recognises
the Group's long-term commitment to high-quality development and its
efforts and achievements in actively implementing the concept of
green manufacturing.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA

EMOEERE (§)
BREBERR (&)
FRNBREERAEBIRAAARE 228101

JC (2023 % : ARME24585187T) " G R EE &
W A 9 84.4% (20234 : 796%) ©

2024 AEEERBELXRFRLL TEB2% o
PVCEMmMSHE Rt T ]7.3% 21,799,177 WA (2023
& 1 10412630F) - IEPVCEMMEE AR T 2
31% & 683,723 Wi (20234 : 705,461H) ° §4 &
PVCERAIBHWARBE TR7/%EARK
1202318 7T (20234 : AR ¥13006187T) * M IE
PVCEMRATSHIRARIBLE TEKe5%E AR

0896 BT (20234 : AR¥E10589187T)

FA - AEETDFAREMEBHEROELESD -
WS EEARNIRERALES  BE TRAE
1t Rk BBRBENTERE BAEROT
BHEN - BEEMUBOTHIRET A%
BB T EEEERRERNEEMGERT—
EHES  WIEEMEHRFEGIEKFE  ZHEHR
TAEESEENELEEEN AEBBEE
BRERERNFHEEABMEARE 01017T (2023
F M ARKO280TT) - BHEBRAEBH
EFIR E287% (20235 : 285%) °

FEERKBEEZEREERE  TEEHSEREGE
THREREE S IS E]ImISI&E] - FIAA
TEEEA) sCBEHMT - BBE WBASH
—REMEN  WEABRTEEEE AR
BEEYBE BN ENaSEER —ENE
IR TR AXEBBHEBRRAEENTE
RATEREAI0BNE - EREFARLT64% - £
BUETIRAZEE N MEERNENRE - LEM
HARFESS - BE—IRRAEBE T THRAH AR
QOUFEREGETIREZE) OB ETA
EERANRESS MEERIER  BEBITH
RIS SME NMEKR -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEST R &5

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
Plastic Piping Systems (Continued)

In 2024, the Group continued to cultivate its core plastic piping system
business while actively expanding product development in multiple
sectors, achieving innovative breakthroughs both horizontally and
vertically. With the ongoing increase in national investments in
infrastructure construction and the heightened emphasis on new
industrialisation, the demand for high-performance plastic pipes in the
industrial sector has been growing steadily. Driven by innovation as its
core engine for growth, the Group has continuously enhanced its
technological research and development capabilities to break industry
barriers. By diversifying its piping products, the Group has launched
more new products to meet market demand and lead industry
innovation. Among these, the Group has identified key industry pain
points and made special breakthroughs by introducing polyethylene
(PE) pipes and fittings for nuclear power plants, which hold significant
value in nuclear power applications and promotion. At the same time,
the Group has focused on developing piping applications with growth
potential, such as pipping for transmission of hydrogen and oil, to seize
market opportunities and expand its market share.

As a key player in the modernisation of agriculture and rural
construction, the Group has significantly expanded the value of its core
plastic piping system business by exploring the growing market
opportunities in county and township areas. The Group actively involved
in the development of rural pipeline infrastructure projects, offering a
wide variety of piping products that are extensively used in rural water
supply and sewage systems. Moreover, the Group has introduced an
innovative “Comprehensive Rural Sewage Solution’, contributing to the
enhancement of living conditions and raising the standard of living in
rural areas. With robust technical support and strong innovative
capabilities, the Group actively promoted the application of green
agricultural production models. It has refined its product strategies to
drive product transformation, launching a range of high-quality
agricultural piping products, such as PVC pipes for agricultural use, PVC
orchard irrigation pipes, and PE water transmission pipes, thus providing
a powerful impetus for the green transformation of agriculture.
Furthermore, the Group also dedicated to developing piping
applications in the aguaculture sector, pioneering more intelligent and
diverse specialised fishery equipment and facilities, complemented by
enhanced technical support, to expedite the establishment of “ocean
ranches’, driving the high-quality growth of modern fisheries
infrastructure, empowering the continued upgrading of the aquaculture
industry.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Plastic Piping Systems (Continued)

During the year, in response to the challenges presented by market
saturation and intensifying industry competition, as well as the rapid rise
of the internet, the Group capitalised on the opportunity to launch “Lesso
Direct’. This initiative focuses on developing an online operational
platform and creating a service ecosystem, enabling resource sharing
and market integration. This has optimised services, expanded sales
volumes, and significantly strengthened market competitiveness and
business growth. As the official service ordering platform of the Group,
"Lesso Direct” has not only established a strong presence in the
Guangdong-Foshan region of South China but has also been
successfully launched in the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei and Southwest
regions. The platform now boasts over 10,000 members, and its network
of service providers is rapidly expanding across the entire country, with
its influence and business coverage continuing to grow.

In respanse to the ever-evolving market environment, the Group has
proactively adjusted its customer structure and strengthened its
relationships with strategic partners, including government departments
and leading central government-owned and state-owned enterprises in
the infrastructure sector. Through active involvement in national projects
and municipal reconstruction efforts, the Group has leveraged synergies
to further reinforce its dominant position in the plastic piping systems
market During the year, China Lesso collaborated with the Third Bureau
of China State Construction Engineering Corporation (CSCEC) and the
major listed company JD.com. In the future, the Group's products will be
distributed through the JD Industrial Platform to CSCEC's Third Bureau.
The Group's successful exploration of innovative procurement models
will pave the way for expanding the Group's big customers base online,
unlocking new growth opportunities.

The Group has capitalised on its local strengths for global expansion.
With its robust technological capabilities and comprehensive product
portfolio of plastic piping system, the Group was accelerating its brand's
global expansion and localisation strategy by employing a light-asset
and trade-oriented model, proactively developing overseas markets
with a focus on Southeast Asia, Africa and North America . The Group
deeply engaged in the local domestic market and infrastructure
development. Currently, the Group has established production bases in
the Indonesig, Thailand, Malaysia, Cambodia, Vietnam, Africa and United
States, while those in the Philippines and Bangladesh under preparation
for construction. Over 10 countries and regions now host overseas sales
centres, During the year, the Group's overseas business performed well.
Within its mainstay business of plastic piping system, the Group has
reinforced collaboration across its diversified business units, stepped
up efforts, and made significant strides in expanding into international
markets, thereby boosting its global market share and overall influence.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
Plastic Piping Systems (Continued)

As a key pillar of national economic growth, future infrastructure
investments will be primarily driven by government funding,
complemented by market-based financing. The backbone of
governmentinfrastructure investment consists of local special-purpose
bonds, ultra-long-term special government bonds, central budgetary
allocations, and local fiscal funds. With the latest policy direction from
the 2025 National People’'s Congress, infrastructure development is
poised to gain further momentum. Backed by an additional fiscal
injection exceeding one trillion yuan, infrastructure investment is
expected to remain strong, serving as a powerful engine for sustained
economic expansion.

Looking to the future, the Group will stay attuned to national policy
directions and market dynamics, capitalising on emerging opportunities
with a market-driven approach and a strong focus on brand
development Harnessing its advanced smart intelligent manufacturing
capabilities, it will drive continuous product innovation and
enhancement, delivering more efficient and environmentally friendly
piping solutions. Within China, the Group will further strengthen its
strategic partnerships with government departments, leading central
government-owned and state-owned enterprises, maximising
synergies to expand its market presence. Concurrently, the Group will
accelerate its overseas expansion and localisation strategy, diversifying
revenue streams and fostering sustainable business growth. Armed
with robust capabilities and strong resilience, the Group is well-
equipped to navigate market challenges and fortify its leadership in the
piping industry. Technological advancement remains at the heart of the
Group's development strategy. By continuously automating and
digitalising its production processes and integrating cutting-edge
technologies, the Group is enhancing efficiency and productivity.
Mareover, its strategic procurement approach effectively controls raw
material and production costs, driving economies of scale. In summary,
the management remains optimistic about the future prospects of the
plastic piping system business and is confident in delivering consistent,
solid business performance.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Building Materials and Home Improvement

In 2024, the real estate market was still undergoing a profound
correction, encountering substantial market headwinds. Despite
ongoing policy support, property prices continued to decline. Some
developers experienced high liquidity risks and struggled with debt
repayment pressures, while buyer confidence had yet to fully recover.
As a result, the downturn in real estate sales weighed on the building
materials and home improvement industries. During the year, revenue
from the Group’s building materials and home improvement business
was RMB2,271 million, accounting for 84% of the Group's total revenue.

Amid the challenge in real estate sector, the Group fully acknowledges
the advantages of central and state-owned enterprises in terms of
financial strength and operational resilience, and the critical role they
play in the industry. The Group has strategically realigned its focus and
actively optimized its customer base. By shifting resources towards
government, central government-owned and state-owned projects, the
Group aimed to foster long-term, stable partnerships while mitigating
risks linked to private real estate enterprises. Furthermore, the Group
was capitalising on opportunities arising from the policy of “ensuring
timely deliveries of pre-sold homes” to reinforce business stability and
ensure sustainable growth.

Looking ahead to 2025, the real estate sector is expected to benefit
from a continued accommodative policy stance, with upcoming
measures likely to focus on “boosting demand” and optimising supply.
The housing support policies introduced in 2024 will further
demonstrate their effectiveness, gradually reducing risk exposure for
develaopers and recovery in market confidence. The Group remains
dedicated to delivering high-quality products while refining its one-stop
integrated solutions. By offering a diversified portfolio of building
materials and home improvement products, it actively promotes the
advancement of sustainable and green architecture. Additionally, the
Group will strategically optimise its customer base, targeting financially
robust customers to drive business growth. Capitalising on the
synergies between its plastic piping system and building materials and
home improvement businesses, the Group will also expand its sales
channels to better meet evolving market needs.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

Others

The Group’s other businesses include environmental protection,
supply chain service platform and new energy

Energy saving and environmental protection have become
indispensable in modern society. As a vital component of the nation's
strategic emerging industries, they are instrumental in driving economic
transformation, upgrading industries, and tackling climate change and
environmental pollution. In 2024, the slow domestic economic recovery,
constrained local government finances, and weakened industrial
investment momentum resulted in fewer construction projects or
scaled-down developments. Consequently, the reduction in hazardous
waste prevented the environmental protection sector from reaching full
capacity, leading to overcapacity. During the year, the Group's revenue
from its environmental protection business was RMB277 million. In
response to these challenges, the Group was strategically refining its
customer portfolio and exploring government projects, ensuring a more
solid foundation for sustainable future development.

In 2024, the Group remained committed to enhancing capital efficiency
by adopting a prudent approach to developing its supply chain service
platform business and managing related investments. It actively
evaluated overseas assets, strategically divesting or repurposing them
for leasing based on market conditions to optimise its financial
structure, improve cash flow, and maximise shareholder value. With a
strong focus on the high-growth Southeast Asian market, the Group
implemented proactive measures to refine its supply chain service
platform. Furthermore, the Group successfully completed the spin-off of
its subsidiary, EDA Group Holdings Limited ("EDA’, stock code: 2505),
which was subsequently listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange on 28 May 2024. Following this, EDA's revenue was no longer
consolidated within the Group. In 2024, the supply chain service
platform business contributed RMB930 million in revenue. Looking
ahead, the Group will proactively address market shifts, recalibrate its
development strategy, and ambitiously target an accelerated expansion
of its warehousing and logistics network in Southeast Asia while
maintaining a sustainable and stable business growth.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)
Others (Continued)

The Group’s other businesses include environmental protection,

supply chain service platform and new energy (Continued)

The photovoltaic industry's role in the global energy structure has been
further elevated, positioning itself as a key force in driving green and
low-carbon development. However, in recent years the entire industry
chain of the photovoltaic market experienced a downturn and
challenges such as overcapacity, frequent price wars, and international
trade barriers that have placed considerable pressure on the sector.
During the year, the Group's new energy business recorded a revenue
of RMB223 million. Looking ahead, while the photovoltaic industry is
currently grappling with overcapacity and a supply-demand imbalance,
the ongoing deep adjustments in the sector will swiftly phase out non-
competitive capacities. Amid this industry-driven self-adjustment,
supply chain prices are stable and the supply-demand relationship is
expected to rebalance more rapidly. The Group will continue to adopt a
cautious and pragmatic approach, keeping a close eye on market
trends, further streamlining investments in the new energy business,
and adjusting its development and operational strategies in order to
weather the industry's downturn,

SUMMARY

Looking towards 2025, despite the uncertainties of the external
environment, the fundamentals of China’s economy remain robust, with
confidence in achieving steady and sustainable growth. Building on its
solid 38-year foundation, the Group will harness its powerful piping
expertise, with a focus on quality and innovation as its key drivers. It will
seize the opportunities of this era, extend its reach internationally, and
dedicate full resources to create further passibilities, continuously
advancing towards a brighter future and delivering long-term value for
the Shareholders.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the reporting period, the Group's capital expenditure was
approximately RMB2,932 million, which was primarily used for
improvement of automated facilities, expansion of the existing
production bases and construction of certain investment properties.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA

EMOEERE (§)

Hth (&)

AEBNEGEBEEBRER  HESERET
AEBRFERLES ()

RRITEER RGBT ALE — TR
KRB RE RRERNERNE - AMIF
Ko RATSRETE  2EXFBHELATTE
Hi - ERBF  BEREEE BRESEEEH
BINATESREAKB - £ AEEFHER
EBHESRARARKE22ZBIT - RERK &
EEALRITERRERBREHNFREGNRNS -
BREELREESERERE RZBEFNNE
BEMERRELE - EITEARMHAET  EXE
EBREERORER  TEHSHEEREINES
T AEEREERSERTENREE T
RIMISERE - SREMEREFERE
WARE T 5 BB R B IR T7 M MK
NEBEBITRHRL o

RE2025F BEMBRINBIRTN FHEE M
FEZENEAEKRARY  AELFEERL
BIRERR - PEBEK I ENISFERE
EREL NERENEEBH LS UmER
S DARIFT AR IEERREE - BINEE
BEFTRE - BIEE B RE - AEF R RKESE
A BIRREIEREEE-

BEXFX

RBEPAR AEEEARX ROARE2032
B TERARBELEE N BBERE R
BEEEMNERTIRELETREYMENER -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEST R &5

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance, fund
utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject to effective
centralised management and supervision. The Group keeps reasonable
gearing level and adequate liquidity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total debts (ie.
borrowings and lease liabilities) of RMBI19,646 million, of which 17.7% was
denominated in US dollar, 18.6% was denominated in HK dollar, 61.7%
was denominated in RMB, 13% was denominated in Australian dollar
and 0.3% was denominated in other currencies. The Group's borrowings
are subject to effective interest rates ranging from 1.7% to 8.0% per
annum with maturity periods ranging from within one year to more than
five years. The Group's Gearing Ratio stood at a healthy level of 44.6%.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's total equity reduced to
RMB24,415 million. The Group's current assets and current liabilities
were RMBI9,715 million and RMB21,582 million, respectively. The Group's
Current Ratio increased to 0.91 from 0.85 as at 31 December 2023, while
Quick Ratio increased to 062 from 0.57 as at 31 December 2023,

The Board believes the Group will be able to continue to generate
pasitive cash flows from its operations. With cash and bank deposits,
including restricted cash, of RMB6,643 million as well as unutilised
banking facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
and no hedging had been arranged during the period.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured
by land and its concession rights of a subsidiary, leasehold lands and
buildings of subsidiaries, other intangible assets of a subsidiary,
investment property of a subsidiary and a personal guarantee provided
by a shareholder of a subsidiary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed a total of
approximately 20,400 employees including directors. Total staff costs
were RMB2,349 million during the reporting period. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined based
on their work performance, professional experience and the prevailing
industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus and shares award may
be distributed to employees based on individual performance. Other
benefits to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme
and training programmes.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not have any significant investment with a value of 5% or
more of its total assets at the end of the reporting period.

Investment in Associates
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2024 2023

RMB million RMB million

AREBERT AREBEL

Keda ThiE 2,038 1950
Xingfa Aluminium B IR 1,872 1708
Others il 1,399 1207
5,309 4,865

Atthe end of the reporting period, the Group held 2611% and 8.01% equity
interests in Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited ("Xingfa Aluminium’)
(Stock Code: 98) and Keda Industrial Group Co, Ltd. (‘Keda") (listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 800499), respectively. During
the reporting period, the Group further acquired approximately 1%
shares in Keda for a consideration of RMBI172 million.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (Continued)

Investment in Associates (Continued)

Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profile manufacturers
in China, the core businesses of which include the manufacture and
sale of construction aluminium profiles and industrial aluminium
profiles. The Group considers that Xingfa Aluminium not only serves as
a valuable investment with sustainable returns, but also as a good
strategic investment. With extensive experience in the business of
construction materials and industrial materials, Xingfa Aluminium has
established various kinds of sales channels and a diverse customer
base. During the reporting period, Xingfa Aluminium recorded a revenue
of RMB18,855 million, and profit attributable to the shareholders of
Xingfa Aluminium was RMB826 million.

Keda's businesses cover, amaong others, ceramic machinery, brick
machinery, stone machinery and other building materials machinery
manufacturing and sale, clean energy environmental protection
equipment, lithium battery materials and smart energy. Keda's
enterprise mission of “‘green solution, greener life" is consistent with the
Group's strategy to promote green development. The Group will
strengthen its connection with Keda by actively seeking business
cooperation in overseas markets such as Africa and exploring new
business development. During the reporting period, Keda recorded a
revenue of RMB12,600 million, and profit attributable to the shareholders
of Keda was RMBI1,006 million.

These investments may create long-term commercial synergies with
the Group's businesses to broaden its sales channels and expand its
customer base, and enrich the Group's comprehensive portfolio of
products and services. These investments can facilitate the Group's
business diversification and reinforce its market leadership.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT (Continued)

Investment Properties

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment properties
were RMB9,335 million. Increase of investment properties was mainly
attributable to the construction on certain investment properties under
development of RMB355 million, addition of a warehouse in Malaysia of
RMB35 million and set-off with exchange loss on translation of RMB268
million, during the reporting period.

Among these investment properties, the properties in Toronto, Canada,
Long Island, US, Auburn district of Sydney and China are existing
properties; the construction of first-phase projects in Thailand,
Myanmar, Cambodia and Indonesia have been completed; and other
properties are under rezoning or at the planning stage of development.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group held long-term and short-term
financial investments of approximately RMB1,976 million (31 December
2023: RMB1,946 million) and RMB5 million (31 December 2023: RMB16
million), respectively. The investment portfolio was comprised of 12.4% in
listed equity securities (issued by PRC-based companies of: home
improvement and furnishings shopping malls operating and property
management), 5.8% in listed debt securities, 3.6% in unlisted debt
securities, 74.3% in unlisted equity securities and 3.9% other financial
investments.

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a fair value gain of
approximately RMBB5 million in profit or loss, recognised mark-to-
market valuation net loss of approximately RMBO7 million in other
comprehensive income and approximately RMBI13 million of exchange
net gain on translation. Income from the portfolio amounted to
approximately RMB26 million in the reporting period, representing
dividend and interest incomes.

The Group will study the market and information of the prospective
investees cautiously before investment decisions making. The Group
will also monitor the performance of its investees closely and regularly
after purchases and will adjust the investment strategy in a cautious
manner to minimise the impact of market volatility on the Group as and
when necessary.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

Set out below is the report presented by the Board together with the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
set out in notes 45,17 and 18 respectively to consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's business,
the Group's environmental policies can be found in the "Chairman'’s
Statement’, “Corporate Governance Report’, "Management Discussion
and Analysis” and "Sustainable Development Report’. This discussion
forms part of the Directors’ Report.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Detalls of the Group's corporate social responsibility progress and
performance in 2024 are disclosed in the separate sustainable
development report which will be available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange at the same time as the publication
of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 86 to 234.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK20 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the "Proposed Final
Dividend’) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Friday, 20 June 2025, subject to the
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Tuesday, 20 May 2025 (the 2025 AGM’). Itis
expected that the Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on Wednesday,
9 July 2025,

The total dividend for 2024 amounts to a total of HK20 cents per share
(2023: HK20 cents per share), which represents a payout ratio of 34.1%
(2023: 23.7%) of the profit attributable to the Shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2024,
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A)

(B)

T®

For Determining the Entitlement to Attend, Speak
and Vote at the 2025 AGM

The record date for determining the entitlement to attend, speak
and vote at the 2025 AGM will be Tuesday, 20 May 2025. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 16
May 2025 to Tuesday, 20 May 2025, both dates inclusive, during
that period no transfer of shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend, speak and vote at the
2025 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company should
ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Wanchal, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 15 May 2025,

For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed
Final Dividend

The record date for the Proposed Final Dividend will be Friday, 20
June 2025. The register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 18 June 2025 to Friday, 20 June 2025,
both dates inclusive, during that period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive
the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the
Company should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, T7th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 pm. on Tuesday, 17 June 2025,
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Principal corporate governance practices and permitted indemnity
provision adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 16 to 44,

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the past five
financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
3. The summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group's major properties are set out on pages 235 to
237,

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company's share capital during the
year are set out in note 35 to consolidated financial statements,

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2024, the Company's reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act (as revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB7,756 million (2023: RMB5,726 million).
The amount of RMB1L,906 million (2023: RMB1906 million) represented the
Company's share premium which may be distributable provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business,
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total revenue attributable to
the Group's five largest customers was 4.5% of the Group's total revenue
and the revenue from the largest customer included therein amounted
to 2.4%. The total purchase attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers was 261% of the Group's total purchases and the purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 19.6%.

At no time during the year did the directors, their close associates or
any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the vear, the Group's charitable donations were approximately
RMBI1.54 million (2023: RMB3.88 million).

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of assaciation or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoguan

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Dr. Song Keming

Mr. Huang Guirong

(appointed on 24 May 2024)
(retired on 24 May 2024)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr.Tao Zhigang
Mr. Cheng Dickson
Ms. Lu Jiandong
Dr.Hong Ruijiang
Ms. Lee Vanessa

Pursuant to Article 1618 of the articles of association of the Company, Mr.
Wong Luen Hei, Mr. Lai Zhigiang, Mr. Cheng Dickson, Dr. Hong Ruijiang
and Ms. Lee Vanessa are subject to retirement by rotation at the 2025
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election,

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 7 to 14.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2025 AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short pasitions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Madel Code were as follows;

(A) INTEREST IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY
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(A) RERARMDHES

Number and capacity of shares @

BRHHBE RHEE
Percentage of
theissued
Beneficial Interests of Other share capital of
owner spouse interests the Company
EEARBRIT
BEREAA BB S HnkE BRAHE D
Wong Luen Hel - 2,308,000 (L) 2142485000 (L)@ 244,793,000 (L) 6913%
BHE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L)@ - 242,485,000 (L)o@ 244,793,000 (L) 6913%
e
Zuo Manlun 6,042,000 (L) - - 6,042,000 (L) 019%
e
Luo Jianfeng 1927000 (1 - - 1,927,000 (1) 0.06%
Tao Zhigang 30,000 (L) - - 30,000 (L) -
P8 =l
Note: B 5
(@) The letter "L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities, (@) FRMIEZATRZEBZHNTA -
(b)  These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was (b) ZEANRRNBFEENFTE - ZARAEE

wholly-owned by Xi Xi Development and ultimately owned by UBS Trustees
(BV.I) Limited, as trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust’), the settlor of
which is Mr. Wong Luen Hel ('Mr. Wong'). The discretionary beneficiaries of the
Trust included Mr. Wong and his family members. Both Mr. Wong and Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping are taken to be interested in the said shares of the Company held by
the Trust under the SFO.

(©) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company. Mr.
Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is deemed
to be interested in such shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

(d) These shares related to the same block of shares in the Company as set out
in note (b) above.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS EERTHEARE VKRG - HERKRN RE
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING EEMESERLE @)

SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

(B) INTEREST IN SHARES OF ASSOCIATED (B) MM EER M HER

CORPORATIONS

Number and capacity of shares®

RO B REEE

Percentage of

Interests the registered

Interests of held jointly capital of the

Beneficial controlled with other associated

Associated corporation Owner corporation persons Total  corporation

R EE

EH A EMERN

HEEE BERBEA ZELEREDR BEER ‘e B

Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental  Zuo Manlun 3,840,000 (L) - - 3,840,000 (L) 480%
Technology Co, Ltd” e

ITE K ERRR Luo Jianfeng 2,640,000 () - - 2640000 (1) 330%
B ERAR R

EDA Group Holdings Limited ZuoManlun - 10,269,000 (L)® 170,705000(L)*® 180,974,000 (L) 4086
EDA REHERAR AR Tt
Luo Jianfeng - 10269,000 (L) " 170,705000 (L)© 180,974,000 (1) 408619

wERE

Guangzhou KingHing Zuo Manlun 3054475 () - - 3,054475(1) 176%
Construction Technology Ltd.” %

BMNSEREREARAR  Luolianfeng 2,083,658 (1) - - 2083658 (L) 120%

gl

Note:
(a) The letter "L" denotes the person's long position in such securities.

(b) Each of Mr. Zuo Manlun and Mr. Luo Jianfeng holds his interest in EDA Group
Holdings Limited through his wholly-owned company, Zhan Hua Limited and
Dawnhill Group Limited, respectively.

() Mr. Zuo Manlun and Mr. Luo Jianfeng entered into an acting-in-concert
agreement with other parties in respect of their interests in EDA Group
Holdings Limited. Please refer to the prospectus of EDA Group Holdings
Limited dated 20 May 2024 for details.

(d) The issue of new shares by EDA Group Holdings Limited resulted in the
decrease in the percentage of the shares in EDA Group Holdings Limited held
by the director.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded in the register pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

&) FEILEZIALTRZEESNER -

(b) IRmtERBREBCESEEBRELEHE
#) A A] Zhan Hua Limited & Dawnhill Group
Limited #5 EDA SR BIE AR A R My -

(© Emfmk e RBERE L AEEEMATHNEDASK
EiERARA R WEE Y —BITE RS -
EE2MIDAREIER AR AR A A20245F
5A20 BRI BRETR -

(d) £ 7 EDA Group Holdings Limited 31T A% » (£ &
= # A EDA Group Holdings Limited Z B& 15 89 &
SRR

Br ESCRTIREE & SN - 202412 A58 -
RAREENITBBHEMERAR QG HH
ERIAEEB R ERRRD - B D k&
TEE R A R IRIEES M A E &5 352
BENREEMP R KRIBRESTRE
BAARF LB AT SRR -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2024, the following persons (other than a director or
chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholders

Capacity

BRR £ B =)
UBS Trustees (BV.I) Limited Trustee
UBS Trustees (BV.I) Limited EFTA

Xi Xi Development

RER SN
New Fortune Beneficial owner
MEE EHmBEAA
Note:
(a) The letter "L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
(b) These shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company as those set out in

note (b) in the section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures: (A) Interest in Shares of the
Company" above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the directors of the
Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or
short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the reporting
period.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA

Interests of controlled corporation

RESHFEPEHROIEMBRENER R
KB
R2024F12 A31H » AR BB 5 2 M BE B 19
FHREREESFNPEKHEICKETFERN
EMPSmESIAROAL (RRRES
RITHRABERIN AT -

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital
issued ordinary of the
shares held® Company
=RV

BFENERT ER®ITRA
EERHA@ WEDL
242,485,000 (L) ® 69.06%
242,485,000 (L) ® 69.06%
2142,485,000 (L) ®l 69.06%

(@) FERILEZALIRZZEFNER

b EREROEEEX[ESERITRERRED - HERG
RERENOERIORRE  ANRARBRMD R — &
B 5 () AT B0 R — AN A B A f #e

B E X EESN  R2024F 12 A31H » ARF
BEEFTANBEMALIEE (KARRAES RT
BRABE R ON) AR BT B 15 SAB A AR 1D P 1
BREEANTEKRNEIZCKETFHEENER
s EESIAR -
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any director of the Company or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed ‘Connected Transactions’,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding company and any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with him
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE NON-
COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

New Fortune (the "Controlling Shareholder’, being a company halding
approximately 69.06% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
is ultimately held by the trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong Luen Hei,
and the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his family)
has entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Group with
Mr. Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010 (the "Deed of Non-Competition’).

As at the date of this report, none of the directors or substantial
shareholder of the Company or any of their respective associates has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group. The directors are of the view that the Group's
measures adopted by the Company in respect of the Deed of Non-
Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness of the non-
competition undertakings. The independent non-executive directors
have reviewed the compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition. Based
on the confirmation from the Controlling Shareholder, the independent
non-executive directors are of the view that the Deed of Non-
Competition has been complied with and has been effectively enforced.

ESREROIFREEHTH

RERTAEE SEAEAARRETHRSE
FEANEBIARKE FRRIBEBRBARRER
ek EREMESER - TEZSENENS
1TE - AnA - EERAFRETMHREQFYL
BE2EFIVENZHERARRERAEBEBEAR
REREMEMEEOROREHES (BRE
TR MM o

EFREXSHNER

BRIBER S —BRAEEEI  ARF) - BER
REREEANEBRARMEL2ETIEMEAR
AEFIHEEMBNERERARERAEX
#m ANFRINFREAFHDATRNRS -
LHREREN -

T RPATERRRT G B RS

FE2 (ERKRE] - ARFEARREEITRA
H6006% W AR HBHERZKFE  MmziE
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B e
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the
‘Scheme’) to recognise the contributions by certain eligible persons
(including any individuals being employees, directors, officers,
consultants or advisors of any member of the Group or any affiliate) to
the Group and to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted
talent and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group. On 29 November 2018, a trust deed (the
"Trust Deed’) was entered into between the Company as settlor and
Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited as trustee (the “Trustee’) in
relation to the establishment of a trust (the “Trust’). Pursuant to the rules
of the Scheme, no new Shares will be granted by the Company, the
Trustee will purchase Shares not exceeding HK$750 million from the
open market out of cash contributed by the Company and hold them on
trust for the selected participants until such Shares are vested with the
relevant selected participants in accordance with the rules of the
Scheme. The Scheme is a discretionary scheme of the Company and
shall be subject to the administration of the Board and the Trustee in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme and the Trust Deed. There is
no maximum entitlement of each participant The Scheme will remain
in force for a period of 10 years since the date of adoption of the
Scheme and therefore the remaining life of the Scheme is around 3
years and 5 months as of the date of this report. Early termination of the
Scheme may be elected by the Board, provided that such termination
shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected participants. For
details, please refer to the announcement made by the Company on 28
August 2018. Since the date of adoption of the Scheme and up to the
date of this report, no shares have been awarded under the Scheme. As
at 31 December 2024, there were 22,991,000 Shares held in the Trust
under the Scheme.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 March 2025 the Board announced that the Board has resolved to
restructure the sustainable development committee of the Company:.
Please refer to the announcement dated 28 March 2025 for details.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

(A)

On 13 September 2023, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-
owned subsidiary China Lesso Finance Limited as borrower (the
"‘Borrower”) entered into a facility agreement (the "Facility
Agreement I) in relation to dual currency syndicated term loan
and revolving credit facilities in the amount equivalent to US$600
million (which may be subsequently increased to up to the
amount equivalent to US$800 million) at an interest rate of HIBOR
plus 144% per annum for Hong Kong Dollar loans, or daily non-
cumulative compounded SOFR plus 151% per annum for US Dollar
loans, among others, 7 lenders and 7 mandated lead arrangers
and bookrunners. The main purpose is to refinance the Group's
existing financial indebtedness. The maturity date (the “Original
Maturity Date’) under the Facility Agreement | is the date falling 48
months after the earlier of (a) the first utilisation date under the
Facility Agreement | and (b) the end of the availability period of one
of the term facilities, provided that the Original Maturity Date may
be extended for a further period of 12 months subject to the terms
and conditions of the Facility Agreement |,

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement I, Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his
family (collectively, the "Wong family’) shall collectively maintain,
directly or indirectly, atleast 51% of beneficial shareholding interest
in the issued share capital of the Company, carrying at least 51% of
the voting rights, free from any security. Otherwise, a failure to do
so will be deemed an event of default under the Facility
Agreement |,

On 15 July 2021, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
‘Facility Agreement II') in relation to dual currency syndicated term
loan and revolving credit facilities in the amount equivalent to
US$550 million (which may be subsequently increased to up to
the amount equivalent to US$700 million) at an interest rate of
LIBOR/HIBOR plus 140% per annum with syndicate lenders. The
maturity date under the Facility Agreement Il is the date falling 48
months after the earlier of (i) the first utilisation date and (i) the end
of the availability period of one of the term facilities, provided that
it may be extended for a further period of 12 months subject to the
terms and conditions of the Facility Agreement 1.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement Il, the Wong Family shall
collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of beneficial
shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company,
carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from any security.
Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an event of default
under the Facility Agreement I,

B EHRAIE13.18 1 R E13. 2115 1EH

B 1% 58
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, certain of the related party
transactions as disclosed in note 41 to consolidated financial
statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules and
satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of the
non-exempt connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions are summarised below:

PURCHASE OF MACHINERY

On 31 January 2024, the Company entered into the new machinery
purchase agreement with Guangdong Liansu Machinery in relation to
the possible purchase of machinery by the Group from Guangdong
Liansu Machinery for 3 years commencing from 1January 2024 and
ending on 31 December 2026, at a price not exceeding the price offered
to the Group by any independent third parties. The annual machinery
purchase caps for each of the year ending 31 December 2024,
31 December 2025 and 31 December 2026, shall not exceed RMB300
million respectively. For details, please refer to the announcement made
by the Company on 31 January 2024.

Total consideration paid for the reporting period by the Group under the
new machinery purchase agreement was RMBT75 million.

SUPPLY AGREEMENT

On 31 January 2024, the Company entered into the supply agreement
with Yan Sing Fu Sing in relation to the possible supply of building
materials, new energy solutions and renovation services by the Group
to Yan Sing Fu Sing for the years ending 31 December 2024, 31
December 2025 and 31 December 2026 at a price no more favorable
than the price offered by the Group to any independent third parties.
The annual sales caps for each of the period, shall not exceed RMB200
million. For details, please refer to the announcement made by the
Company on 31 January 2024,

Total consideration paid for the reporting period by the Group under the
supply agreement was RMB8 million.

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when
determining the price and terms of the connected transactions during
the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose of Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that all continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of its business; (i) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as awhole.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information, and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor's Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Company's auditor issued an unqualified letter containing the findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A56 of the
Listing Rules to the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 41 to
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the Company
and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this report,
the Company has maintained sufficient public float required under the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2025 AGM to re-appoint Ernst &
Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive and Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AR AR &

e
EY:

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Lesso
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company’) and its subsidiaries (the "Group’)
set out on pages 86 to 234, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3% BUET R &

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ('HKSAS') as issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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BFBUN EKE YCETTARMNEMLE
XEREME - BFIEE RAMESHNERERE
ERXEMEEHREFINESZE LRHEER -

FEREIER

FAREZFAERERFNFEXHE  RAHAE
PGRAMBRENEZRASEENEH GLF
AR EVBRREBRETERLIRER
MBS TETRERN  RATHELERREHRE
BHNER - ZMY T s -—FRERRTENMA
FEH B AL BB R -

B REIT T NREZBE 5 F oA B B
KAENETHOBANEE  SREELHSE
EVERMEBNEE - HEL  RANERTE
BREATREBHFENGEAMBERREAHERR
AR MR EZERF - RPRITEZEFH
R BREERY NIBEREZSEHEMATOET -
REAMBEHRREBEBERELERRHE T ER -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FASREIZEIE (8)

Key audit matter
ARELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MY R R E RS

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan

LY L N ES Tl L A Cop - ]

receivables

At 31 December 2024, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB3,938,504,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB2,760,375,000, among which
RMB1,657,424,000 were provided for certain individual
customers, and loan receivables of RMB283,693,000, net of
pravision for impairment of RMB248,733,000, among which
RMB149,488,000 were provided for certain individual
customer groups, which in aggregate accounted for 72% of
the total assets. The assessment of impairment of such trade
and bills receivables and loan receivables was considered to
be a matter of most significance as it required the application
of judgement and use of subjective assumptions by
management.

R2024F12A3E - ESENEZREFEAREESAR
#3038504,0007T - BINERIRE B B AR 2760375000
7T Hh AR¥1657424000 T RE T AR TP EE AR
FEM B R A AR 283603000 « EMBRBEREARE
2487330007T * HH AR¥149488000 L A% T A% P
BRE ARNEELTENT% ARESRKAERRRE
MRS TR R BB R4 TR 2 EIE B fFh HE R A X BB
HAEAR AR EZREIE -

HKFRS 9 requires that the impairment of financial assets
should be measured by the expected credit loss (‘ECL’) model.
In order to measure the impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables under HKFRS g,
management should use judgement, assumptions and
estimation technigues in aspects such as judging significant
increase in credit risk, estimating the parameters for
measuring ECLs and determining the forward-looking
adjustments.

ERMBREENFEORRTE  SREEMNRERIATER
EEBRI(EREEBR]) BEUGE - SREETBMER
HERZE O SR A8 H 5 B WKIA K B A EUAE FRAYRUE -
EEERNZ T E (W EE R ARG NE L HE - sat
EEHEEBEN2BUEHA RETRR AR ERH
B RN fAET A

Our audit procedures included, among others:
B EZREFEE(BETRR)

U

i)

Evaluating and testing the effectiveness of the
design and implementation of key controls relating
to approval, post approval monitoring, credit grading
management, and loan impairment assessment.
We adopted a risk-based sampling approach in our
tests of the allowances for impairment of trade and
bills receivables and loan receivables;

AR OB E RS EHRER  FEARERER
& FORE R f 77 E A B0 BSR4 B BV R G B AT
B - S APIRE & 2 e W R IA K =48 A W AE BORLE
Bma B SR A AR AER M TE

Selecting samples of performing loans considering
size, risk factors, industry trends for our tests on the
measurement of impairment;

ZEBEANND -ERAEER TEBBFRE  ER
BRAEROEARRAFRENE

Evaluating and testing the important parameters of
the expected credit loss model, management's
major judgements and related assumptions, mainly
focusing on the following aspects:
FERAREREEEERUNEZ2H  EHE
TEHE RAERRE  TBFTANIH

Assessing the rationality of the expected credit
loss model methodology and related
parameters, including historical loss rate, risk
exposure, and significant increase in credit
risk;

AEFAREERBREI AR EEZ R (BEE
AR Al REERRAEE N HEE
1

Assessing management's consideration of
forward-looking adjustment information when
determining expected credit losses, including
the use of macroeconomic information, the
judgement of adjustments, and the
reasonableness of reviews; and
AEEREERNETEMEEBBREAENR
ARENNZR (BRZBKEERNER
AENHERBRANGIENE) K
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FASEERXEIR (@)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HREXSBE MR REZXEE

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables (Continued)

B 2 TR K 1R T IE A5 5K e el (B 4 ()

The accounting policies, disclosures of the allowance for loan | Iv)  Assessing the adequacy of the Group's disclosure of
receivables and the related credit risk and impairment of the allowance for impairment of trade and bills
trade and bills receivables are included in notes 24, 3,20 and receivables and loan receivables and the related
25 to the consolidated financial statements. Eredit risk. N )
BHE T EOE R B AR B AR A R B 5 s S5 3 IR GOAR KRR
WO R E RN HERNGA SRR 245000 | DR PARMBEERARGREOLLE -

K250
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FASEEEIE (8)

Key audit matter
HRELSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

M ENEREREE

Provision for impairment of manufacturing and trading related i

RERESHBAFERER R

nventories

At 31 December 2024, the Group had manufacturing and
trading inventories of RMB4,911,827,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB291,995,000, which represented 8.4% of
the total assets. The provision for impairment mainly related
to certain obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We focused
on this area because these inventories were material to the
Group and the provision for impairment of inventories
invalved a high level of management's judgement and
estimate.

R2024F12 A3 BERENRENESFER/RARE
491,827,000 7T L HIERIBE BB AR K 201995000 7T - 15
BERBENSA% ZBEBRBIEENE TERLEHE
BIEE - RMEHBIZNERARZEFEEHR E5E
EXBEFERERBSLRSEEREHET MGG

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 22.

REFEPBHRERANBERBESENME24  3R2-

Our audit procedures included, among others:
B EZREFEE (BETRRY)

i) Evaluating, amongst others, the analyses and
assessments made by management with respect
to obsolete and slow-moving inventories, including
market values and expected selling prices of the
related inventories and the Group's future plan of
usage or sale;

HE(EREE ERERBR FHFEELN
DI REE  BREEEFENTEREHEE - A
K BEEENRREBRLEE

i)  Assessing the reliability of the underlying data used
by management in calculating the production
related inventory provisions such as the inventory
ageing reports, by re-performing the ageing
calculation generated by the system;
BENAEEASRELENFH (MEFEFHRE) - U
AEEEEANGTEEERBTERENHEBE
FHar st

i) Testing the accuracy of management's calculation

by assessing the calculation criteria and

recalculating the provision; and

MR ERERENEEE AR EREFE

BN R

Evaluating, based on a sample of production related
inventories, the analyses performed by
management regarding the net realisable values of
the production related inventories.
MERELEERABETE  UWIHEREEHEER
BEEAZ2IFENDN -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FASEERXEIR (@)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HREXSBE MR REZXEE
Valuation of investment properties
REYFIGE

At 31 December 2024, the Group had investment properties of
RMB9,335,283,000 which represented 16.0% of the total
assets and were measured at fair value. The valuation of the
investment properties was important to our audit as it
represented a significant judgement area and an important
part of the total assets of the Group. Management employed
independent qualified valuers to assess the fair value. The
valuation of the investment properties is highly dependent on
a range of estimates made by management.
R2024F12A31H EEENREMERARE
9,3352830007T * th & E#REM 0% W IR N A BEE -
HRREMELESRERHGFER EEEEERLED

ZHEMEY  MEZGEEHRMABEREEXN - ERERF
BYURGEBRNEEMTIEAABE REVERESE
RIEEIEEFH M — RIIEHRE -

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 24, 3 and 14.

RIFE M ERERANBBIEES NN E24 - 314 -

Our audit procedures included, among others:

BPMEZEF % (BETRR)

i) Considering the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the professional valuers;
ZRBXMEMOFTEN  BIERFEENE

il Assessing the appropriateness of the property
related data, which have been used as input for the
valuations;

AHEERGER ABEBNYEAREE ZEA T

i) Engaging our internal specialists to assist us in
analysing the valuations and challenging the
underlying assumptions, such as the
appropriateness of comparable lands under the
sales comparison approach and capitalisation rate
and market rent under the income capitalisation
approach; and
ZERMBER BB RM DT HE R EERBRARK -
PIangE & LLBOE T Al B LB Al s B A&
THERELEXRETSHENERE &

iv)  Focusing on the adequacy and appropriateness of
the disclosures relating to the valuations of these
investment properties.
HEINREFREMEFHERERENT RMEE

B -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsiblilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

EHMREEZGSMBRRRIBENET

BAWBER RHRAMBERREBREETIFAE
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's reportis Lee Mee Kwan, Helena.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

28 March 2025
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" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEREREBEERER

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 1V A3BILEFE

2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT  ARETE
REVENUE LN 5 27,026,490 30,868,289
Costof sales $HE P AR (19,733,192) (22,747.275)
Gross profit EH 7,293,298 8121014
Other revenue, income and gains HupgA - e & F) e 5 736,707 717,590
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HAX (1,600,688) (1572,851)
Administrative expenses TTHRS (1,624,526) (1,663,901
Impairment losses on financial and TRARANEENRE
contract assets &1 (546,695) (857,546)
Other expenses E i (1,287,355) (1294,948)
Finance costs BhE P AR 6 (951,335) (112,761)
Share of results of associates PaR (=) RN E 103,550 323,005
Share of results of joint ventures DIREELEEE 18 1,063 3667
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B AT R 7 2,124,019 2,664,169
Income tax expense I8 9 (486,002) (343,823)
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR FAREF 1,638,017 2,320,346
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit 2 mE WS
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently — HA A EHFEEIEZR
to profit or loss: MWIARE -
Debt instruments at fair value through BRAREBEFAEMEERZE
other comprehensive income: MWEBIA
Changes in fair value, net of tax NABEZE(FiEFE) - 1189
Share of other comprehensive income of DI E R B8
associates, net of tax Hh 2w (FigFe8) (1,882) 865
Exchange differences on translation of FrREINERREER
foreign operations M H 5 (671,848) 299,364
(683,730) 301418
ltems that will not be reclassified to profitor ~ TS EFRFEEES
loss: IER :
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan, R EEF &2 EFTEF) 25
net of tax (B1&58) 558 -
Changes in fair value of equity instruments BRAREBEFAREMEZEK S
at fair value through other comprehensive WRATAEN AR EBEZD
income, net of tax (F1g5%8) (97,320) (143,805)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREME2ME
FORTHE YEAR U &= (780,492) 157,613
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FR2HEKE
FORTHE YEAR LR 857,525 2477959
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEEnRAMEENRR

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A3BILFE

plop! 2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT
Profit attributable to: AT B R T
Owners of the Company PA/NCIEZ 2SN 1,683,900 2,368,062
Non-controlling interests FEFEHI RS (45,883) (47.716)
1,638,017 2,320,346
Total comprehensive income attributable to: - LA N B 2 UGS 425 -
Owners of the Company PA/NCIEZ 2SN 899,629 2499787
Non-controlling interests PR (42,104) (21,828)
857,525 2,477,959
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO A AQ R#EH AL
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY BRAER
Basic and diluted ERKEE L RMBO0.55 RMBO.77

AR®0557t AR¥O77TT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ZEMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2024
202412 A31H

2024

RMB'000
AR®T

2023
RMB0OO
ARBTIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BERZE 12 15,319,715 15,245,858
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13A 2,578,186 3,226,472
Investment properties KEME 14 9,335,283 088,888
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, BELH WX BEX

property, plant and equipment RGN EES 899,367 1375290
Goodwill EES 15A 467,19 540,085
Other intangible assets Hmmp&E 158 326,420 409,370
Interests in associates REE A AMER 7 5,309,098 4,864,524
Interests in joint ventures REETLENER 18 28,222 26,658
Other financial assets EtemEE 19 1,975,616 1045765
Loan receivables FEUL & 3R 20 1,851 12,392
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 21 1,659,729 1,679,083
Contract assets AHEE 24 40,928 4735
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE BE 33 672,469 661170
Total non-current assets EMBEERTE 38,614,003 30217270
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories "B 22 5,815,011 6,87.275
Properties from receivables settlement PREE N e ST E 0k ES 23 491,881 424,192
Contract assets BREE 24 317,552 275400
Other financial assets HpemEE 19 5,181 16,491
Loan receivables FEUL 5 3R 20 281,842 306,949
Trade and bills receivables B S EBGIE R EE 25 3,938,504 4,533,468
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  JBA 3R ~ & & H th fE U518 26 2,222,534 2186,240
Cash and bank deposits & RIBITFER 27 6,642,551 6,552984

19,715,056 20,482,999

Asset held for sale BIEHEEE 28 - 331,001
Total current assets MENE EHREE 19,715,056 20,814,000
CURRENT LIABILITIES B
Contract liabilities arma’ 24 2,560,202 3124568
Trade and bills payables B REMNFIEREE 29 8,685,107 8369185
Other payables and accruals EmEMRIE R ETE A 30 1,376,297 1605294
Tax payable FERTRLIR 340,588 501708
Borrowings BN 3 8,556,717 10,602,553
Lease liabilities HEAER 13B 62,774 129,412
Total current liabilities mEBEEE 21,581,685 24,512,720
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (1.866,629) (5698720
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE#ERRBHERS 36,747,374 35,518,550
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEMFIRAR

As at 31 December 2024
M2024F12 A 318

2024 2023
Note RMB'000 RMB000
B 5 AREBTRT  AREBTT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Borrowings BN 3 10,672,102 8,652,033
Lease liabilities HEAEG 13B 354,112 1221639
Other long-term payables Hfth = HAFE (N IE 4,84 5472
Provision for long-term employee benefits R HEE BN BB 32 6,508 6,908
Deferred tax liabilities FRIERIE B E 33 1,037,425 1,086,143
Deferred income PR AE IR 25 34 257,668 235277
Total non-current liabilities EME B ERRE 12,331,999 1207472
Net assets EEFHE 24,415,375 24,31,078
EQUITY e
Share capital N 35 135,344 135,344
Reserves {1 36 23,708,980 23,368139
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ &NQ R A A B 23,844,324 23503483
Non-controlling interests FEVESIE = 571,051 807,595
Total equity et R 24,415,375 24,311,078
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
EHE EEIE
Director Director
EE EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘l\éiﬁﬁ;ﬂtﬁg

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 1V A3BLEFE

2024
Note RMB’000
Bt E AR T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEE
Profit before tax: PR B A - 2,124,019 2664169
Adjustments for: FLA TS TR
Interest income ISR e 5 (169,750) (208,746)
Government grants released BB A B B (22,995) (32,875)
Fair value changes of investment properties & WE AR BEZ S 5 (24,616) (10,314)
Fair value changes of financial instruments R BEF ABIEN
at FVTPL TRITAMNARLEEES 5 (65,807) (84,998)
Gain on fair value changes of other financial ~ Htt&@ABEA R EBE
liabilities FHF = 5 - (5230)
Investment income " & e 5 (16,396) (19,179)
Gain on disposal/loss of control of HEWBARL KX
subsidiaries B /8 B I R P A5 Fll 25 5 (125,317) (9,708)
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets BIEEREEERS = 5 (25,524) (1953)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets PEFRBREEMSNZE 5 (773) (10,944)
Loss/(gain) on debt restructuring BEEBEAMRS
with customers BE (i) 7 6,538 (33,487)
Gain from bargain purchases BRGNS 5 (4,297) -
Interest expenses FERZ 6 951,335 112,761
Depreciation and amortisation HrE R 7 1,656,199 1,835,604
Write-down of inventories to net realisable MR T EZE 2R FE
value, net FRE 7 63,191 10713
Service cost included in defined benefitplan 5+ AR & Fl5T 81 &9 AR 5 A AN 7 846 851
Equity-settled share option expense VARR AN 30 2 B8 A B S 7 7,289 -
Loss on disposal of items of other intangible & E i 2 & E M %
assets and property, plant and equipment i & 2R T8 B Y ET A 7 42,753 17,981
Impairment of interests in associates MBS N BB RE 7 8,537 8,850
Impairment of property, plant and equipment #1358 #5 R (E 7 9,406 -
Impairment of properties from receivables F 458 AT S H)
settlement, net L/ERIEREE: 7 49,364 -
Impairment of asset held for sale FIELEEERE 7 58,844 -
Impairment of goodwill 2 RE 7 52,113 -
Impairment of loan receivables, net JE WS TR E F 58 7 15,984 1516
Impairment of long-term lease receivables REA & W IERE 7 91,622 -
Impairment of contract assets, net SHEERETFE 7 21,161 96,560
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net B 5 FE U B & Z 85 (B F 58 7 13,721 579,675
Impairment of prepayments, net B OB EF R 7 38 1907
Impairment of other receivables, net H fth fE Y R IE R (B F 58 7 4,207 179,795
Share of results of associates %TE WGBS (103,550) (323,905)
Share of results of joint ventures DhEEDEER 8 (1,063) (3667)
5,017,079 5765376
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets Z b I BN & 2 (38 10), 4 (189,083) 121,322
Decrease in inventories FERD 271,521 349,061
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets BHEE (M), R (62,506) 181877
Decrease in loan receivables UG £ SRR D 19,664 637,226
Increase in trade and bills receivables 5 WA KRS (1M,604) (470,457)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits  FET 3~ # 4 B E i & W K8
and other receivables (1&m),/w (74,548) 590,83
Decrease in contract liabilities EREaERD (562,690) (365,009)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 RN IE R ERIE M 442,248 336,551
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HMENFIARESE A
accruals R A) /1 (366,592) 47277
Decrease in provision for long-term RER BN BB
employee benefits N (1,038) -
Increase in deferred income iR FE W 2 12 0 45,386 24,025
Cash generated from operations REELANRS 4,427,837 7218986
Bank interest received BUER 1T B2 62,997 05,792
Corporate income tax paid BNEEMSEH (737,18) (613,310)
Net cash flows from operating activities CEESEHEEREFH 3,753,716 6,701,468
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ZEHERER

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE2024F 12 A3BILFE

Note

(=

INVESTING ACTIVITIES REES
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEME BELRSB

equipment BH (1,619,585) (3,754,047
Prepayment for other assets FENHEMEE (37,127) (26,052)
Proceeds from disposal of items of other B HES \ﬁﬁﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁfll%%

intangible assets and property, plant and MR E &R EIE B TS

equipment I8 436,087 510,513
Additions to right-of-use assets = A& =N (108,102) (433,313)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets 1 & {5 F3 & & & AT 15 U8 1,626 91579
Additions to investment properties LEYEEE N (323,1m) (352,572)
Proceeds from disposal of an investrent HEREMER

property I8 - 206,848
Additions to other intangible assets H b A& E LN (23,690) (22,458)
Additions to associates Ll /NETb= )i (183,442) (309,782)
Additions to joint ventures AR - (8,800)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W HEME A &) (15,605) -
Purchases of other financial assets HEEEMeRMEE (197,331) (2,477,960)
Proceeds from disposal of asset held for sale  HRE&EF1EH E B EMERE 256,890 -
Investment income received B U5 & Y ms 16,396 19179
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assetsih & H b & g & ZE 115 308 129,699 1,801,762
Disposal/loss of control of HEMBRRE,KREHMBAF

subsidiaries 2 o) (178,048) 49,991
Dividend received from associates B U B = N " AR B 119,640 130,086
Interest received from other financial assets 2 W HMM LRI EE T E 9,631 1,006
Decrease in restricted cash SR HI3R &R 4 1,488 220,078
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEBFARSREFE (1,714,584) (4,254,042)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
New bank borrowings raised I IRITIE N 16,598,659 1,590,519
Repayment of bank and other loans BEERBITREMER (16,823,514) (12,462,0M)
Return of investment % & B3 (1,060) (12,720)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests WS e FE 122 1) e 2 44(p) (19,678) (7,041)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEARE 44(p) (119,799) (193,280)
Interest paid BEASF B 44(b) (997,982) (1100,889)
Dividends paid to the owners of the Company B AR Tfﬁﬁ*ﬁ_/\ﬂ 5} 44(b) (560,751) (831903)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [EENES I 44(p) (1,031) (25471)
Net cash flows used in financing activities By E BB AT fﬁ/ﬂéu’ﬁiégﬁ (1,945,156) (3,042,796)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASHAND RERRSEEYEM (RD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS FE 93,976 (595,370)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNRE RRE

of the year ZEM 5,155,480 5735188
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SN B R B B R E (2,921) 15,662
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FERNWEESERS

OF YEAR ZEW 5,246,535 5155480
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRALEEYN

CASH EQUIVALENTS RN
Time deposits with original maturity of E BT R (R R R HARR

three months or less when acquired A= ALAT) 27 32,419 59102
Cash and bank balances Be MIBTHES 27 5,214,116 5,006,378

5,246,535 5155480
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M T

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

1.

T®

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The addresses of its registered office and
principal places of business are disclosed in the section headed
‘Corporate Information” of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars of
the Company's principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are set out in notes 45,17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’'s holding company is
New Fortune, a limited liability company incorporated in the BV,
and the ultimate holding company is Xi Xi Development, a limited
liability company incorporated in the BVI.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs') and
Interpretations) as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, other financial assets and
asset held for sale which have been measured at fair value,
These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recorded net current
liabilities of RMBI1,866,629,000, which were mainly resulted
from the reclassification of certain long-term interest-
bearing bank loans and syndicated loans ("‘Borrowings’)
totaling RMB3,459,775,000, which will be due for repayment
in the coming 12 months, as disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The Group is in the process of refinancing the above
Borrowings and has obtained sufficient facilities from certain
banks relating to the new bank loans. At the same time, it will
be able to continue to generate positive cash flows from its
operations before the Borrowings fall due. On this basis, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group is able to
meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
coming 12 months. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared by the directors of the
Company on a going concern basis.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2024,

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

0 the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(i) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

TR (@)

21

fm S E X ()
AEEERLMEFETERERD
B TRITMEGSEFRITEREHED
RARE - EUL R HSaEANE
REMATEBENEGEPELTLRS
Mme Bl ARREERR AKHE
BESA AR R 121 A A BUE 1T 2 B e Bt
BE% Bt KA BHRRALRD
RESRBEREEERE -

meEE
BEVMBREREEARBIREKHBA
RIEE2024F12 B3 H ILFEMNIH
Bk o

B 8~ B /3 AN B B Sk R R AR 1 Y
ER(EREBMLER) - BAKEK
XRFELEREHREBAFENA
o AREBBHKREHRNEN
(A TFTAKRERBENTEREY
SEEESNR TR FELZFH
R - RIES 2G4 -

R—RERTHFEES BIREETLK
ZHIEZHEE - MARBHEA PRK
BHRAZHOREALUHER - 7Y
AEERFEEESHRFHUREHR
MENER L8 UMHBFEERS
DI R

) HREHREBRRFEAD
BHIRYE

(i) HMEOTHMELNEN:

X

(i) AEEHRRERECREE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

21

®

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-
controlling interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve;
and recognises the fair value of any investment retained
and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss, The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. SEtBUE (@)

2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 ENBXRBEEZTEEE
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards for the first time for the current year's

AEERAFENGAMBERERAE
RERTIKERTBBM B REER

consolidated financial statements. gErER -
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and BEXEUBHmE SBERARCZEAE
Leaseback AR 1657 aE
BET AR
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as BEGRERN  ABESEARDR
Current or Non-current EE AN JERE ([2020 F
(the 2020 Amendments’) 1BETA])
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with BEGFTEN WEEEAERD
Covenants (the 2022 EAE AN BE([20224F
Amendments’) BETAD)
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance EAEGT LR HERRETH
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements FETRRES
B 755 R 5 2E R
ENE AR

The application of these revised HKFRS Accounting RAFEERZFLETEANBER

Standards in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

SRANGTHENHAEEAFE RS
EFENPBRER MR K L#T
RAGEMBHRRZBBEL EEME
REE -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRS Accounting Standards, that have been issued but
are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these new and
revised HKFRS Accounting Standards, if applicable, when
they become effective.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements?®
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures®

Amendmentsto HKFRS 9  Amendments to the

and HKFRS 7 Classification and
Measurement of Financial
Instruments?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Contracts Referencing Nature-
and HKFRS 7 dependent Electricity?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’
Amendments to HKFRS 1,

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10
and HKAS 72

Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume Tl

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2025
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2026
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

23

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRS
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRS Accounting
Standards upon initial application. So far, the Group
considers that other than as explained below regarding the
impact of HKFRS 18, these new and revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards may result in changes in accounting
policies but are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have been brought
forward from HKAS 1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18
introduces new requirements for presentation within the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
including specified totals and subtotals. Entities are required
to classify all income and expenses within the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income into one of
the five categories: operating, investing, financing, income
taxes and discontinued operations and to present two new
defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures about
management-defined performance measures in a single
note and introduces enhanced requirements on the
grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and the location
of information in both the primary financial statements and
the notes. Some requirements previously included in HKAS 1
are moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, which is renamed as
HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements. As a
consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited, but
widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share and
HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition, there are
minor consequential amendments to other HKFRS
Accounting Standards. HKFRS 18 and the consequential
amendments to other HKFRS Accounting Standards are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027 with earlier application permitted. Retrospective
application is required. The Group is currently analysing the
new requirements and assessing the impact of HKFRS 18 on
the presentation and disclosure of the Group's financial
statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&EMBmRMEE

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

i100)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is nat control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing contral.

The Group’s investments in associates and a joint venture
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associates or joint
ventures, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests
in the associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates or joint ventures,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHBR@E
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Business combinations and goodwill EREHREE

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input
and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&EMBmRMEE

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i102)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is,
after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group will perform its annual impairment test
of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units
or groups of units,

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating unitg) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain
or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. SEtBUE (@)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Fair value measurement DNREEZFE

The Group measures its investment properties, asset held
for sale and other financial assets at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic
bestinterest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&EMBmRMEE

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i104)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Levell — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level2 —  based on valuation technigues for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level3 —  based on valuation technigues for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurementis unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for non-financial asset is required (other
than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and
investment properties), the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHBR@E
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) FemEERE(E)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unitif it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024

2024F 12 A31H
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. BIEXR@
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESTEER @)
Related parties BB AL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: RTIMERT - BRAATBHERRBAE
SEEBEBAL
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that @ HEAMALKEBBRERS -
person’s family and that person imezs AL
() hascontrol or joint control of the Group; () sk ERESRNEE
(i)  hassignificantinfluence over the Group; or (i) BAEBASKEE
(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) AAEBEIAEEL QA
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; NFEFEEEEKE ;
or B
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b)) BEAATREBENS TIE
conditions applies: Al et
()  the entity and the Group are members of the ) ZEBEAEEER-—%
same group; BZKE :
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the () —HEBARE —EB (X
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow B —EREg L E W
subsidiary of the other entity); BRRIKRAZKEAR)

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iii)
same third party;

(i) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —HERBAF=-FE®BH

the other entity is an associate of the third entity; EETE mME—EER
ZE=ZHERNBENAF]

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for v ZERBABEBZESENE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or 2 ZEFENTEARKR
an entity related to the Group; SEYBRAEEFENE

BHES

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (Vi) ZESBH@ERALTE
person identified in (a); il ok 2k B4

(Vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant Vi) R (E))EMATHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BEEAFENBZES
key management personnel of the entity (or of a (IZERNBRA) EE
parent of the entity), and EBEKE &

(vii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it (Vi) ZEBXEFMBEENE
is a part, provides key management personnel Al 8 A Al A A K E AR
services to the Group or to the parent of the EEZEBRARRHREIEE
Group. BABRRT ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis and the
units of production basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Not depreciated

2.0% to 5.0%

9.5% to 20.0% or units of
production basis

Furniture, fixtures and office  9.5% to 32.3%
equipment
Vehicles 9.5% to 32.3%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20.0%

Leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i108)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the period the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a
property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at the
date of change in use.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 31H
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FFBR @)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EEGFBER @)
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale BEHEZEARHEEREEAR

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or disposal
group must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups
and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities
of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group are reclassified
as held for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a
non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets classified as held for
sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation methaod for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
ateach financial year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 5 years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&EMBmRMEE

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i110)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately.

Patents and proprietary technologies

Purchased patents and proprietary technologies acquired
are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 5 to 20 years.

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
with indefinite useful lives acquired are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are not amortised. The useful life
of such an asset should be reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite should be
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its
recoverable amount with its carrying amount (a) annually,
and (b) whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired.

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
with useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 5 to 30 years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship are stated at cost less any
impairment loss and are amortised on the straight-line basis
over their estimated useful life of 10 years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. SEtBUE (@)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESFEE @)
Leases HE

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-of-use
asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 10 to 50 years
Plants and buildings 1to 25 years
Vehicles Tto 5years
Other equipment Tto 5years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, and subsequently measured
at fair value, in accordance with the Group's policy for
‘Investment properties”.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

M2

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g. a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of plants and
buildings (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 maonths or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 31H
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEBUR @
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESTEHEX @
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
Group as a lessee (Continued) KEEERFATA ()
() Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets ) REHMEREKEEEEMNMEE
(Continued) (8&)

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease compaonents, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term
and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned,

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the lease payments and
related payments (including the initial direct costs), and
presented as a receivable at an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognised in profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease
terms.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

M4

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI), and fair
value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’'s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade and bills
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade and bills
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for "Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHBR@E
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued) RERHMWEMEE (8)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at FVTOCI are held
within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at FVTPL,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset,

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

16

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The remaining fair value changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognised in other comprehensive
income is recycled to profit or loss,

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of
equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
and are not held for trading. The classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity instruments designated at
FVTOCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
instruments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at FVTOCI. Dividends on the equity instruments are
also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. SEtBUE (@)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Derecognition of financial assets RILEASHREE

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e, removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial pasition) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability,
The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i118)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses ('ECLS') for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL,
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information. The Group considers that there has
been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 31H
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FEtER @)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EEZETEE®@®
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) tREERME (&)
General approach (Continued) —m 7% ()

For debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low credit risk
simplification. At each reporting date, the Group evaluates
whether the debt instruments are considered to have low
credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that
evaluation, the Group reassesses the external credit ratings
of the debt instruments. Debt instruments graded in the top
investment categories are considered to be low credit risk
investments. It is the Group's policy to measure ECLs on
such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of debt
instruments since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECL. The Group uses the ratings from credit
rating agencies both to determine whether the debt
instruments have significantly increased in credit risk and to
estimate ECLs.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade and bills
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
atan amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

BIRAREES AR BEEREAIE
Flﬂﬁm AEBEERESEERR
BE - RERESAH  AEEEA
FRABANE N VERALS HEIT
ESNAEXKEN FHEEBIA
EEARRREEEEERR - HHETT
FHER - AREEHFEEH TAN
SNEREERTAR - AR R TERIRE BRI
WEH TARRSBEEERRIKE -

AEENBRRARBEAREREGE
&t*ﬁlﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁféﬁﬁ o A - B
BEETANEER Q%étu%iﬁﬁ%

b1l Hﬁ%ﬁ"*ﬂlﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ{*%
BIEFHREE AEEBFEHAEETR
BENTARETESIANEER
BERBEILIMN FAEBRETED
ZEEIE -

REZSERHPLOANRERER
WS RMEE

BAREBEFAREMEEKENER
TARZBBEEKATIRN S REELE
—RITDETXBEFXE  UHAER
HMEEBERD RATREE  1ERRE
EIENE S RUBKARREMA L
BERIN  FBEWT -

—EER — BVREREEERRRE
Zigm BEHEBRBER
HER2EARREEERE
MERTENERTA

ZHE - BVRERAREERRBEE
ENETEEERESRE
EBEBBEREDZES
REEFEREHEERSE
MEETENSRTA

FoREBR - RBSEHAEERE (B
WHBEXREEERE)
BEBEREZESNE
BEFERRBEERRENS
B EMTREAE

Annual Report 2024
P 19




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i120)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant
financing companent, the Group chooses as its accounting
policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs
with policies as described above,

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings, payables,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings, lease liabilities and other
long-term payables.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHBR@E
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Financial liabilities (Continued) SRS (E)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group classifies financial liabilities that arise from a
supplier finance arrangement within trade and bills payables
in the consolidated statement of financial position if they
have a similar nature and function to trade payables. This is
the case if the supplier finance arrangement is part of the
working capital used in the Group’'s normal operating cycle,
the level of security provided is similar to trade payables and
the terms of the liabilities that are part of the supply chain
finance arrangement are not substantially different from the
terms of trade payables that are not part of the arrangement.
Cash flows related to liabilities arising from supplier finance
arrangements that are classified in trade and bills payables
in the consolidated statement of financial paosition are
included in operating activities in the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Otherwise, the financial liabilities
are classified in borrowings in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the related cash flows are included in
financing activities in the consalidated statement of cash
flows.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification is described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i122)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL are designated at the date of initial recognition and
only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and bills
payables, other payables and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and bills payables, other
payables, and interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(‘EIR") method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. SEtBUE (@)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Derivative financial instruments TEe¢mIA

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at FVTPL

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company ar the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value,

Manufacturing and trading inventories

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Property development

Cost comprises land costs, construction costs, borrowing
costs, professional fees and other costs directly attributable
to such properties incurred during the development period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i124)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
pasition comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within
three months that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group
expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for
example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement
is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net
of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type
warranties granted by the Group are initially recognised
based on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate. The warranty-related cost is revised annually.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. SEtBUE (@)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Income tax 8%

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability methaod, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except
that deferred tax is not recognised for the Pillar Two income
taxes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

31 December 2024
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i126)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that itis probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. TEHBR@E
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Income tax (Continued) g st (&)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the related
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed,
Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to profit or
loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments,

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i128)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one vyear, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a)  Saleof goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the
pointin time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

(b)  Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of
the service, because the Group's performance creates
or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the construction services.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Construction services (Continued)

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group
seeks to collect from the customers as reimbursement
of costs and margins for scope of works not included
in the original construction contract. Claims are
accounted for as variable consideration and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. The Group uses the expected
value method to estimate the amounts of claims
because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

Provision of sewage, hazardous waste treatment and
related environmental protection services

Revenue from the provision of sewage, hazardous
waste treatment and related environmental protection
services is recognised when the relevant services
have been rendered.

Provision of logistics and other related services
Revenue from the provision of logistics and other
related services is recognised over time, using an
output method to measure progress towards
complete satisfaction of the service, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the services transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining
services promised under the contract, that best depict
the Group's performance in transferring control of
services.
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2024412 A 31 H

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i130)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources
Income from financial services including:

() handling fee income from factoring services and
supply-chain financing services which is recognised
when the relevant services have been rendered;

(i) finance lease income which is recognised over the
period of lease, as further explained in the accounting
policy ‘Leases” above; and

(i) interest income which is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method as explained
below.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Otherincome

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. SEtBUE (@)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Contract assets EHEE

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the contract terms, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.
Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment,
details of which are included in the accounting palicies for
impairment of financial assets. They are reclassified to trade
receivables when the right to the consideration becomes
unconditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services,
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (ie, transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group’'s employees participate in various defined
contribution plans and state-management retirement
benefit plans in the countries in which the Group operates.
Payments to these plans, where the Group's obligations
under them are equivalent to a defined contribution plan,
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Housing benefits, medical insurances and other social
insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate in
various government-supervised housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurance plans. The Group
contributes to these funds based on certain percentages of
the salaries of these employees on a monthly basis. The
Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contribution payable in each period. Contributions to the
housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances are expensed as incurred.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

132

2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which
requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund. The benefits are unfunded. The cost of
providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit actuarial
valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension
plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability) and the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in
the consolidated statement of financial position with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained profits through
other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the
earlier of:

the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation under "Cost of sales” and "Administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss by
function:

service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and

non-routine settlements; and

netinterest expense or income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024

2024512 A3 8
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. EETER @
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESTBER (#)
Employee benefits (Continued) EEREF (4)
Share-based payments KR REEEZ T

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award scheme. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services in exchange for equity
instruments (‘equity-settled transactions’).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest The charge or credit to profit or loss
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but
without an associated service requirement, are considered
to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

ARBRA —BRBAETE R —ERK
DR E - AREEER (BRES)
PARS A7 70 E B ) S5 7 U MR S B
e 8 AR R AMEBBEAT A
(TABRARNRZS]) -

ABRAN AR ZORATIRBEREEE
B RAREEFSE -

PABCASAS 3R 22 5 B PR 7 52 [R) AR B M
BB N AR R IR RS R S A 1 B
ERERMNAX AR - REHmEH
AR ANHZ BB R -
EERERRAL RREBHER
BB DA B AN R 1B S A 4K S B BB ) R R
TAHENRER - BRERSEH
FRERARO S BIENT LR ER
REFAXHES -

BEERBRELBHOAEER
TeZERERIFTHEREGS 2
S EERZ TR  (FR
AEEHEERERENRATAHE
B R EGE o MIBERBIGMFRRRE
HEMOAREER - REPHMSE
b 45 A8 B Al 795 22 Sl ) AT o) L A R 1 4R
RIEF BRI - BRIEBRB KK
BRI - B RIIRER B IR AR 228
B RSEER - A5 RAES S 85 2R -

Annual Report 2024
ww (133




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i134)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been madified, if the ariginal terms of the award are met.
In addition, an expense is recognised for any modification
that increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the contral of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.
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2024412 A 318
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. SEtBUE (@)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 24 EESHHE @)
Borrowing costs BERAE

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, ie, assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
barrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for thelr intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds,

Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the reporting period,
but prior to the date of authorisation for issue, about
conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, it
will assess whether the information affects the amounts
that it recognises in its financial statements. The Group will
adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements to
reflect any adjusting events after the reporting period and
update the disclosures that relate to those conditions in light
of the new information. For non-adjusting events after the
reporting period, the Group will not change the amounts
recognised in its financial statements, but will disclose the
nature of the non-adjusting events and an estimate of their
financial effects, or a statement that such an estimate
cannot be made, if applicable.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted
from equity when they are declared and approved by the
Company's shareholders in general meetings. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are
declared and approved, and no longer at the discretion of
the Company.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i136)

Foreign currencies

The Company's functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
while the Company’'s presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements is Renminbi. In preparing
the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2024412 A 31H

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into Renminbi using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of the
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&EMBmRMEE

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

3.

i138)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

JUDGEMENTS

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on certain
profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated and
distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and such temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

I these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
considered to be repatriated and distributed by way of dividends,
the deferred income tax charge and deferred income tax liability
would have increased by the same amount of approximately
RMB501,790,000 (2023: RMB388,914,000).

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less than
a majority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls WIIK Public Company Limited
even though it owns less than 50% of the voting rights. This is
because the Group is the single largest shareholder of WIIK Public
Company Limited with a 47.75% equity interest. The remaining
5225% of the equity interest in WIIK Public Company Limited are
dispersedly held by many other shareholders. Since the date of
acquisition, there has been no history of the other shareholders
collaborating to exercise their votes collectively or to outvote the
Group.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning
strategies.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

The Group has tax losses of RMB2,051,475,000 (2023:
RMB1,589,389,000) carried forward. These losses related to
subsidiaries that have a history of losses, have not expired, and
may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group.
The subsidiaries have neither any taxable temporary difference
nar any tax planning opportunities available that could partly
support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On
this basis, the Group has determined that it cannot recognise
deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

If the Group had been able to recognise all unrecognised deferred
tax assets, the profit and equity would have increased by
RMB407,371,000 (2023: RMB310,526,000). Further details on
deferred taxes are disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements,

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill, brand name and trademark and
operating concession rights

The Group determines whether goodwill, brand name and
trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill, brand name and trademark and operating
concession rights are allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimation of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amounts of goodwill, brand name and trademark and operating
concession rights were RMB467,19,000 (2023: RMB540,085,000),
RMB92,041,000 (2023 RMB90,261,000) and RMBT1,615,000 (2023
RMBT1,615,000), respectively. Further details are disclosed in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECLs for contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables

The Group reviews the credit risk in relation to contract assets,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and loan receivables,
For balances in relation to individual customers which bear
specific credit risk depending on the repayment history, financial
position and other external or internal information, management
estimates the amounts recoverable from the financial assets
taking into account any credit enhancement held by the Group
and recognise provision against the difference between the gross
balance and the amount recoverable.

Apart from the balances in relation to individual customers which
bear specific credit risk, the Group uses a provision matrix to
calculate ECLs for other contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables. The provision
rates are based on the invoice date for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit and other forms of creditinsurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the carrelation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer's actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's loan receivables, contract assets, trade and bills
receivables and other receivables is disclosed in notes 20, 24, 25
and 26 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Group reviews the ageing analysis of its inventories at the end
of each reporting period, and makes pravision for obsolete and
slow moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use or sale. Management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. At the end of the reporting period, an
accumulated provision for obsolescence of RMB291,995,000
(2023 RMB260,098,000) has been recognised for inventories.

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, management determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) independent valuations; (i) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition and location
(or subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences; (iii) recent prices of similar properties in
less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of transactions that
occurred at those prices; and (iv) discounted cash flow projections,
based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market rates for
similar properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the
uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.

Details of the judgement and assumptions invalved in
determining the fair value of the Group's investment properties
have been disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate ('1BR’)
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay’,
which requires estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary's functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR
using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
building materials and home improvement products, sale of
products and provision of services relating to new energy
business, the provision of renovation and installation works,
environmental engineering and other related services, logistics
and other related services, financial services and property rental
and other related services. For management purposes, the
Group's businesses are organised by geographical areas based
on the location of the customers and assets are attributable to the
geographical unit based on the location of the assets. The Group
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

() Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian

Province and Hainan Province;

(i) Other than Southern China, including regions in China other
than Southern China; and

(i) Qutside China.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax
except that interest income, changes in fair value of investment
properties, changes in fair value of financial instruments at FVTPL,
changes in fair value of other financial liabilities, investment
income, gain on disposal/loss of control of subsidiaries, gain on
termination of right-of-use assets, gain on disposal of right-of-use
assets, (loss)/gain on debt restructuring with customers, gain from
bargain purchases, exchange differences, non-lease-related
finance costs, share of results of associates and joint ventures
and other unallocated income and expenses are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, interests in joint
ventures, other financial assets, deferred tax assets, cash and
bank deposits, asset held for sale and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived from its
operations in China and outside China.

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no revenue
from transactions with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's total revenue.
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4.

@

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

4.

EESBER @)
BZE2024F 123 HLEFENRKE
2 BER

Southern Other than Outside
China  Southern China China Eliminations Consolidated
E 1) ZEH HEHS o &R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T T AR®ET T AR¥TR ARBT T AR%T T
Segment revenue ABYA
Sale of goods relating to building BENRELBRBN
materials and home improvement business EmiHeE 1,671,557 11,595,827 1,497,896 - 24,765,280
Sale of goods and services income relating to ﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁ L)
new energy business RIEE kRIS Y 55,341 139,932 27,862 - 223,135
Contract revenue from renovation and installation works z%f@&;zéﬁi FILON 502,313 370,823 49,641 - 922,777
Income from environmental RETRREMEERY
engineering and other related services s 118,996 131,674 26,553 = 271,223
Logistics and other related services i R E B RS 33,225 89,987 537,120 - 660,332
Financial service income SRRBEYE 7,559 8,486 - - 16,045
Property rental and other related services NEBERHMABRY 14,810 - 146,888 - 161,698
Revenue from external customers INEP A 12,403,801 12,336,729 2,285,960 - 27,026,490
Intersegment revenue AHEBA 946,895 1,100,961 676,703 (2,724,559) -
Total segment revenue EILON X 13,350,696 13,437,690 2,962,663 (2,724,559) 27,026,490
Segment results PEEE 3,538,897 3,210,500 571,052 (27151) 7,293,298
Reconciliation: Hik
Interest income FEkE 169,750
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties BEMENR BEEZDHEHNE 24,616
Gain on fair value changes of financial ROABEFAERNSRIAN
instruments at FVTPL RABEZHMEFE 65,807
Investment income REWE 16,396
Gain on disposal/loss of control of HEHBAF,/ XENBAF
subsidiaries EHIERETR 125,317
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets BILEREEEMENE 25,524
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HERBREEMGRE 73
Loss on debt restructuring with customers RPEBEEREER (6,538)
Gain from bargain purchases FHBEUREBEAET R 4,297
Exchange gain E3 R 63,115
Finance costs (other than interest on lease liabilities) BERA(REREFBKRMN) (924,91)
Share of results of associates PEBERREE 103,550
Share of results of joint ventures SEAENEER 1,063
Unallocated income and expenses ROBKE RS (4,838,038)
Profit before tax BRBLATE R 2,124,019
Segment assets ABEE 25,707,638 7,113,717 10,274,567 - 43,695,922
Reconciliation: 4k :
Interests in associates REEE D AN RS 5,309,098
Interests in joint ventures RELLEMER 28,222
Other financial assets HitemEE 1,980,797
Deferred tax assets EREREEE 672,469
Cash and bank deposits Re RBAFER 6,642,551
Total assets EERE 58,329,059
Other segment information HitABER
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value, net WRATEZIERFETE 7,357 (8,092) (74) - 63,191
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 1,091,400 434,386 130,413 - 1,656,199
Impairment of praperty, plant, and equipment nE BERRERE - 7,523 1883 - 9,406
Impairment of asset held for sale ﬁf‘ﬂt‘%ﬁﬁmﬁ - - 58,844 = 58,844
Impairment of properties from receivables settlement, net BERWFRENNFREFE 42,042 7,322 - - 49,364
Impairment of goodwill ﬁ%zﬁ@ 52,113 - - - 52113
Impairment of loan receivables, net [ E SR EFE 15,984 - - - 15,984
Impairment of long-term lease receivables KBRS RYIERE 91,622 - - - 91,622
Impairment of contract assets, net ANEERETF 21,092 - 69 - 21,161
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net BHRIFERZ BRI ERE 312,795 42,561 58,365 - 413,721
Impairment of prepayments, net BRFREEFE - 38 - - 38
Impairment of other receivables, net H EUGURREFE 3,425 (5) 787 - 4,207
Capital expenditure* BARX% 1,661,664 524,161 745,897 = 2,931,722
“ Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, ! BARAXRERENR  BERRE AR

right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets, among
which the additions resulted from business combination amounted to

RMB53,951,000.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

4.

BEDHBEFR (&)
BZE2023512A83IBLEENKEE
o EE R

Southern Other than Outside
China  Southern China China Eliminations Consolidated
E 1) ZEH HEHS i &R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETT
Segment revenue ABYA
Sale of goods relating to building HENREEBRBNER
materials and home improvement business HE 12496150 12788513 1231454 - 26,516,117
Sale of goods and services income relating to SRR AR RN
new energy business ERHERRERE 200146 805683 51492 - 1057321
Contract revenue from renovation and installation works — EERZETRRZEHKA 081264 417,769 73797 - 1472830
Income from environmental RETRREMERRYE
engineering and other related services Yega 17,310 179425 89855 - 386591
Logistics and other related services i R E B RS 230328 4773 068888 - 1240989
Financial service income SRRB R 37473 2393 - - 39,866
Property rental and other related services NEBEREMABRS 16385 818 137372 - 154575
Revenue from external customers INEFWA 14,079,057 14236374 2552858 - 30868289
Intersegment revenue AHERA 1467779 1248029 501631 (3308,339) -
Total segment revenue PRI T 15546836 15485303 3144489 (308339 30868289
Segment results PEEE 3818959 3600939 689192 10924 8121014
Reconciliation: Hik
Interestincome TR 208746
Gain on fair value changes of investment properties REMELABEZDN G 10314
Gain on fair value changes of financial BAABEFARENERIAN
instruments at FVTPL RAEEZPFE 84,008
Gain on fair value changes of other financial liabllities HttemBEALBEZHF G 5230
Gain on debt restructuring with customers RPEBEAMENS 33487
Investment income RE Mz 19179
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LENBRARAMEHE 9708
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets BIERBREERENSR 1953
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEERBEERGHE 10944
Exchange loss EREE (1770)
Finance costs (other than interest on lease liabilities) BEKA (RERERSHRN) (1045410)
Share of results of associates PEHERAEE 323005
Share of results of joint ventures MeRELEER 3667
Unallocated income and expenses FARBRRAX (5121796)
Profit before tax R A& T 2664169
Segment assets IREE 27436368 8030959 10165350 - 45632877
Reconciliation: i
Interests in associates N d=UNGok 5 4864524
Interests in joint ventures REBLEMER 26,858
Other financial assets HitemeE 1062256
Deferred tax assets ERBEEE 661170
Cash and bank deposits B RBITER 6552984
Assetheld for sale RIEHEEE 331,001
Total assets BELE 60,031270
Other segment information HitABER
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value, net WAFEZAERIETFE 27535 6422 (23244) - 10713
Depreciation and amortization wEREH 1261782 396976 176,846 - 1835604
Impairment of loan receivables, net e R E % 1516 - - - 1516
Impairment of contract assets, net ANEEREBTE 06,707 - (147) - 06,560
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net BHRIGUERZRREFE 550946 2302 5708 - 579,675
Impairment of prepayments, net BRFREFE 2514 - (607) - 1007
Impairment of other receivables, net Hth BB EF 177300 4 2491 - 179795
Capital expenditure” BARX" 4790135 610,889 508413 - 5090437
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, # BARAZBERNEME BELRSZH EHEE

right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets. No
addition was resulted from business combination.

E -REVMERHAMENEE - HEAEE A6

mEEEMRE ©
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. W~ EHab - Wik R Fl2
GAINS
REVENUE A
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from NTEHIAEEREEF A HNKRADF
contracts with customers and the reconciliation of the revenue EREEFAHMNKRASRSZBERFTIEE
from contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the SEERE R ¢

segmentinformation:
By revenue nature: RIEAMEE S

2024
Goods
transferred Services
atapoint transferred

intime over time Total intime over time Total
RE-KE BREER RE—RE  REREER
BENER EIZNERE A EEOER EHERNRB

'

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE AR¥TRT AR¥TR

Revenue from contracts with REEFEEHN
customers A
Sale of goods relating to building HENREER

12 0

materials and home improvement A E &

business #HE 24,765,280 - 24,765,280 26,516)17 - 26,516)17
Sale of goods and servicesincome  E2#T AL IR £ HERAEY
relating to new energy business EmHE RRBN R 223,135 - 223,135 1041413 15908 1057,321
Contractrevenue fromrenovation  #BREEIREH
and installation warks A = 922,777 922,777 - 1472830 1472830
Income from environmental BREIRREM
engineering and other related HER%
services Wz = 277,223 277,223 - 386,501 386,501
Logistics and other related services ¥ R A A A8 AR5 - 660,332 660,332 - 1240989 1240989
24,988,415 1,860,332 26,848,747 27557530 3116318 30673848
Financial service income SRRBRS 16,045 30,866
Property rental and other related MERE R E MR
services R#% 161,698 154575
27,026,490 30,868,289
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2024412 A 318

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. g -~ HaUg N - s B F S ()
GAINS (Continued)
REVENUE (Continued) WA (&)
By geographical locations: BB EE D

2024

Goods
transferred Services
atapoint transferred

intime over time Total intime Total
RE-—RH HEREER o REREER
BENEm BEENERE ‘st = m EEORB
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%Tr AR¥Tx

Revenue from contracts RERFAAH
with customers WA
China e 23,462,657 1,247,018 24,709,675 26274585 1983777 28258362
Outside China B3R SN 1,525,758 613,314 2,139,072 1282945 1132541 2415486
24,988,415 1,860,332 26,848,747 27557530 316318 30673848
Financial service income SRRBK R 16,045 30,866
Property rental and other MEREREM
related services HERS 161,698 154575
27,026,490 30,868,289
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TRIVRA AR E AARERN®E R
the current reporting period that were included in the contract ABRBaBEERRBERBBOETMER
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised B A -

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ARETT
Revenue recognised that was included in R E BV AE L
contract liabilities at the beginning of BENDER
the reporting period: A
Sale of goods HEEm 2,966,563 3337562
Contract revenue from renovation and RERTETRR
installation works EHBA 37,495 39,841
Logistics and other related services Yo R E At 48 78 AR 75 7142 10478

3,01,200 3,387,881
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)
REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is generally due within 30 to 360 days from delivery
or is settled on an advance receipt basis depending on the market
conditions, market tactics and relationships with the customers.

Renovation, installation and engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the
date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained by
customers until the end of the retention period as the Group's
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the satisfaction
of the service quality by the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts.

Logistics and other related services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days upon
completion of services or is settled on an advance receipt basis
depending on the relationships with the customers.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

WA - HAU - Wrds R Fl 3 (48)

WA (@)
BHEE
ERAKEENEENEMBRAT -

#HE Han

AEERRXERETEL MHR—RER
ERI0E3B0RAENEH - R FHmR T
R NEEPHNBERRBWTAGEE -

g KL TIERY

J& %) B AL BE 1R S AR 75 M BE RS R HERE FB 7T
BNR-—RREEARIORAZE - 8P
RE-—FEBEOLNNFEEREHER
TR A B RS &N RN AR F R
EPRANREN —BREHANERBESR
RNMBRTTAIEE »

Y R E 16 B AR 7

BB EEZRERGHOESEERET
BB IRTS AR IE 30 XA 2 HI AR
FHEREFPHWBERRBERIAEE -

5

i R NEERTENEECRETT
HED KRBT R ZEERNSBAOT ¢

H
=

o

2024
RMB’'000

2023
RMB0OO
ARBT T

AR®TR

Amounts expected to be recognised as 8 A 8 T 5R A M A B
revenue: ok
Not more than 1year E2NEES 701,132 545,706
Over 1year 1A E 290,968 252,444
992,100 798150

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
over one year relate to renovation, installation and engineering
services. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised not more than one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is constrained.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024F 12 A31H
5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. U - HfUe - Wi R FZE (@)
GAINS (Continued)
OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND GAINS Hpg A -~ s KRRz
2024 2023
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B = ARBTR ARETE
Bank interestincome SRITH B = 54,705 05,902
Interest income from other loan receivables £ f& 47 15 X B9 71| B Uk 25 21,972 24,881
Interest income from other financial assets  H b & B & E & FI B Wz 9,844 1787
Interest income from long-term lease KA E EWRIBAF S
receivables U 25 83,229 86,176
Total interest income MEWR4REE 169,750 208,746
Government grants and subsidies B 488 Bh K2 #5 B 163,251 209,978
Gain on fair value changes of REWMELNABEED
investment properties il 14 24,616 10,314
Gain on fair value changes of BRARBEFABZNSH
financial instruments at FVTPL TENAABEZSNE 65,807 84,998
Gain on fair value changes of other HEtmemaBEAnBEEZD
financial liabilities kR - 5230
Investmentincome & & Wax 16,396 19,179
Gain on disposal/loss of control of EEHB AR, KENE
subsidiaries N EVEFIREFTS M & 125,317 9,708
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets 4 IEfEFAEE ERE = 13C 25,524 1953
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEEAREEMSNE 13C 773 10,944
Gain on debt restructuring with customers & P EBEAASEF &= - 33,487
Gain from bargain purchases EEBEWEMRENR 4,297 -
Rentalincome HE K= 13 1,239 9,901
Exchange gain M W & 63,115 -
Others Hith 66,622 13152
736,707 717,590
Government grants and subsidies mainly represent funding IR T 48 Bh & 6 B £ BT AR IR T DA
received from government authorities to support certain of the IEASEETHRIINES  WEMR
Group's research and development activities, There are no fa] B2 52 55 48 B S #70 Bh B 9 B0 ARG AR IR 1 S
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants and HHBER -
subsidies.
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31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RIERAE
2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARBTT

AR®TR

Interest expenses on bank and other loans HRITREMERANEFAZ 1,031,264 1159132
Interest expenses on lease liabilities (note 138) T E B EHF B 5 X (K 3E13B) 26,424 67,351
1,057,688 1226,483

Less: Interest capitalised B BAREF B (106,353) M3,722)
951,335 12,761

R Bt A i F

AEBEORBADERNIDERR GEA) T
S B TRIRER

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7.

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold relating to
building materials and home
improvement business

Cost of goods and services relating
to new energy business

Direct cost of renovation and
installation works

B 5K R TS AR Y
EERFE
DN

EFEEREFRENER R

AR5 AR AN
RERZRTIEAER
A

Direct cost of environmental engineering 383 T12 & & th 878 AR 75

and other related services
Direct cost of logistics and other
related services
Direct cost of financial services
Direct cost of property rental and
other related services
Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value, net

Depreciation of property,

plantand equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets

Total depreciation and amortisation

Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities

Auditor's remuneration

Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ remuneration (note 8)):

Wages and salaries

Pension scheme contributions (note)

Staff welfare and other expenses

Equity-settled share option expense

Service cost included in defined
benefit plan

150 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA

B

W B E At 48 R AR 7%
BHEMA

T B AR TS E IR AR
YR E M E A B AR
BEAA
WREFEER #IRF
(I=E0E

E
E
EREEENE
Hfth 1 E B B 5

TEREHAR

TEEGCEHEREESR
ORI N P
% B B &
BEERNFAX (BEES
B (B5E8))
TERFE
RIREE B (BEE)
B THaM R E AR
AR AR AN 38 2 8 B 7 52
st ASER M E B A AR
DN

Note

B &E

12
13A
15B

13C

37

32

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
AR®TRT AR®TET
17,837,463 19,156,399
283,491 967,265
728,73 1260,023
200,101 262,940
557,964 101,486
4,833 1831
57,436 66,618
63,191 10,713
1,446,391 1568,024
154,351 218,637
55,457 48,943
1,656,199 1835604
54,861 37472
9,961 9,797
2,007,745 2136297
252,980 216,066
80,156 87223
7,289 -
846 851
2,349,016 2440437
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

7.

Research and development costs
Loss on disposal of items of

other intangible assets and property,

plantand equipment

Changes in fair value of investment
properties

Gain on fair value changes of financial
instruments at FVTPL

Gain on fair value changes of
other financial liabilities

Gain on disposal/loss of control of
subsidiaries

Gain from bargain purchases

Gain on termination of
right-of-use assets

Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets

Loss/(gain) on debt restructuring with
customers

Impairment of interest in associates

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment of properties from
receivables settlement, net

Impairment of asset held for sale

Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of loan receivables, net

Impairment of long-term lease
receivables

Impairment of contract assets, net

Impairment of trade and bills
receivables, net

Impairment of prepayments, net

Impairment of other receivables, net

Foreign exchange differences, net

W R A

HERMETLEEMDE -

B R S
518
8 LEYN
28

BARBEFABRENERTA

B2 EEE BT
U T VNN LT
Fas

HEMBAR KEHBAR

2SN =
EEWBAEN S
RIEFERREEMS
GilEa
hEFREEEMSH TS
EFEBEMAMSG
BB (F5)
R & R R EHE s R (E
ME - BEMEE
B
R 4 B e Wk P S 9
Y I RI=PES
FEHLEEERE
EE R E
JRE UK £ SRR (B 3 B
RHEIEE YRR
R
BHEEREFER
EE YL C/OIES
IR
TEN BORE 3 5]
H b 8 W R TR (B3 RR
PE 3 EOFEE

B ¥t Ao i F ()
2024 2023
Note RMB'000 RMB000
e AR® T ARET T
1,043,594 1237708
42,753 17,081
14 (24,616) (10,314)
(65,807) (84,008)
- (5.230)
(125,317) (9,708)
(4,297) -
13C (25,524) (1,953)
13C (773) (10,944)
6,538 (33487)
8,537 8,850
12 9,406 -
49,364 -
58,844 -
15A 52,113 -
15,984 1516
21 91,622 -
24 21,161 96,560
25 413,721 579,675
38 1907
4,207 179,795
(63,115) 1770

Note: There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions (2023 Nil).

MYEE « 2N 5 30 4 1F 0B 5 AT A AR IR AR SR AR
WA KT (20234 « ) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHmRMEE
31 December 2024
2024412 A3 H
8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION ANDFIVEHIGHEST 8. ESHMMRAZREFHMES
PAID EMPLOYEES
(A) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (A) EE=FH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to R EAB LR R R BB R FHEDI#
the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies BNFANESHMEHTIWT -

Ordinance, is as follows:

plopli! 2023

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETx  ARBTIT

Fees we 23,462 24,259
Other emoluments: B -

Salaries, allowances and benefitsinkind %4 « 2RI R EWMEF] 2,738 2,348

Performance related bonuses B EE - -

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHE K 224 232

2,962 2,580

26,424 26,839
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31 December 2024
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONANDFIVEHIGHEST 8. EEFIRAZREFNES @)
PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEEH @)
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out below: ZEEMEMNEINOT

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
inkind bonuses contributions Total

e RER Bk
i L LR Bu%ks g L)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARBTR  AR%T:R

Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei EWERE 237 - - 16 2,387
Mr. Zuo Manlun TReEE 5,469 - - 36 5,505
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping rRETT 2,3 - - 16 2,387
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BEREL 237 - - 33 2,404
Mr,Kong Zhaocong kB E 2,37 - - 33 2,404
Mr.Chen Guonan RE®LE 237 - - 16 2,387
Dr. Lin Shaoguan HP2ET - 2,373 - 7 2,390
Mr. Huang Guirong ® BEREEN 547 - - 25 572
Mr,Luo Jianfeng Brlss 2,3 - - 16 2,387
Dr. Song Keming ¥ REBFELY 1,580 365 - 16 1,961
21,822 2,738 = 224 24,784
Independent non-executive BUFHA
directors: Bz
Dr. Tao Zhigang BERET 328 - - - 328
Mr. Cheng Dickson Pmmit 328 - - - 328
Ms. Lu Jiandong ARRLT 328 - - - 328
Ms. Lee Vanessa FEBRL 328 - - - 328
Dr.Hong Ruijiang I BT 328 - - - 328
1,640 = = = 1,640
23,462 2738 - 24 26,424
Note: B 5T
@ Retired as director with effect from 24 May 2024 @ H2024F5 A24 A EBHTEEHT
®) Appointed as director with effect from 24 May 2024 ) H2024F5 A2 BREEXTAES

Annual Report 2024
aw (153




e ————————————d]

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONANDFIVEHIGHEST 8. EEFIRAZREFNES @)
PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) E=HE @)
Salaries
Performanc
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions
B’HE
e BENES ERiES s8I0 it
RMB0OO s 0 RMB0OO RMB0O0O
ARETT BTr ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BBELE 2341 - - 1 2357
Mr.Zuo Manlun ERfREE 5407 - - 36 5443
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping LS 2,341 - - 16 2,357
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BERELE 2341 - - 3 2,373
Mr.Kong Zhaocong HLkBEESE 2,341 - - 32 2373
Mr.Chen Guonan RREIREE 2341 - - 7 2358
Dr. Lin Shaoquan mH2EL - 2,348 - 15 2,363
Mr. Huang Guirong BERELE 2,341 - - 34 2375
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRELE 2,341 - - 16 2,357
Mr.Lin Dewel HEEEE 845 - - 18 863
22639 2348 - 23 25719
Independent non-executive B FEHT
directors: s
Mr, Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan EX eSS 7 - - - 7
Ms. Lan Fang Brat 7 - - - 7
Dr. Tao Zhigang M SRl EL 324 - - - 324
Mr. Cheng Dickson L b 324 - - - 304
Ms, Lu Jiandong BERLL 324 - - - 324
Ms Lee Vanessa FRERL 207 - - - 207
Dr. Hong Ruijiang I L 207 - - - 207
1620 - - - 1620
24,259 2,348 - 232 26,839
No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument and MESEENEIREREEAME -
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as i 2N 5% [ 7T 8 7% S b N BR AN &R E sl A
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as MBREERNERBEBAEENRE
compensation for loss of office. EXMEMBE o
There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the FAMECNNEMNBLIFERNTES
independent non-executive directors during the year (2023; BV R E A B & (2023 4F : &) o
Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST 8.
PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(B) FIVEHIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The Group's five highest paid employees during the year
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above.

EEFHNRALZRESHMES (@)

(B) ZEmEFMES
FR AEELEESHMERSS
B EHBFBEEN EXHESM) °

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. Fi¥sHMAX
plopZi! 2023
Note RMB’000 RMB'0O00O
M ARE T ARET T
Current tax BN ERF IR

PRC H 567,567 747002
Hong Kong B 1,897 451
Other jurisdictions Hir AR 45,144 62,279
614,608 813,432

(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFECRBERE) BETE
PRC H (46,369) (41252)
Hong Kong BB (175) (2,347)
Other jurisdictions Hith 7] A HE (R 1,698 64
(44,846) (43,535)
Deferred tax EIERIE 33 (83,760) (426,074)
Total tax charge for the year FABIEL L4 486,002 343,823

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 18.50%
(2023:16.50%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which
is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The first HK$2,000,000 (2023: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 825% (2023: 825%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at16.50% (2023:16.50%).

AEBEERAEBRE RN R IEE
PrEMREERMELSMESEMNRE
BEELMPAEN -

ERANEH
EAFSHERFNREBEENGTE
R % A H916.50% (2023 4 1 1650% ) 5T 1R
B HALEE-HHBRRATAMR
FIFEREHENEERIN - ZWBE QA
2,000,000 7T (20234 : 2,000,000
TT) B JE RR A 5% R4k 8.25% (2023 4F + 825%)
BR R H R R BRI IR16.50%
(20234 : 1650%) KT RS o
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2024412 A 31 H

i156)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax provision in respect of its operations in
China has been calculated at the applicable tax rates on the
taxable profits for both years, based on the existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof,

Certain of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are qualified as High and
New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 1500% during both years,

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group's tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has been
calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, income tax of other
jurisdictions mainly arose from United States for the Group's
operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, income tax of other
jurisdictions mainly arose from Canada for the Group's disposal of
investment properties.
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FiiSBiRXZ (@)

FELERER
AEBUEBREA LR REREMNAE
% RRE G M R BOR FIRE AR R
SHE B IS TSR R

AEBETHEMBRARRNMEFES T
B ERMEEER  JF1500%HNEED
XFEHE -

Hib B EENFREHE
AEEGE M RDAER B AR EDRE
AEEEERGAENRAERRITED
MEMABR R
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory tax rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of
the Company’'s subsidiaries are domiciled and/or operate to the
tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

9. FiEBiEX @)

RAARRR RO M E R R ER S
BRTE RA R IR OE E R E A E B R R
AT F e R IR R X IR B R R R E
MBS MEERIT

plop! 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETE
Profit before tax B B A& 2,124,019 2,664,169
Taxat the PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% 2R B (b ¥ T8 L 25% st BT IE 531,005 666,042
Effect of different taxation rates TRMENTE (228,622) (217,266)
Share of results of associates DB E N R A (25,888) (80,976)
Share of results of joint ventures DihEEDEER (266) (917)
Income not subject to tax BARE W= (46,789) (59,143)
Expenses not deductible for tax AT 188,933 162,962
Tax losses utilised from prior years EHABAEFERIEEIE (39,893) (138,501)
Tax losses not recognised RERTIBEE 195,760 170,371
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BB FEREIEANIE
prior years B 7 2 (44,846) (43,535)
Tax incentive on eligible expenses HEBRRZARUORE (75,756) (115,214)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the AR E R BB R R DK
distributable profits of the Company’s i MR 5% BURTE IR PR 1S 1 BY
subsidiaries in PRC S 32,364 -
486,002 343,823

The Group is within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules. The
Group has applied the mandatory exception to recognising and
disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities
arising from Pillar Two income taxes, and will account for the Pillar
Two income taxes as current tax when incurred. Pillar Two
legislation has been enacted or substantively enacted but not yet
in effect as at 31 December 2024 in certain jurisdictions in which
the Group operates.

AEEBRIFZREBHAANEE A%
EERERNBEESE—_MEREENE
EFEHMEERABERERBG FINR
EWBREEREIT ZFREHERR
HABEINE I E_AOCEAEHEL
FIEME TR AR BEARERBMFER
202412 A3 B EARER -
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2024F 12 A31H

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FRHAX @
The Group has assessed its potential exposure based on the AEBERERAAFEVBRRNASEE
information available regarding the financial performance of the BrHEEBERRM D - Btk - ErTeed
Group in the current year. As such, it may not be entirely TEERERKRABR - BETEH - A&
representative of future circumstances. Based on the EREXANHELEMEZAMD AEER
assessment, the Group should benefit from the transitional EEMERRE ((HRHRE) Z2E -
Country-by-Country Reporting (‘CbCR’) safe harbour for most of HRASEFEEEZFREM A ®RE
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. For the jurisdictions ZEBNRAEBER  AEEEBRTE &
which the Group may not be able to enjoy transitional CbCR safe BEANIE_MEHR -BEBEBA AT
harbour, the Group does not expect a material exposure to Pillar MEELRAEEENERMBER BEES
Two income taxes, The management is not currently aware of any REBRMBIXE_RBEL A5EHE
circumstances under which this might change. The Group BETYVFBIE R ER - ATHE
continues to follow Pillar Two legislative developments, as more HEMBRERORREETE -
countries prepare to enact the Pillar Two model rules, to evaluate
the potential future impact on its financial statements.

10. DIVIDENDS 10. &2

i158}

HKS
BT

Per share

(=34

HKS'000
TET

HK$000
T

2023 final dividend paid 03 FENRBRE
(20232022 final dividend paid) (2023%F : 200 FE A RHBRE) 0.20 620,483 030 030,725
Less: Dividends for shares held for B B IR D REN T EIFTERIDE
Share award scheme (note 37(8)) &8 (F3E37(8) 0.20 (4,598) 030 (6,897)
615,885 023,828
Equivalentto ZER RMB560,751,000 RMBB831,903,000
AK%560,751,000 7T AR#8319030007T

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK20 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024 per
ordinary share in aggregate of HK$615,885,000 has been
declared by the Board to the owners of the Company whose
names appear on the Company’s register of members on 20 June
2025 (2023: final dividend of HK20 cents per ordinary share in
aggregate of HK$615,885,000). The amount of the final dividend
declared for the year ended 31 December 2024 is calculated
based on the number of issued shares, less dividends for shares
held for the share award scheme, at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024F 12 A31H
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO N XAFHBFAERLESKREF
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are BEATSEFEGRERNREEAT)
based on:
2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETE
Earnings B
Profit attributable to owners of the Company &t 8 & B & 7R K 58 & 7 65
used in the basic and diluted earnings REIMARNTHEE A
per share calculation i apiagl 1,683,900 2368062
Number of Shares
M8 B
Shares [igni)
Weighted average number of EREITE R INE
ordinary shares in issue EREE 3,102,418,400 3102418400
Weighted average number of &t £E @&t & P s AR (0 I
shares held for the share award scheme FHE (22,991,000) (22,991,000)
Adjusted weighted average number of STEERERNRETE R K
ordinary shares of the Company BRI ARR R EITEI
outstanding used in the basic and IR IR A R
diluted earnings per share calculation SN ZE- 3,079,427,400 3079427400
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue REBREZE2024F R2023F 12 A318 1k
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, respectively. FEARBETNEEE SRR -

Annual Report 25(;2;; 159




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. V¥ - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
Landand Plantand and office Leasehold  Construction
buildings machinery  equipment Vehicles improvements  inprogress
72 RER g
THRET b INET EHIE HRIR
o i )
Cost: A
AsatJanuary 2023 R023ETAIA 7548720 928761 388949 707263 216024 3164766 21313333
Additions NE 439766 653792 25523 15418 29052 2206770 3390321
Transfers ok 853089 126517 142014 15000 66,881 (1802501 -
Transfer from investrment BEEREANE
properties (note 14 (k) 56,861 - - - - - 56,861
Disposals ik 105540) (690243 02967) 2465 19864 1092 (0217)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR [1793) (85.924) (045) (1474) - - (80136)
Exchange realignment ER % 966 21285 1702 595 572 28500 62530
Asat3IDecember2023and  R2023%ERA3IAR
1January 2024 0A4F1R1H 8,700,969 9,932,038 534,276 724,337 292,665 3,616,453 23,800,738
Additions AE 47,856 449,438 20,264 10,600 15,991 1,443,832 1,989,981
Transfers % 115,218 683,226 127,545 1,920 86,143 (2,024,052) =
Acquistion of subsidiaries WBEHERT - 3118 40,916 120 722 - 51435
Disposdls e 69764 (123173) (15188) (5122 (4,560) (967  (1355964)
Disposal/loss of conrolof LEMBLAR/ %%
subsidiaries WELAEHE - - (16,965) - - - (16,965)
Exchange realignment EiAE 6,819 (39,739) (2147) (502) (25) 2 (35,572)
As at 31 December 2024 ROUENA3IA 9,801,098 9,796,428 690,701 731,353 397,435 3,016,638 24,433,653
Accumulated depreciationand EHER
impairment; AE:
Asat] January 2023 H3EIAIR 02633 (4409909 094559 040807 13595 634100 [7431083)
Povided fortheyearnote?)  ERBIE (HET) (5151 (957495) (57336) [43163) (i7515) - (1568,024)
Disposals il 55634 331985 137 9871 4482 - 415289
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAF 1613 B 646 1084 - - 39284
Exchange reelignment EiAE (1719 (6,007 (1409) (1) (694 - 10346)
Asat3lDecember2023and  R20B3ENAIBR
1 January 2004 04E AIA (7330 (5015575 B34 (S (4965 (63470)  (8554,880)
Povided fortheyearnote?)  ERBIE (HET) (480,595) (829,291) (45,854) (43,617) (47,034) - (1,446,391)
Impairment [note 7] W (H37) (1,883 (7516) - U] - - (9.408)
Disposals e 24,386 818,873 12,542 12,761 8,462 100 877,124
Disposal/loss of control of HENBRA/ K%
subsidiaries MELAEGE - - 9,222 - - - 9,222
Exchange realignment A% (2.459) 13,096 404 (576) ) - 10,393
As at 31 December 2024 ROUENAIIA (519586)  (5020413) (402)  (30497)  (188,296) (63370) (913938
Net carrying amount: RERE:
As at 31 December 2024 ROUERANA 6,605,237 4,776,015 349,674 426,382 209,139 2,953,268 15,319,715
As at 31 December 2023 R0BENANA 5965659 4916463 216935 450805 143013 3552983 15245858

FFAREBEWE BEMEB KA ERE
TH A EREFE A ARKI66,231,0007T
(202345 : AR ¥16517,0007T) ° #Z K A
XTI REBEI -

Included in the Group's property, plant and equipment are
freehold lands which had a net carrying amount of
RMBI166,231,000 (2023: RMB165,117,000). The freehold lands are
situated outside Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
13. LEASES 13. S
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE AEBEERBEBEA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land,
plants and buildings, vehicles and other equipment used in its
operations. For leasehold land classified as prepaid land lease
payments previously, lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leasehold land from the owners with lease periods of
50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases. For other leased lands classified as operating
lease previously, they generally have lease terms between 10 and
50 years. Leases of plants and buildings generally have lease
terms between 1and 25 years. Lease of vehicles generally have
lease terms between 1 and 5 years, while other equipment
generally have lease terms between 1 and 5 years. Generally, the
Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group. There are several lease contracts that
include extension and termination options and variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below,

AEEFEEZERRZENHERXE L
BELET EBHTANAEMRENES
B -HRENDEAEMNLBAERN
HEXELTH  MEEARBHEHERRS0
FHHEXELIWE DBEAFEL—RNKE
R BERBZS I HEENER - &
SETRENF -BRENIBERKLEH
EMHEMBEET  EEBBEENFI0F
E50F - BiE REFHENHHREN T
FE2BF - ERHTAHENHERBEN T
FESF MEMBENRBPBEN T 16
E5F - —RME  ARERRHTERA
SENNEELEHEEEE - AREE
ETESTH RN R ATZ2EENR
MBEEAL  TIXHIEE— il
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

13. LEASES (Continued) 13. HE @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) REBEEREEA (B
A. Right-of-use assets A GAREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and AEBEGEAEEENROERNFA
the movements during the year are as follows: BWEBIT

Leasehold Plants and Other

land*  buildings Vehicles equipment Total
HEXE

i BEREF EBIA  HttRE ECH
RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBO0OO
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETET

As atTJanuary 2023 R2023F 1818 218,079 340,654 1562 14,585 2474880
Additions NE 128,718 931979 765 1255 1062,17
Transfer from investment ABERENME
properties (note 14) (Ft5E14) 14769 - - - 14769
Depreciation charge (note 7) &R (FiizE7) (57,673) (156,486) (751) (3.727) (218637)
Termination Sl (26,944) (1,931) - - (38.875)
Disposals & (80,635) - - - (80,635)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR (813) (343) - - (8474)
Exchange realignment I 5 SR 15,339 5261 9 18 20,727
Asat 31December 2023 and ~ R2023F 12 A3 K
TJanuary 2024 20241 A1H 2,103,522 1,109,134 1,585 12,231 3,226,472
Additions NE 314,486 155,893 917 3,573 474,869
Acquisition of a subsidiary ks — M B A A 2,516 - - - 2,516
Depreciation charge (note7) &R (FizE7) (64,474) (85,469) (606) (3,802) (154,351)
Increase from lease modification  EF & 5T & m 239 - = = 239
Termination Sl (2137) (761,758) (179) - (764,074)
Disposals & (853) - - - (853)
Loss of control of subsidiaries k= HTB A AIFE I
(note 38) (F3E38) - (198,782) - - (198,782)
Exchange realignment BE 3 398 (9,970) 1,919 25 176 (7,850)
As at 31 December 2024 R2024%12 4318 2,343,329 220,937 1,742 12,178 2,578,186
# The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all leasehold " AEBEBRGMAEEEZE LT MM T
land except for those under operating lease arrangements with a net EREZ HEEEHFEARARE
carrying amount of RMBI3,773,000 (2023; RMBI8,651,000), 13773,000 7T (20234 : A R¥#18651000
T)MEEHEER THHEXE TR
G o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)
B.

Lease liabilities

13. #HE (&)

REBEEREEA (B

B.

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

HEAENREERRFANESHN

2024 2023

RMB'000 RMB000
AR®TR | AKBTE

As at1January M1A1R 1,351,051 578,406
Additions NE 160,644 934,244
Interest expenses (note 6) FMERZ (FF:E6) 26,424 67,351
Payments (NE:S (119,799) (193,280)
Increase from lease modification EHEE(EET i N 239 -
Termination gl (789,598) (40,828)
Disposal/loss of control of HEHBAR K&
subsidiaries B B8 7 E 45 ) (214,348) (362)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B 2,273 5520
As at 31 December K12 A31H 416,886 1351051
Analysed into: DI
Current portion mENE S 62,774 129,412
Non-current portion ERBE D 354,112 1221639
416,886 1,351,051

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note

43 to the consolidated financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

leases are as follows:

HEBBENIHEDITREA T BR
KT 43 NI EE o

RESACHRIAREETENSHED

2024 2023

RMB'000 RMB000
AR®TR | ARBTI

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets  FABEENER X 154,351 218,637
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEEEFNBRAX 26,424 67,351
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets 4% |- A B E AT G HI5 (25,524) (1953)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFREEEMSHE (773) (10,944)
Expense relating to short-term leases CHHE MR 29,540 21,985
Expense relating to leases of low-value EEEEEHENIEH

assets b3 25,321 15,487
Total amount recognised in profitorloss R Bz AR ETE 209,339 310,563
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

13. LEASES (Continued)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

D.

i164}

Extension and termination options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in managing
the leased-asset portfolio and they are aligned with the
Group's business needs. Set out below are the undiscounted
potential future rental payments for extension options which
the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise:

Extension options expected BT EITED
not to be exercised JE R

13. #HE (&)

REBEEREEA (B

D. EMRARILH#E
AEEEETEETEHMRAKILENE
B %S EERBEEERS -

LAZE)

EEHEEEMAS ATAAR

KSENEBRE - TXHIAKEA
BHETE NTE T R RITRE 2 BT
REHESRK

Payable
within
five years

ARBER
=¥
RMB'000
AR®TR

2,487

2024
Payable
after
five years
AREF®
X )
RMB’'000
ARBT T

Total
et

RMB’'000
AR®TR

2,487

Extension options expected BE T EITER
not to be exercised fa iy =3

Payable
Wiiallal
five years

ARAER
=t
RMB00O
ARETT

2,569

2023
Payable
after
five years
AN A F&
A
RMB00O
ARETF T

Total

5
RMB0OO
ARBFT

2569

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (continued)

E. Variable lease payments

The Group has lease contracts for land that contain variable
payments based on the unit purchase price of rice
announced by local government Management's objective is
to align the lease expense with the amount paid last time.
The following summary provides information on the Group's
variable lease payments, including the magnitude in relation
to fixed payments:

13. #HE (&)

AEBERAMEA (&)

E. H##HEEX
NEBBSERIETBRFAMNER
WEEENIENRNTIHAESL -
EEEMBEZAFHEMYE LAY
NS EREFE "R - UTHEBRHE
BASENERERNER  BEFHR
EENREBENSE

plopZi!
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
EH AN CIE-J0E et
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TRT AR%¥Tx
Fixed rent Elakitka 147,675 - 147,675
Variable rent only ERE-vicka - 81 81
147,675 81 147,756
2023
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
& € 5% AT AR 1T
RMB00O RMB'0O00 RMB'000
ARBTFRE  ARBTE ARETR
Fixed rent Bk 193199 - 193,199
Variable rent only ERE-vicka - 81 8l
193199 81 193280

A 5% (2023: 5%) increase in unit purchase price of rice would
increase the total lease payments by 5% (2023: 5%).

TE 4 M B (8 | R 5% (2023 %F « 5%)
GE YA E KL MNS% (2023 F -
5%) o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A 318
13. LEASES (Continued) 13. HE @)
THE GROUP AS A LESSOR AEBEAEEA

During the year, the Group leases certain commercial properties
in Asia, North America and Oceania which were classified as
investment properties. The rental income of these properties
amounting to RMB161,698,000 (2023: RMB154,575,000) was
recognised and included in ‘Revenug” in profit or loss. Certain
office premises, machineries and equipment were classified as
property, plant and equipment under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMBT,239,000 (2023: RMB9,301,000), details of which are included
in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payments receivables by the Group in future periods under
operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

FR-AREERIOMN - AL EIMN R ARFIMNE
HMETHOBAREMENBEDE -ZF
MEDLERHNEBER=AARE
161,698,000 7T (2023 £ : A R#154,575,000
T WEt ABZA A IR - BEFHRAE -
HeEREE (REEHEZHET) D EAD
¥ HERERB ZEHENKRBTE
KEPENRES TEEERMSEMRR
FHETHSAE AEENTANERLN
e WA AREEN2390007T (20234 :
AR#00010007T) ' SEBEHREZEE VK
MERMIFES ©

RBEHR AEERBLEHERRK
HIRRAEBE P WERAARMBERERAT ¢

2024 2023

RMB’'000 RMB'0O00

AR®BTRT ARBTET

Not more than1year e S 160,912 570,768
Over 1vyear to 2 years TN EE2F 55,093 40,305
Over 2 years to 3 years PENEESF 45,847 19,299
Over 3 years to 4 years SEN EZE4F 41,345 8425
Over 4 years to 5 years 4FANEESF 35,889 6,900
Over 5 vears 5F M F 85,536 19,932

424,622 665,629
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBHRRMEE
31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR (Continued)

The disaggregation of these office premises, machineries and
equipment classified as property, plant and equipment under
operating leases and the reconciliation of the carrying amount at
the beginning and end of the period are set out below:

13.

BE @

AEEERAHBAA @

WAE KEBERIBEZDFRBAYVEAR
REENHEREIAT

Land and Plant and
buildings machinery Total
THREF HERBSE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR%TT
Cost: RN :
As at1January 2023 R2023F1A1H 66,234 1428425 1,494,659
Additions =1 85,86 307,641 392,827
Expiration and termination EHA R 4% 1E (31,899) (461383) (493282)
As at 31 December 2023 and M2023F 12 A318 K&
1January 2024 202441 A1H 119,521 1,274,683 1,394,204
Additions NE 57,754 213,625 271,379
Expiration and termination B E R 421k (9,241) (682,988) (692,229)
As at 31 December 2024 M2024F12 A 318 168,034 805,320 973,354
Accumulated depreciation: ZEiE
As at1January 2023 R202341 A1 (16,607) (44026)) (456,868)
Provided for the year FNEE (20,762) (245,669) (266,431)
Expiration and termination AR R £% 1E 3,401 181573 184,974
As at 31 December 2023 and M2023F 12 A318 &
1January 2024 202441 A1H (33,968) (504,357) (538,325)
Provided for the year FREE (10,625) (77,588) (88,213)
Expiration and termination BB R #R1E 9,241 314,362 323,603
As at 31 December 2024 2024412 A 31 H (35,352) (267,583) (302,935)
Net carrying amount: BRERE ¢
As at 31 December 2024 MR2024F12 A31H 132,682 537,737 670,419
As at 31 December 2023 202312 A 31 H 85553 770,326 855879
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14.

REME

2024 2023
RMB'0O00

ARBTT

RMB'000
AR®T

As at1January R1ATH 9,188,888 8,027,487
Additions = 390,075 1525,058
Transfer to property, plant and equipment B =W % - BE L& #H 2 - (56,861)
Transfer to right-of-use assets HAEREEFEREEE 13A - (14,769)
Transfer to asset held for sale FRERBERNEEE 28 - (331,007
Changes in fair value NABEZD 5 24,616 10,314
Disposals e - (308,559)
Exchange realignment M H, B (268,296) 335219
As at 31 December K12 A31H 9,335,283 9,188,888

Further summary details of the Group's investment properties are
set out in the section headed "Summary of Major Investment
Properties” of this report.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. HEYME (@)

VALUATION PROCESSES HERF

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s investment RBERR AEENREMVEROAE

properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by B2 THBIEXNAEREEME

independent professionally qualified valuers detailed below: FiLE - FRET

American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd, For properties in Thailand American Appraisal (Thalland) Ltd, RREMENS

Ray White (Valuations) For properties in Australia Ray White (Valuations) SEENDERE

Calliers International Valuation & Advisory  For properties in the United Colliers International REENEME
Services States Valuation & Advisory Services

Colliers International Realty Advisors Inc.  For properties in Canada Colliers International Realty Advisors Inc. - S AMEME

Guangdong Jingxin Real Estate Land For properties in the PRC BERRERUELHEEFEARAA HPBWEMS
Asset Evaluation Ca, Ltd.

Guangxi Huaxia Asset Land Real Estate  For properties in the PRC BERZEEZETHRHETHARAR HPEWEMS
Appraisal Co, Ltd.

Guangdong Jinghua Assets Appraisal Real  For properties in the PRC BERREZETRFHELNRE RRENENS
Estate Land Appraisal Co, Ltd. BRAR

Kantor Jasa Penilai Publik Susan For properties inIndonesia Kantor Jasa Penilai Publik Susan HERMERNS
Widjojo & Rekan Widjojo & Rekan

City Valuers & Consultants Sdn. Bhd. For properties in Malaysia City Valuers & Consultants Sdn. Bhd. AERBENE

&

Albawsala Real Estate Valuation For properties in Dubal Albawsala Real Estate Valuation RHENENS

CIM Property Consultants Co, Ltd For properties in Myanmar CIM Property Consultants Co, Ltd pAGNEmS

Advantage Property Services Co, Ltd. For properties in Cambodia Advantage Property Services Co, Lid.— BiRBRNEM S

The valuations performed by the valuers for financial reporting EREEaAESEMMEMMME2RE AT

purposes were reviewed by management. Management also EfE -BEENG A EMREER

discussed the valuation processes and results with the valuers. FRigER BREMREENAABEED

The net fair value changes on revaluation are included in “Other FREIFTAB R [HAWRA - s KA

revenue, income and gains” in profit or loss. e

Management reviewed the valuation results by verifying all major EEECARREMABIEGASELR

inputs and assumptions and assessing the reasonableness of BT AERZEEER W HZER

such valuations, BEHEEME -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024

2024F 12 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. BEME (@)
VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY FEFERAABEER
The following table shows the valuation techniques used by the TRINTEEMEE AL BERAANG
valuers in the determination of fair values. There were no BEFE - FRAGEFTEREZEEETMANEXR
significant changes to the valuation techniques during the year. 2.

Fair value Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs

[IRERE B {ER % TUBEERAYE

2024 2023
RMB'000 RMB000
AR®T R | AKBTT

Vacant lands and buildings 4,059,642 3,812,482 Direct/sales comparison  Premium/(discount)in
approach quality of land"
EELTHREF HEHELEE B4 E SN
I8/ (HrE)0
Lands and buildings 3,878,803 3,687,664 Residual method Gross development value?

and estimated
construction cost®

TH RIEF FgRE BEREEYR
fisst BRSER A
Lands and buildings 1,396,838 1688742  Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate” and
approach market rent®
T RAEF W &AM & BAR(L L EY
mHHEE0

9,335,283 0,188,888

Note: B3 -

U The higher the quality of land, the higher the fair value 0 THEERS  AAEERS

@ The higher the gross development value, the higher the fair value @ HEREEAS AAEEDRS

® The higher the estimated construction cost, the lower the fair value & A REREDR - ARBEAE

@ The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value “ EREERS  ARBEDE

6 The higher the market rent, the higher the fair value o mEHEeRs  AREERS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment RBEMR K2EETFTERTABEE
properties were within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as their ANBBEZ XEENREVEEETRAAR
valuations were arrived at by reference to certain significant BEEBEFE=HR FARELE=RE
unobservable inputs, There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 ASE I (20234 : &) o

during the year (2023: Nil),
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15. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(A) GOODWILL

15. HERHEMWERLEE

(A) EE
plopli! 2023
RMB'000
ARETT

RMB'000
AR® T

As at1January R1ATH 540,085 541,878
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B8 — REIB B A &) 14,520 -
Disposal/loss of control of HEMB AR KX

subsidiaries B /&8 2~ E 42 (35,438) (1763)
Impairment during the year (note 7). & RRE (FFEE7) (52,113) -
Exchange realignment M H PR 65 (30)
As at 31 December K12 A3RH 467,119 540,085

(B) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(B) HitEELEE

Operating  Patentand Computer
concession  proprietary  Customer software
Trademark ~ Brand name rights technologies relationship  and others
2HR ERBHR
B BRER Hit
0
Cost; RA:
Asat1January 2023 20231 A1A 166929 10577 38159 234855 47700 120848 719,068
Additions "E 4 - - - - 20337 2341
Disposals HE - - - - - (2627) (2627)
Disposals of subsidiaries HENBAR (796) - (1320) 783) - - (2899)
Bxchange realignment EHHE 673 - 81 8l - 73 1538
Asat 31 December 2023 and R2023F12 R38R
1January 2024 2024F1R18 166,810 110,577 37,450 234,153 47,700 139,731 736,421
Additions HE 2,867 = = 341 = 19,638 22,846
Disposals HE = = - - - (574) (574)
Lossof controlof subsidiaries Kk =MB A A6 - - - (26,700) (47,700) - (74,400)
Exchange realignment EHHE 347 - 529 24 - 44 3,744
As at 31 December 2024 R204512R318 172,824 110,577 37,979 207,818 - 158,839 688,037
Accumulated amortisation R E#ER
andimpairment: AE:
Asat1January 202 R2023F1818 : 06584 (55,307) (1354] (82334) (9540) 000 (28023
Provided for the year (note 7) R (8184) - (519) (29,046) - (1194) (48943)
Disposals HE - - - - - 1032 1032
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAR 192 - 1320 189 - - 1701
Exchange realignment ERAZ 425) - (34 24) - 123) (606}
As at 31 December 2023 and R2023EAIER
1January 2024 20241818 (35,001) (55,307) (12,774) (m,215) (9540)  (103214)  (327,051)
Provided for the year (note 7) R (7,024) - (3,776) (28,730) (1,988) (13,939) (55,457)
Disposals HE = = - - - 574 574
Loss of control of subsidiaries K EKBARRHIE - - - 6,452 11,528 - 17,980
Bxchange realignment Kk (212) - 2,707 - - (158) 2,331
As at 31 December 2024 1202450 A58 (42,237) (55,307) (13843)  (133,493) - 16,737) (361677)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
As at 31 Decemnber 2024 R2024E12A3A 130,587 55,270 24,136 74,325 = 42102 326,420
As at 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31A 131809 55270 24676 122938 38160 36517 409370
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16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND 16. & E & H {th B PR O & A 4 i ah R
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE F&ERERR
USEFULLIVES
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, brand name and HAERRAME W oMENEE: A
trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite useful PR AR A A ER A B O R P IR AR R A
lives set out in note 15 have been allocated to twelve individual BESEET —EEMNNVESEELELL ([]R
cash-generating units (‘CGUS"), comprising subsidiaries engaging PEEBM]) ZEFBEUNBEMEEUT
in the following businesses: ESi A olih=YNCIE
provision of environmental engineering services; o OREBRIRIERG
provision of sewage treatment services; o REUTKERIERT |
provision of hazardous waste treatment services; : R ek BE fn a5 AR
provision of solid waste treatment services; S REERBEYEIE R
manufacture and lease of aluminium formworks; : BEREEIRELE
provision of first-mile international freight services and last- : RHBREREERBERERBLOR
mile fulfillment services; %
cultivation of flowers and plants; : BETESRIEY
manufacture and sale of plastic pipes and pipe fittings; - RERHEBHEBREMN
manufacture and sale of waterproof materials; : BUE R IHE KM AL
manufacture and sale of energy storage products; : BERIHEREEEMD
manufacture and sale of resin; and : SUEMHERIE R
manufacture and sale of photovoltaic module. - BUERIHENRAEN -
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16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of goodwill, brand name and trademark
and operating concession rights at the end of the reporting period
allocated to these units are as follows:

16. & E & H {th B HE PR =T 4 A SF M0 B
HEEREAR @)

RBEHRRDEEZEEMNHE  BR
RESMSFFEERNEREEDNT

Guangzhou EP Environmental

BMNTIRBRE 2R

Goodwill

G
RMB'000
AREBT R

Brand name
and
trademark
R EE
RMB'000
AREBT R

Operating
concession

rights

RMB'000
AR®T

Engineering Ltd. and its subsidiary BRARREWE LR
(GZEP) ([GzZEP)) - 55,260 1,615
Hainan Baolai Industrial & Trading BEBRIEERATR
Co, Ltd and its subsidiary (Baola) HTB AR (EBR]D 39,997 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental TE K RRER D
Technology Co, Ltd’and its BRARLEMEB AR
subsidiaries (Jiangsu Yongbao') (DT&R KB 276,098 - -
Guangzhou KingHing Construction FEM = B SRR B
Technology Ltd." and its subsidiaries BERABREMEAE]
(‘Guangzhou KingHing’) (TEMRE]) 37,292 - -
Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. and its subsidiary  Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. &
(‘Spirolite’) H & 2 & ([ Spirolite ]) 1,392 36,781 -
China National Petroleum (Guangdong) I EERE (B3R K%
Waterproof Co, Ltd. and its BRARREME AR
subsidiaries (CNPW') ([ ERE]) 18,724 - -
Guangdong Xingfa Environmental BREERFRR
Technology Co, Ltd.* BRAF
(‘Guangdong Xingfa’) ((EREE]) 3,843 - -
CNPW New Material Technology ol EEMMEREEMN AR AT
Taizhou Co, Ltd. * (CNPW Taizhou) (MR ERZRM ) 29,277 - -
Tai Chang Resin (Sihui) Co, Ltd* a8k (Ne)BRAT
(Tai Chang)) rag&l 44,229 - -
Yangming Energy Storage Yangming Energy Storage
Holdings Limited* Holdings Limited”
("Yangming Energy Storage’) (['vyangming Energy Storage ) 14,520 - -
Guangdong Lesso Banhao New Energy & SR B 2B B f #6ER
Materials Co, Ltd." MEBERRA
(Banhao New Energy’) ([P FTREIR]) 1,747 - -
467,119 92,041 11,615
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16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND 16. BERH MR O HEHWE
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE & E iR E B (&)

USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

Brand name
and
trademark rights

BE BRREE  BHEER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB00O
ARETE AR%TR ARETR

GZEP GZEP - 55260 1615
Baolai BR 39,997 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao ITERKR 276,008 - -
Guangzhou KingHing B E 37292 - -
Spirolite Spirolite 1326 35,001 -
CNPW F e £ P 70837 - -
Guangdong Xingfa & R B 3843 - -
CNPW Taizhou H e E 2R M 29277 - -
Shenzhen EDA CLOUD Technologies AT HEERBRAERA AR

Co, Ltd. and its subsidiaries =N 35438 - -
Tai Chang a8 44230 - -
Banhao New Energy IR REIR 1747 - -
540,085 90,261 1,615

Management regarded brand name and trademark and operating EREERAREAXBEHEENER LN

concession rights acquired through business combinations EMEFQERABERATERFES It
having indefinite useful lives because they are expected to ThERETEAF EABRAOIRSIMAERE

generate net cash inflows indefinitely.
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16.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHERINTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined
based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections
which are based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. The growth rate used to extrapolate
cash flows beyond the five-year period is 2% and the pre-tax
discount rates applied to cash flow projections are as follows;

16. & E & H fth B PR o & F & i ah R

KEERBENS @)

ZEReELEEN BB IERES
REBNEZEREEET  MRESK
EBADBREEEEEN 2 AT KA
B -BEAFEHs7ReRnEaFRA9 2 ER
RHEE - MBS 5 E T80 FTE A A B ATEL
WERINT -

Pre-tax

discount rate

BATRE R =

GZEP GZEP 15.30%
Baolai ERN 10.80%
Jiangsu Yongbao ITRRK TR 13.20%
Guangzhou KingHing & M 5% 13.50%
Spirolite Spirolite 13.70%
CNPW o £ FE 13.60%
Guangdong Xingfa [ TR 13.60%
CNPW Taizhou o e 12 FEE 2R MY 13.90%
Yangming Energy Storage Yangming Energy Storage 11.00%
Tai Chang = 14.60%
Banhao New Energy HEAE 3 RE IR 15.20%

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the units’
past performance and management's expectations for the
market development. Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of each CGU to exceed its recoverable amount
except for the CNPW CGU below.

At the end of the reporting period, based on the value in use
calculation, impairment losses amounting to RMB52113,000 were
recognised on the relevant goodwill of CNPW in respect of the
current year, which arose from the expected decline in the market
demand.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, for the CNPW CGU,
a reasonably possible change in the key assumptions of the cash
flow projections would cause its carrying amount exceed its
recoverable amount. If the discount rate increased or decreased
by 0.5%, the impairment loss would increase by RMB42,685,000
or decrease by RMB48,496,000, respectively, during the year
ended 31 December 2024

Except for goodwill mentioned above, there are no impairments of
any other CGUs containing goodwill, brand name and trademark
and operating concession rights with indefinite useful lives (2023
Nil).

HEAFEAEEMNEMETERRERIETE
HHEBEMEMNENR S RA R HOGE
HER e ARG N EREMNNBERR
LEMBHMBERNBEHMEL - 512
BRAE THZEREALEHBENTMANE
BEHITSERSHEEELEENSENE
AEBHESENTKRBE£E  ETX
CNPWIR & E A BRI o

RREPR - ENEREENE AFE
ECNPWHEBEEERRREBEAR
#5213,000 7T » b Jh T 45 & Sk 78 B T BR By
glo

KARIEERE  CNPWIRE EA BN
mMe REREBANEE/RBHEIER
P GERNEEEERGBE WO SEE -
it Bl 28 SR 18 A0 SR A 05% - BIIEL &= 2024 4F
12 A3HIEFEEREEEE S B MNA
R# 42685000 R AR
48,496,000 7T °

Br b mESN  SETAEMEAHE

BER A A F AR RS
LRNBSEEEMRE Q0235 : ) -
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REHEATMER
2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'0O00
AR®STR  ARBTET
Share of net assets DMHEEFE 4,903,463 4,517,821
Goodwill on acquisitions W EANEE 405,635 346,703
5,309,098 4,864,524
Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2024 are as 20245612 R318 - B R RIRIFFIBFIAT
follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ GCERL
Registered registrationand ~ Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
capital business interest power sharing  activity
AL/
AfER EMREXBE FEEER REE  EOER TEXE
Xingfa Alumninium Holdings Limited HK$10,000000  Cayman lslands 26 26 26 Manufacture and sale of
aluminium profiles
BRRERRERAR 1000000077 RERS RERBEERIM
Keda Industrial Group Co, Ltd. @ RMB1948420,000 the PRC 8 8 8 Manufacture and sale of
building materials
machineries
HERERNBRAA AE#10484200007 PE RERHEREE
FoshanHechuang Yingke Real Estate RMBIB0,000,000 the PRC 38 38 38 Property development
Development Co, Ltd”
BT BNEEREARAR AR#1800000007C hE NELR
Guangdong Home Electronic Appliances RMB40,000,000 the PRC 30 30 30 E-commerce platform
World E-Commerce Co, Ltd"
BERZEHAEFARERAA AR¥40,0000007 ik ETHEBTR
Guangdong Gold Ashlar Industry Financing RMB6,667,000 the PRC 25 25 25 Investment
Investment and Development Co, Ltd”
EReHRERREZRARLRA AR#66670007C E RE
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

17. REBEATINER (@)

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ GCERL
Registered registrationand  Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
capital business interest power sharing  activity
AfMER EMREXBE FEEER REE  EOER TEXE
Jiangyin Yongaing Water Purifying RMB5,000,000 the PRC 20 20 20 Manufacture and sale of
Agent Co, Ltd” chemical products
TRmKEFKEERAT AR¥50000007 PE RERHELTIER
Shanghai Bangxin loT Tech Co, Ltd” RMBI3173,000 the PRC 2 2 21 Provision of loT salution
services
LERTHBBNRERAR ARB131730007T PE RENBBRATRRE
EDA Group Holdings Limited® US$4399400  Cayman Islands 30 30 30 Provision of first-mile
international freight
services and last-mile
fulfilment services
EDA Group Holdings Limited? 4399400% T REEHE REBRARTERERE
BEOR
Artaic, LLC? US$2500,000 Us 7 20 1 Manufacture and sale of
mosaic tiles
Artaic, LLC? 2500000% 7 *8 RERHERRRLR
Hangzhou Yuehui Venture Capital RMBI00,000,000 the PRC 14 4 14 Investment
Partnership’
RMGERZREARER AR¥1000000007C w BE
Foshan Aoxue Lesso Sports Culture RMB5000,000 the PRC 49 49 49 Holding sparts events
Development Co, Ltd”
FUTHESERER XL ERERAR AR%50000007T HE BHEEES
Hunan VARY Tech Co, Ltd. RMB121,080,000 the PRC 28 28 28 Provision of solid waste
treatment services
HEEARBRNERAA AR1210800007T E RUERENRERS
Billon Milestone Properties Inc PHPI00000000  thePhilippines 40 40 40 Property investment
Bilion Milestone Properties Inc 100,000,000 FeZ NERE
FRENR
Guangdong Weisheng Lesso RMB47,600,000 the PRC 40 40 40 Manufacture and sale of
Technolagy Ca, Ltd” fertilizer
BRAEBENBRNBRAF AR 476000007 HE BERBEREH
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REHEATBER (@)
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ GCERL
Registered registrationand  Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
capital business interest power sharing  activity
AfER EMREXBE FEEER REE  EOER TEEH
Cuangdong Lianwel Enterprise Management RMBI00,000,000 the PRC 30 30 30 Property management
Co, Ltd”
BREAPRERARAT ARH100000,0007 i nEER
China Energy Lianhao (Guangzhou) Smart RMBI00,000,000 the PRC 40 40 40 Power generation technical
Energy Technology Co, Ltd” service
B (RN BZRRRBAERRA  ARMKI000000007 mE RERMRTH
Guangzhou Yunfan Canghai Cultural RMBI,000,000 the PRC 20 20 20 Internetdataservice
Media Co, Ltd”
BMERREULEEBRAA AR10000007T PE ERREERE
Guangzhou Qianfan Cross-border RMB500,000 the PRC 35 35 35 Cross-border e-commerce
E-commerce Co, Ltd”
BNTREREHARLA AR#5000007 Gk ERER
Hainan Kalxian Lianli Smart Energy Industry RMBI80,000,000 the PRC 33 33 33 Investment
Investment Fund Co, Ltd”
BERABNESERERZRE AR#$1800000007C hE RE
E2BRAT
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/

Registered registration and

capital business

AfEEx ERREREH

Qujing Yangguang New Energy Co, Ltd? RMBI76,885,000 the PRC
mEG L RRHERAT? ARE1768890007 hE
Shenchanfa Industrial (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd. RMB30,000,000 the PRC
REREZ (R ERAR AR%300000007C Gl
HODA Strategic Holdings Private Limited SGD3000,000 Singapore
HODA Strategic Holdings Private Limited 300000037 % T Gt

Note:

0] During the current year, the Group acquired 49.0% of shares in HODA
Strategic Holdings Private Limited at an aggregate cash consideration of
RMB10,567,000.

) Itis considered that the Group has significant influence over these companies
because the Group has a director in each of the boards of directors of these
companies.

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited ("Xingfa Aluminium’), which is
considered as a material associate of the Group, is engaged in the
manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles and is accounted for
using the equity method,

Ownership

interest

fie Rk

30

49

REHE AT (&)
Percentage of
Bt
Voting Profit  Principal
power sharing  activity
RE EER TETEH
15 15 Manufacture and sale of
monacrystalline silicon
HERHEERE
30 30 Investment
&
49 49 Investment
BE
i :

U} REFERN AEEZReREAHARE
10,567,000 7T 42 B HODA Strategic Holdings
Private Limited 49.0% A& 15 °

@ AEERZLE
RAEEEZ

REZEFGHEA—HEE WA
LENRBAEERTES -

PRI EBRARAR (THBFIRBE]) W%

BAEENEKREY
S - Wi

fENE D EERE R
m/ja-AEE"
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of Xingfa Aluminium,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

17. REBEATINER (@)

FHAEBRENREARNY B ERNTE
(ZEENEREHARRNTMERIELA
B EARA M B R MBREEETTEHRR) 20
T

Xingfa Aluminium

i E o
plopli! 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000O
AR T  ARBTIT
Current assets mENE E 1,343,403 0,834,952
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE (TEREHE) 5,129,528 4,844,006
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate Wi AR EERNEE 124,590 124,590
Current liabilities mENBE (7,075,230) (5,479,014)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (2,706,033) (3137,146)
Net assets BEFHE 6,816,258 6,187,388
Net assets, excluding goodwill EEFB(TBRERSR) 6,691,668 6,062,798
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the EREEE N E R R R
associate: R -
Proportion of the Group's ownership PG RSB PR B LD 26.11% 2611%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, ~AEBDGE L RN EEFEE
excluding goodwill (TEEEE) 1,747,376 1,583,161
Goodwill on acquisitions W EANEE 124,590 124,590
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 1,871,966 1,707,751
Revenue A 18,854,641 17,352,551
Profit for the year FRE N 833,802 791101
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 HE W (837) 3313
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERFBEE 832,965 794,414
Fair value of the Group's investment AEEKRENAREE 750,686 613,178

Keda Industrial Group Co, Ltd. ('Keda"), which is considered as a
material associate of the Group, is engaged in the manufacture
and sale of building materials machineries and is accounted for
using the equity method.
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of Keda, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

17. REIZEATIMER (@
BEBRRERRESHRANTHERNBRE (22
EREReHHENTMERELARY
ResA M BRENEREETER) WT

Keda
BlE

2024
RMB'000
AR® T

2023
RMB0OO
ARBTT

Current assets mEBEE 11,046,997 10,803,131
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE(TREHE) 25,098,934 25561910
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate WEB S NRIELNHE 21,772 20772
Current liabilities mEN B E (7,481,591) (5,745,052)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (3,495,033) (3119,590)
Net assets BEFHE 25,191,079 27,522,171
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFHE(MBERE) 25,169,307 27,500,399
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in the HIREE E B E R R R A

associate: AR -
Proportion of the Group's ownership PG RSB PR B #EL 5 8.01% 7.01%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, ~AEBDHE L NN EEFEE

excluding goodwill (TBIENE) 2,016,061 1027,778
Goodwill on acquisitions W EAENEE 21,772 21772
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 2,037,833 1949550
Revenue A 12,600,261 7204512
Profit for the year FRE 181,755 1231475
Other comprehensive income Hib 2w (173,030) -
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZM BT 8,725 1231475
Fair value of the Group's investment AEERENDAEBE 1,228,801 1441131

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

Share of the associates:

SEBEAT

2024
RMB’000

ARBTR

TREJNAEEHFEREKREEREN
RMIBER

\

2023
RMB0OO
ARBTT

(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB, mF (126,656) 30136
Other comprehensive income Hith 2w 466 -
Total comprehensive (expense)/income 2HE(AX) Wmiass (126,190) 30,136
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBPREERFIRER

investments in the associates BERE A 1,399,299 1207223
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2024412 A3 H
18. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 18. REELEMHER
2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®STR  ARBTET
Share of net assets DIHEE SR 28,222 26,658
Particulars of the joint ventures are as follows: EETENFBOT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ FiiEE AL
Registered  registration Ownership  Voting Profit
capital andbusiness interest power sharing  Principal activity
M,
R
HMEE BXBE MARREE RERE EOHETN IRER
Guangdong Lesso EPCO Residential RMBI0,000,000 the PRC 50 50 50  Provision of household
Equipment Design Services Co, Ltd. decoration design wark
and maintenance
services
BERBEVENEERERE ARH#100000007T HE RERERMHRS
FRBAER AR
Banhao EPCO New Energy Design RMB4,500,000 the PRC 50 50 50  Provision of new energy
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd products and
installation services
JERE SUB R 8L R R AT (R AR% 45000007 HE REMERERRLE
ARRA PR
The following table illustrates the information of the Group's TRV AEMREL O EMERER

interests in joint ventures:

plop! 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT
Share of the joint ventures: DMEEERE

Profit for the year F ) 7l 1,063 3667
Other comprehensive income E 2 W e = -
Total comprehensive income PHEEEEE 1,063 3,667

Carrying amount of the Group's investments ~ AEBREETERER
in the joint ventures BREE 28,222 26,658
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31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H
19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 19. Hih2R&EE
2024 2023
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
B & AR® T ARBTT
Non-current ERE
Debt instruments at RARBEFAEMEZE
FVTOCI: WaHEKIA :
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong MNEE FTEBKES (i 115,403 141873
Debt instruments at FVTPL: BAREBEFABENEFETA:
Unlisted convertible loans E LA RBRER (i 71,228 90,357
Equity instruments at BRARBEFAEMEE
FVTOCI: Wasa AT E
Equity securities listed in the PRC A B AR AR RE 2 - 148,362
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REB LTRAE S 216,240 219,414
Unlisted equity securities I LIRAES 1,183,303 1101555
1,399,543 1,469,331
Equity instruments at FVTPL: RAABEFABENRATIA
Equity securities listed in PRC AR _E TR AR EE 2 30,000 30,000
Unlisted equity securities I EIRAES (i) 288,676 200,876
318,676 230,876
Funds at FVTPL: RANBEFABENES
Stock funds R R E S 70,766 13,328
1,975,616 1,945,765
Current RE
Debt instruments at FVTPL: BAAEEFABENER TR
Unlisted convertible loans JE LT AR B 5K (i - 18,491
= 16,491
Derivative financial instruments: PTESRT A :
Forward commodity contracts REEmEN (iv) 5,181 -
5,181 16,491
1,980,797 1,962,256
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

(i)

(i)

(v)

The debt securities carry fixed interest at a rate of 7.50% (2023: 7.50%) per
annum, payable semi-annually in arrears and will mature in May 2034 (2023:
May 2034),

Among the convertible loans, one convertible loan carries fixed interest at a
rate of 6.00% (2023: 6.00%) per annum and contains a right to convert the
loan into ordinary shares of the issuers after June 2023 (2023: June 2023),
while the other convertible loan is interest-free (2023: two convertible loans,
interest-free and 10.00%) and contains a right to convert the loan into ordinary
shares of the issuers with a maturity date of October 2026 (2023: September
2024 and October 2026).

The equity securities contained a puttable option were classified as equity
instruments at FVTPL.

The Group has entered into various forward commodity contracts in order to
protect itself from adverse movements in raw material prices. The forward
commodity contracts are not designated for hedge purposes and are
measured at FVTPL. Changes in the fair value of non-hedging forward
commaodity contracts amounting to RMB5,194,000 (2023: RMB5,655,000)
were recognised in profit or loss during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group received dividends in the
amounts of RMB16,396,000 (2023: RMB19,068,000) from the equity
instruments at FVTOCI.
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BRE -

(i)

(i)

(v)

B & H 8 SR E E G 7 E750% (2023 F -
750%) T E B¥FXMEBR2034F5A8
(20234 : 203445 ) B8 -

RARRERR - - FRRERNF EIRE
TEF I Z6,00% (20234 : 600%) 51 E - WEE
—{B "] R 2023F6 A (20234 : 202346 A) &
HEREBRABITAZERROEN MH—%
AHBRERARSE (2023F  MEAHRRKRER
% B %10.00% ) & 8 1E — @7 72026 F10 A
(20234 : 20244 0 A k2026410 A) B #1 B #
BRER AT A2 L BIROET -

AEEBVSZEERHEREH  WREEBFR
SEMBHEROTFTEE - REERE HWIEE
TSRS TRAREESFABENT R
2o FR - EHPERAARANNAABESR
AR #51040007T (20234 : A R # 5655000
70) BB ARER

HE0UF2AIBLEFE AEEBEERAR
BEFAEMEZEAREHORATAESRSE S
BEARMI6,306,0007T (2023F : ARM
19,0680007T) °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

x
FEMBIRFRME
31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H
20. LOAN RECEIVABLES 20. FEUS B
plopli! 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000O
ARETx  AREBTIT
Non-current FERE
Finance lease receivables & T E PR S e Uk A 1,500 7569
Factoring receivables R T2 AR 7% & W KR 351 4,323
1,851 12,392
Current HE
Finance lease receivables B & T & AR5 e WG IR 126,787 153,401
Factoring receivables 1R IB AR 7% FE W FR 8 304,649 484,805
Receivables from supply-chain e 58 Y & AR 7S e Uk
financing services FRIE 99,139 51179
530,575 689,385
Less: Provision for impairment W R E R (248,733) (382,436)
281,842 306,949
283,693 319,341
(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (A) mLEHEERKEEVRRE

Minimum Present value of minimum
lease receivables lease receivables
REEERBEVRRE REHAEREEVRRERE

2024 2023 2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000O RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRE ARBTET AR®BTRT ARSTET

Not mare than1year EINES 127,070 15546 126,787 153,401
Overlyear butwithin 5years TELA_ES5F AR 1,660 8,860 1,500 7569
128,730 164,006 128,287 160,970
Less: Unearned finance B AREREEA
income Wz (443) (3036)
Presentvalue of minimum &K & R &K
lease receivables RIEIERE 128,287 160,970
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated in
Renminbi. The effective interest rates of the receivables
range from 5.89% to 10.78% (2023: 5.61% to 10.78%) per
annum. There are no unguaranteed residual values of
assets leased under finance leases and no contingent rent
arrangements that needed to be recognised (2023: Nil).

The following is a credit quality analysis of these finance
lease receivables:

(A)

20. FEWIIER (&)

7l & 70 & AR 7% BB W RKIE (|)

RNEE R B E T E AR B UGRIBE A A
REFE - Z BB FIERNERF X
N F589% F10.78% (20234 : 561%
£1078%) » HET R EREEED
RERFHER  TEEANEATER
KSR E L HE (20236 « f|]) o

NTAREREREEREFENEER
BEL:

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB00O

ARBTRT ARETRE

Not past due A #60 Hf 5,604 38287
Overdue B 18 57 122,683 122,683
128,287 160,970

The receivables are secured by assets leased under finance
leases and cash deposits (where applicable).

Cash deposits from finance lease customers are collected
upfront based on certain percentage of the entire value of
the lease contracts. When the lease contracts expire and all
related liabilities and obligations are fulfilled by the
customers, the cash deposit will be returned in full. The
balance of the cash deposit can also be used to settle any
outstanding lease receivables for the corresponding lease
contract.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB73,299,000 (2023
RMB71547,000) of the Group's finance lease receivables was
impaired.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(B) FACTORING RECEIVABLES

The Group's factoring receivables arise from the provision of
factoring services to companies located in the PRC. The
credit period granted to each customer is generally within
365 days.

Factoring receivables are secured by receivables and/or
commercial bills originally owned by the customers. These
receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 500% to
1.04% (2023: 400% to 15.00%) per annum.

The maturity profile of the factoring receivables at the end of
the reporting period is as follows:

FE I 15 =R ()

(B) I R 15 FE U 2k 18
oA S I AR T B 5 M A £
A TR RIZER - BT 5B
[ IR — 8 5 365 KN -

REREERZTEANRRBEFES
BB SR IE S R BE R IR - 32
LR AEZRN T500%E1.04%
(20234 : 400% £ 1500% ) K £ Fl| =&
B e

REEHR - (RIE RS B UKKIARE
HIfERT

2024 2023

RMB0OO

ARBTIT

RMB'000
AR®T

With a residual maturity of: i# B AR PR -
Not more than 3 months T% R 3ER 2,900 1521
Over 3 months to 6 months SMERK EE6EA 3,19 26,691
Over 6 months to 12 months 6MEA EZ=121EA 1,656 12280
Over 12 months to 24 months 218 A A EE= 2418 A 351 4,471
Over 24 months to 36 months 248 A A EZ= 3618 A - 352
Overdue 2 61 HA 296,974 434,313
305,000 489,628

At the end of the reporting period, RMBI173,914,000 (2023
RMB309,145,000) of the Group's factoring receivables was
impaired, among which RMB149,488,000 (2023:
RMB135,256,000) was provided for certain individual
customer groups.

RmEEER - ARBI1739014,000 7T
(20234 : A R #309,1450007T) K
REBRNRERSERGRIED BE -
E e A R#5149,488,000 7T (2023 4F
AR #135256,0007T) B%& TERE
PRI -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(C) RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN FINANCING
SERVICES

The Group's receivables from supply-chain financing
services arise from the provision of supply-chain financing
services to companies located in the PRC. The credit period
for each customer is generally within 365 days.

These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 9.00%
t01820% (2023: 9.00% t0 1620%) per annum.

Certain receivables from supply-chain financing services
amounting to RMB97,619,000 (2023: RMB49,435,000) are
secured by certain interests of companies and personal
guarantees.

The maturity profile of the receivables from supply-chain
financing services at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

(C)

20. FEWIIER (&)

15 P8 88 30 E R 75 JE W R OR

752 (B A L e S B AR 7S R R R I 2K
B A B A B4R A g Rl AR o
XEFHEAER K AIBHRA -

25 R IEIZ N F 9.00% E1620%
(20234F : 0.00% £1620% ) B £ F| =&
§+/%\ °

ATHEERERGERRBARE
97,619,000 T (2023F : AR
40,43500070) A/ TR Al & (@
AERIEEIR -

R¥RE HR - 4 e 58 B B IR 7% 18 Wk
HWEBIMBERANT

2024
RMB’000

2023
RMB0OO
ARBT T

AR®TR

With a residual maturity of: el £ BAPR
Not more than 3 months T 31E AR 30,850 33206
Over 3 months to 6 months SMEANREZ=6MEA 14,600 12,000
Over 6 months to 12 months 6fE A E=121E A 52,169 4139
Overdue 2 i HA 1,520 1,744
99,139 51179

At the end of the reporting period, RMB1,520,000 (2023:
RMB1,744,000) of the Group's receivables from supply-chain
financing services was impaired.

Animpairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by considering the probability of default of those companies
with financial conditions, historical loss experience, coverage
by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance. At the
end of the reporting period, the loss given default for the
remaining balance of loan receivables was not material and
has no impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

21. OTHERNON-CURRENT ASSETS

21. HihFERBHEE

2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARSTR ARBTE
Other long-term receivables H b R EFE W GRIB 17,675 22204
Long-term loan receivables from REE=HRIEK
third parties & 227,430 61,000
Long-term lease receivables from KE—RE-ANRPHEE
a third party e U FRIE (i) 1,044,986 17,430
Long-term receivables for disposal & —fEEE R AR KA
of an associate JE UL FIE 309,683 396,003
Value-added tax ("VAT') recoverable FFEINGER (EEH]) 109,955 132,426
1,709,729 1/29,063
Less: Provision for impairment o AR (50,000) (50,000)
1,659,729 1679063
Note: B3

Long-term lease receivables from a third party

KB —RF=HORAEERER

Minimum lease Present value of minimum
receivables lease receivables
REHEERRE BEAEERRERE
2024 2024
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR¥T T ARETFT
Not more than Tyear THEEF 67,450 143,417 62,873 58,555
QOver Tyear but within 5 years T FESENUR 466,145 460483 374,328 143,685
Over 5 years but within 10 years 5FA FBI0FEA 626,858 614,671 363,416 295,801
Over 10 years but within 15 years 10F A EBI5F AR 677,434 670,879 273,380 492,722
Over 15 years but within 20 years 5F A EB20F AR 96,660 199,665 33,862 185222
1,934,547 2089115 1,107,859 1175985
Less: Unearned finance income W REIREE W (826,688) (913130)
Present value of minimum lease % (K FH & fE W RoE
receivables RE 1,107,859 1175985

The Group's long-term lease receivables are denominated in Renminbi. The
effective interest rate of the receivables is 7.28% (2023: 7.28%) per annum.
There are no unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under long-term
leases and no contingent rent arrangements that needed to be recognised
(2023: Nil).

There was no recent history of default and past due amounts for the long-
term lease receivables.

At the end of the reporting period, an impairment of RMB91,622,000 was
provided for the Group's long-term lease receivables.

REBEMNRPHERBGRIBEAARETE - BB
IBE BB FEF R B728% (20234 1 728%) °
BECARBASEENRERFIGER  NE
EAIATHEROSATBELZHE (2023 F : |) ©

EHAERUGRIAY BT ENEL MABSHE -

RIFEHAR - ERASENRBAEEKFE
RBEARE 91622000 7T °
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o,
FEMBIRFRMEE
31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H
22. INVENTORIES 22. B8
plopli! 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000O
AR T ARET T
Manufacturing and trading SERE S 4,911,827 5239246
Property development MEER 903,184 948,029
5,815,011 6,187,275

(A) MANUFACTURING AND TRADING

(A) HERES

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT  ARETE
Raw materials JRH ¥ 1,497,179 1,939,287
Work in progress TEE & 665,619 596,202
Finished goods ER 2,749,029 2,703,757
4,911,827 5239,246

(B) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (B) ME#ER

Property under development BRAME

2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARSTR  ARBTET

903,184 948,029

The property under development is expected to be
completed in more than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

23. PROPERTIES FROM RECEIVABLES SETTLEMENT

23. ASHEWRKARHYE

2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'0O00

AR®STR  ARBTET

Completed properties held for sale HIELENERIME

491,881 424192

As at 31 December 2024, properties from receivables settlement
represented the completed properties held for sale of
RMB491,881,000 (2023: RMB424,192,000) obtained by the Group
from receivables settlement arrangement. The Group has
obtained ownership certificates of the properties and they are
held for resale.

The properties are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
all costs of obtaining and other costs incurred in bringing the
properties to their present condition.

R2024F 12318 REERWRATED
MELAREBEZBRIBIRREEZHRS
MEBEEFHENERIPEARE
491,881,000 7t (2023 4F : A R #424192,000
L) c AEEERSZEMENNERES
MZEMEREEE -

ZEWMERARA R R FEMEFRE
EANER -FEHENDRIMENRAE
EAREBRSMERAAREYEZTE A
RSP E £ B B A o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A3 H
24. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24. SHIEE SWER
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTET
Contract assets BREE
Non-current: SERE
Concession operating right FERT A4S & 40,928 41735
Current: mE
Renovation and installation works BERLTETRE 399,589 376,736
Environmental engineering services IR LIEART 53,034 1515
Concession operating right FARR S 230 1289
452,853 389,540
Less: Provision for impairment W R E R (135,301) (14140)
317,552 275,400
358,480 317135
Contract liabilities BREE
Current: mE
Renovation and installation works HEMNLTERIRE 118,662 136,958
Environmental engineering services RETERS 8,134 10,654
Logistics and other related services Vi R E At 48 B8 AR 75 - 10,393
Advances from customers BEPBR 2,433,406 2,966,563
2,560,202 3124568
The Group's contract assets represent the Group's rights to AEENEGNEERERASERBEHRE
consideration for work completed but not yet billed to customers FTLEMKRAEP TR EHER -
at the end of the reporting period. The contract assets will be EAZENKREGRER  IAEEERNE
transferred to trade and bills receivables when the rights become EEMENZESRMTREHEETE -
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings to BREERSERZEHRKFBERER -
customers based on the certified amount agreed with customers.
At the end of the reporting period, RMB135,301,000 (2023: & EIR - AR 1353010007t (2023
RMBT14,140,000) was recognised as an allowance for expected F: ARMN41400007) R BENEE
credit losses on contract assets. The Group's trading terms and BHEEEEREE AKEEEZPNE S
credit policy with customers are disclosed in note 25 to the AR REEBRKENGRLEA M BREK
consolidated financial statements, B 3E25 o
The Group's contract liabilities represent the Group's obligations to AEENSHNEBERAEERNTPEER
transfer goods or services to customers for which the Group has SEEWBREXEREFRETCENE
received consideration, or for which an amount of consideration is MR EE -

due from the customers.
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24.
(Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
atthe end of the reporting period is as follows:

BHEE SHER®@)

RBEHR KERBEEANEENTART
R

2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARETE

Not more than 1year NS 317,552 275,400
Over 1year 1F A E 40,928 41735
358,480 317135

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract
assets are as follows:

BHEERENERBEEEHNT

2024
RMB’000

2023
RMB0OO
ARBTIT

Note
b= AR TR

As at1January MI1ATH 114,140 17,580
Impairment losses recognised ERRREER 7 21,161 96,560
As at 31 December K12 A3 H 135,301 1440

For the contract assets arising from renovation and installation
works and environmental engineering services, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates for
the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade and bills receivables as the
contract assets and the trade and bills receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are
based on the invoice date of trade and bills receivables for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (ie, by geographical region, product type, customer type
and rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of
credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

RERERLZRTIEBURIRETIEREHE
ENAHNEEMS AREREREAH
8RB ERBEETRED T A ERMIE
ERB-EANEENTBHEEBEN
BERDRESRYFAMEENEE
EERET NHRANEEME HER
REMEBRREEREFPE - AHNEEN
BREXREARUBEENNE S ELEK
BERZEOREEP D AR (iR E - &
mBE BEPEURFHR AREREX
Hp AN ERRR) WERAHRET - &
ARERREARMENER EERHEE
UERBERRAESEERESRMH |
MBRARKEFRRATAN GBI FFER -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

24. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group's contract assets using a provision matrix:

24. SHEE SHER®@

ATHFIEEAEEE AR BERTEN
AWARMEERBRAR -

BHEEBEX
Gross carrying amount FREAE

Expected credit loss rate

Expected credit losses RHEEEE

2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT AR®TET
29.9% 294%
452,623 388,251
135,301 114,140

For the contract assets arising from concession operating right,
since the parties to concession agreements are local government
authorities in Thailand, the Group considers the credit risk is low
as at the end of the reporting period. The Group does not hold any
collateral aver the balance.

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

IRHRERMEENANEENS &
WETHET ARBEM S BUTHE - K&
BRAENBEMRNEERRBE A&
] 30 % B A R A A (T o

B oK RIE R RR

2024 2023

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREBTRT AREBTT

Trade receivables 5 WA 6,617,006 6,759,727
Bills receivable B U =% 81,873 131717
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (2,760,375) (2,357,976)
3,938,504 4533468

The Group's major customers are independent distributors, civil
contractars, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in China. Depending on the market condition,
marketing tactics and relationships with the customers, the
Group's trading terms with its independent distributors may
change from settlement on an advance receipt basis to giving a
credit period of generally one month or more, if appropriate. The
Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period
granted to the non-distributor customers. The credit period of an
individual non-distributor customer is considered on a case-by-
case basis and is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate.
Sales to small, new, or short-term customers are normally
expected to be settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly after
the goods delivery. No credit term period is set by the Group for
small, new and short-term customers,

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
loss allowance, is as follows:

ESEKMIERERE (8)

RMERR AEENEFERKBERE
B ZH Y MBREEEERNERED
iR OENE

plopZil 2023

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®BTRT AREBTT

Not more than 3 months S SEEPS 1,463,516 1,562,030
Over 3 months to 6 months SEANREZ6MEA 458,116 663,173
Over 6 months to 12 months 6ME A EZ=121EA 529,070 884132
Overlyear to 2 years TFEAEE2F 894,988 897,964
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FEN EE3F 414,878 352300
Over 3 vears 3FELAE 177,936 173,869
3,938,504 4533468

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
Group's trade and bills receivables are as follows:

R B 5 e WO IR B R AR R(E /O 5 1R B

2024 2023

Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

B 5E ARST  ARBTT

As at1January ®W1A1H 2,357,976 1,792,754
Impairment losses recognised EHRRRBEERE 7 413,721 579,675
Loss of control of subsidiaries KEW B A a) i H (9,028) -
Amounts written off as uncollectible W sE AT AT U E B © 5 (2,294) (14,453)
As at 31 December n12 A31H 2,760,375 2,357,976

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on the invoice date for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e, by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,

Impairment provision amounting to RMB1,657,424,000 (2023:
RMBI1,612,849,000) were provided for trade and bills receivables
from certain individual customers at the end of the reporting
period after taking into account of the restriction on financing
management and the financial position of these individual
customers and credit enhancement held by the Group.

AEEREWwE R HEBEREERETR
BEOTUAERREERRE - BEXRE
BRUBBREANZTZTP 5 EER (ARt
B -EmBL FEPRIUNFE UEE
RExEBEANERRR) WERAHE
EeZif ERMAATMENER B
BEEARNREABRIESERELES
TR BOR R E AR TR A T2 XS

RESR EEEMANEFNMEEE
PR ) B B 745 AR 5 RN A 52 (B & 5 B 3 o8 4 e
% ERETENEFPHNE S EWRFIER
SR IRBERE ARK16574240007T
(20234 : AR¥1612,8490007T) °
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31 December 2024

2024412 A3 H

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. & SEWFRIA R EIR (#)
Except for the receivables from certain individual customers B batE FERIE P e B KRIASIN - KR
mentioned above, the remaining trade and bills receivables are BORBFBERERREAREBELZTILEFA
related to a large number of diversified customers and set out B AT RASEEREBERGTENRE
below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the HRESHRIBHIELERNEERRER
Group's remaining trade and bills receivables using a provision
matrix:

plopZ]
Within 1to 2to (0)V/:1¢
1year PACETC 3years 3years Total

1€/ 1825 2E35F FFENUE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTRK ARETRT AR%ETR AR%¥TxR

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 4.80% 20.92% 36.77% 74.38% 22.03%
Gross carrying amount EmaE 2,574,349 1,112,647 625554 694,479 5,007,029
Expected credit losses BEEEER (123,649) (232,762) (229,996) (516,544) (1,102,951)

2,450,700 879,885 395,558 177,935 3,904,078

2023
Wil Tto 2to Over
1year 2 years Syears Jyears Total

1ER 1E25 25 3F 3ELAE “a5t
RMBOOO RMB0OOO RMB0OOO RMBOOO  RMBOOO
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARBTT

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 365% 15.46% 28.61% 65.54% 14.36%
Gross carrying amount EmamE 317244 1,019,149 403,478 504579  5189,350
Expected credit losses TREEEEE (15,631) (157,608) (141178) (330,710) (745,127)

3,056,513 861541 352,300 173869 4444223
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2024412 A 31H
26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. EfIR - HE R At EWERIE
RECEIVABLES
plop! 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARST R  AREBTT
Prepayments TEfT R 814,191 857,846
VAT recoverable R FNIEE R 645,269 632189
Corporate income tax recoverable FEMEEME] 22,343 19,858
Deposits birgia 192,321 204,508
Current portion of long-term lease receivables & HITH & UGB R BI B 5 62,873 58555
Other recelvables H th JfE I FR T8 394,876 445,03
Other loan receivables Hoth i B TR 337,958 410,102
2,469,831 2,428,089
Less: Provision for impairment W R E R (247,297) (241,849)
2,222,534 286,240

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
Group's prepayment and other receivables are as follows:

24 85 B9 3 T 5 A M L1 54
BEZBHOT

2024 2023

Note RMB’'000 RMB'000

Bt aE ARETR  ARETE

As at1January RI1ATH 241,849 91288
Impairment losses recognised ERRREER 7 95,867 181702
Amounts written off as uncollectible WiE R TR E RS 5 (90,419) (31140)
As at 31 December w12 A31H 247,297 241,849

Except for the other loan receivables, the financial assets included
in the above balances are unsecured, interest-free and receivable
on demand. The effective interest rates of the other loan
receivables range from 3.50% to 12.00% (2023: 480% to 12.00%) per
annum.

BrE b AR ME KON s A LA SR S Bl
BETVERE 28 RIZERIR - HAh
FEULE R B BRF F RN F 350% £1200%
(2023 % : 480% &1200%) °
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31 December 2024

2024412 A3 H
27. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS 27. HERBITHENR
2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARTR  ARBTE
Restricted cash: FER&IIRS -
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities ERIRITRENEREZS 1,396,016 1397,504
Cash and cash equivalents: ReMRLFED
Time deposits with original maturity of three  EEIFE R (REBREREHR A
months or less when acquired Z@AAT) 32,419 59102
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEH 5,214,116 5096378
5,246,535 5155480
Cash and bank deposits R& RIRITER 6,642,551 6,552,084
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank FRORIRITHIER BT BIRITHERN EH
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying B A R BREUR S, o 52 HA E HATE AR ERBR
periods between one day and three months and earn interest at NF—RE=ZFAAAZFLREEHETHE
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances A EREANE  RITEBRRZBREIR S
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with no TR s B2 1050 8% B (S B R T HORTT ©
recent history of default.
28. ASSET HELD FOR SALE 28. FHIEHESEE
In 2023, the Group decided to sell one of its investment properties R2023%F - MR AEBENEENE R
located in Toronto, Canada because the Group changed its BitE BRARAELEEUANERZ @
development plan in Canada. The disposal of the investment ZH-—HEREVE - REMVENLER
property was completed in November 2024, 2024 N A A o

2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®STR | ARBTE

Asset held for sale HIELELE

331,001
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2024912 B 318

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

29. ESEMRIERER

2024 2023
RMB’000 RMB00O

ARMTR  ARBTET

Trade payables B S ENFIE 3,491,040 3,280,076
Bills payable JE AR 5,194,067 508909
8,685,107 8,369,185

The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

HSBNFEBENRE  REHRAT R0
ZEOOK e

RBEHR AEENESHENFARE
BREZAHNRESTOT

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TRE ARBTE

Not more than 3 months T%Z R 31ER 5,761,266 4,881254
Over 3 months to 6 months SEALAEE6EA 2,617,806 2,036,292
Over 6 months to 12 months 6MEAA E=121EA 182,882 420,588
Over 1vyear to 2 years TN EE2F 73,573 48906
Over 2 years to 3 years PENEESF 15,502 20,619
Over 3years 3FLAE 34,078 52526

8,685,107 8,369,185

The Group's trade payables include RMB1,677,970,000 (2023
RMB1,047,186,000) due to suppliers that have signed up to a
supply chain financing programme, under which the Group issues
standard debt certificate based on the supplier's invoice. The
suppliers can receive the payment on the basis of each debt
certificate with the following two options: (i) to receive the payment
in accordance with the originally agreed payment terms from the
Group; or (i) to receive an early payment that is lower than its value
by discounting the debt to the participating bank. If option (ii) is
selected, the Group's liability is assigned to be due to the
participating bank rather than the supplier. The value of the debt
by the Group remains unchanged and should be paid by the
Group in accordance with the originally agreed payment terms.
The Group assesses the arrangement against those indicators if
the debt the suppliers have assigned to the participating banks
under such programme continues to meet the definition of trade
payables or whether it should be classified as borrowings. At the
end of the reporting period, the balance of debts assigned to the
participating banks that meet the criteria of trade payables is
RMBI1135,053,000 (2023: RMB773,514,000).

AEENESENFEREERD S EE
EHEBREAENHERAINNARYE
1,677,970,000 7T (2023 F : AR #
1047186,0007T) B AN E B R BEHER
BE W EIZEBRRE - HEDE A FEI
TRfE®g2E, - WNREEEHRBNNE:
(i) 422 FR AN 52 B R 5 19 8 B0 1 SRAGRRUR R ¢ 8K
(B BASEBITETESITES NIRA
WEEREBENN K - WEEZEE()E
AEENEBEREMNZEET  mIEEM
HEY AEBEENEEERETE 8
A B BRI E N SIS o
AEERBEABIESTEZLE  ORIE
ZAr BB HERNESERE AL RIETTH
ESRRBERCEIENFENES
UZEEBREEDEAER - RHREH
K BEEFLABRITOXFLAESEN
FIBREMER &% A ARE1135053000
JC (20234 : AR¥7735140007T) °
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31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H
30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. HitEMRIERETER
plopli! 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000O
ARETx  AREBTIT
Accruals FET & A 248,942 240,780
Salaries and welfare payables Bt #H e kEF 269,330 286,365
Other payables H fth & 508 858,025 116849
1,376,297 1,695,294
The financial liabilities included in the above balances are interest- FPALIEHRNEemEBEENRBRIZEX
free and repayable on demand, B e
31. BORROWINGS 31. B®
plopli! 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTT  ARBTT
Current B
Unsecured bank loans EAIRIRITTE X 4,968,294 6,549,400
Current portion of long-term unsecured bank ~ REFEEFETER
loans SOpEIE S 1,643,405 1,631,858
Secured bank loans BEMIBEITER 15,884 141,355
Current portion of long-term secured bank REAEMRITER
loans EopERE Ay 8,127 15,934
Current portion of unsecured syndicated loans KRB B E XA REN I 5 1,808,243 2236,069
Other borrowings HAafEsk 12,764 17,037
8,556,717 10,692,553
Non-current ERE
Unsecured bank loans HEIRRIRITE R 6,485,478 3,624,206
Unsecured syndicated bank loans I RIRE B 4,137,607 4921822
Secured bank loans BIRPIRITER 49,017 105915
10,672,102 8,652,033
19,228,819 19,344,586
Analysed into borrowings repayable: AT RBEEEN
Within one year or on demand —F IR E KA 8,556,717 10,692,553
In the second year ¥ -FERN 2,808,881 1,909,172
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoFEERFRN(BIEEEMF) 7,613,800 6,528,650
More than five years ZRAFE 249,421 214,211

19,228,819 19,344,586
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31 December 2024
2024412 A 31H

31. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Note:

(@)

The effective interest rates of the Group's borrowings range from 170% to
8.00% (2023: 250% to 7.07%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured by
land and its concession rights of a subsidiary, leasehold lands and buildings
of subsidiaries, other intangible assets of a subsidiary, investment property of
a subsidiary and a personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of a
subsidiary.

At 31 December 2023, the secured bank loans are secured by land and its
concession rights of subsidiaries, investment property of a subsidiary,
personal guarantees provided by shareholders of subsidiaries and the
guarantee provided by shareholders of subsidiaries.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's borrowings are denominated in
US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi, Australian dollar, Tanzanian shillings, Malaysian
ringgit, Philippine peso, Canadian dollar and Baht which are equivalent to
RMB3,390,927,000 (2023: RMB4,242,510,000), RMB3,654,818,000 (2023:
RMB4,492,342,000), RMB11,850,772,000 (2023: RMB10,281,695,000),
RMB261,407,000 (2023: RMB281,206,000), RMB11,760,000 (2023: Nil),
RMB2,916,000 (2023: Nil), RMB1,004,000 (2023: Nil), Nil (2023: RMB622,000)
and RMB55,215,000 (2023: RMB46,21,000), respectively.

31. &R @)

BEE

(@)

REEBEREERFERENF170% £ 800% T
% (20234 1 250% & 707%) °

RMEHR - BEARTERTA—RHE QR
i R BEHEERE  —RNBARMEER
B RET  —HNBARNEMELEE -
—RNBRARMRENER —HIELAR 4
PR ERE B AFELR ©

M2023F 12 A318 - AEIRIRITE T LAK B
NAR T R ARG EE - —REARMNE
B - WB DRI EA TR EA R
FHPERIEER -

RMEHEK  REBMUET B AR R
TEERRDES  BREDMKER  FEREL
RN REHAENERDISERARE
3,390,927,000 7T (2023 F : A R ¥ 4,242510,000
7T) ~ ARME3654818000 7 (20234 : AR
4,492,342,0007C) + AR ¥11,850,772,000 7T
(20234 : AR#10281,6950007T) - AR
261,407,000 7C (20234 = A R #281,206,000
7T) ~ AR¥N760,0007T (20234F « &) - AR
¥ 2,016,000 7 (2023 4F : &) - A R#1004,000
JC (20234 : &) £ (20234 : AR# 622000
L) B AR # 552150007 (20234 : AR
46,211,000 7T) °
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32. PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE 32.
BENEFITS

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

REESEHREE

RERMEEREZSHNT

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T  ARETE

As at1January R®1A1R 6,908 6,387

Current service cost (note 7) BIVEARR 5 A AR (M 5E7) 846 851

Interest cost F BB 90 90
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from: BT SEEENBEE (W) /B8 :

Demographic assumptions changes AR #1{E 199 -

Financial assumptions changes IS RERE 88 -

Experience adjustments KER A (976) -

Benefit paid B (1,038) (616)

Exchange realignment E H PR 391 196

As at 31 December 2024 2024412 A 31 H 6,508 6,908

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the
defined benefit obligations were carried out by NIDA Consulting
Center, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

REBMEARENSCABBELETH
NIDA Consulting Center ik A T BRI &
WBEMEEET -

REBEBFRRANEEREBRNT -

Discount rate (%) AL IR R (%)
Expected rate of salary increases (%) TEHI T & 7R 1@ (%)
Staff turnover rate B ITinkx

2.3%-2.4% 14%-19%
3.0% 3.0%
0.0%-28.0% 0.0%-310%

The Group expect to pay RMB1,300,000 of long-term employee
benefits in the next year (2023: RMB1,000,000),

At the end of the reparting period, the weighted average duration
of the liabilities for long-term employee benefits is 6 to 7 years
(2023:6t0 10 years).
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32. PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS (Continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at
the end of the reporting period is shown below:

32. RHESEAEE @

RBEPRREABROEEFZREST

REAE

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
RERBHNERE AERHNERE
B, CRa) #Bh, Omd)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET R
2024
Discount rate Bh3R = 1 (342) ) 382
Expected rate of salary TEEA T & RIS
increases 1 382 (1) (342)
Staff turnover rate BImKkx 1 (362) 1) 80
2023
Discount rate Bh3R = 1 (394) ) 15
Expected rate of salary TEHEA T & iR IE
increases 1 58] 0] (519)
Staff turnover rate BT kX 1 (394) ) 83
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PROVISION FORLONG-TERM EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit

32. RHESEAEE @

Tt EE S

DT T E R M E 2 RRN |

THRELAEEIMYRERNEET

obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions REZEN T EETE - REDHIDER
occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity —EAEXRBREEE - MAEHEMERRRE

analysis is based on a change in a significant assumption,
keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis

RF#

CHERENMABREAERNE
ETNERES  IHHRNBRRES T AR

may not be representative of an actual change in the defined BEEE
benefit obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another.
33. DEFERRED TAX 33. EEBIR
The major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and their RAFERBAFECERNEZRTER
movements during the current and prior years are as follows: HEE/(AR) REEBHNT :

Fairvalue

adjustment Withholding loss  Fairvalue  Fairvalue

arising from Fair value taxon availablefor ~ adjustments  adjustments

investment adjustments  distributable offsetting ~ arising from of equity Re-

properties  Provisionfor  Accelerated  arising from profits of against financial ~ investments measurement

andother  impairment tax acquisitionsof ~ subsidiaries Deferred future instrument  atfairvalue  ondefined  Rightof-use Lease
properties ofassets depreciation  subsidiaries  inthe PRC income  taxable profit atFVTPL  throughOCI  benefit plan assets liabilties

BAAEE

B ROAEE  HARR

LIS YRKELE TENEAR URMEEE  HAREN  2EAEN
FEEH 3 mg FEENAL THREAN RRERE ERMIAN BERRN REEAHY
DAEEIE ) REFE  EEERE  BRARR  EEME  EANER DAEEAE  2ENHE

Asat 31 December 2022 HONENANR (437504) 344467 (197160) (13264) (B44627) 23840 99681 18691 18005 n (106} 51307 (835383
Creditedcharged) to profitorloss 5tA/(118) £ B3
forteyearnoteg) (Hito) 739 12782 99889 66 1007 1198) 38733 1012 - 8% 106 7300 08074
Creditedi{charged) to ofher HA/(HE)EE
comprehensive inoome Efb2E
forthe year % - - - - - - - - 1636) - - - 1636)
Exchange realignment (3% [5437) 8 184 7 - - 1040 - - K - - [4018)
Asat3IDecember203and  R20BERAIAR
1Ly 2024 WUEIBIR (5707 4T3 (@087 (070 (4048 23344 63,988 8,569 6,369 1381 - 58705 (424973
Creditedcharged)to profitorloss 5tA/(118) ER i
for the year [note 9) (Bis) 3552 25765 (26,868) 6,567 60,520¢ 1124 2975 (14,71) - - (15) (1121 83760
Credited/|charged) o other HA/ (8 EE
comprehensive income Afe2E
for the year i = = - - - - - - (2754) (149) - - (21,903)
Lossofcontrolof subsidiaries % AMBA R - (3.632) (163) 8,463 - - - - - - - (4612) 56
Bxchange realignment EfA% 70 58 (624) (1.219) o S (796) S o 2 - 6 (1896)
Asat 31December 2024 WOUERAIA (579,468) 499,522 (124,742) (93,263) (384,428) 24,468 66,167 (6,142) (15,385) 1261 (15) 47,069 (364,956)
# The amount represented the deferred tax provision of RMB32,364,000 (2023: # ZeER/ARRAI G BN E A [ DR E
Nil) on the distributable profits of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC after o B I RE T8 B A R 32,364,000 7T (2023
offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities of RMB92,884,000 (2023 F ) WK HZE N E A R R FERNRIEINE
RMBI99,679,000) arising from dividends declared by these subsidiaries to BEESRREMEENEEREEHBBAEA
their foreign investors during the year. R# 0928840007t (20234 : AR#199,679,000
TT) e
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the

- EREFIA (&)

2024
RMB’'000

2023
RMB0OO
ARBTT

AR®TR

KRG FIEARR R AHER

consolidated statement of financial position  EXEF B E E L 672,469 661170

Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the B’\ﬁ%{:\. B AR 2= IN HERH
consolidated statement of financial position  EEFTE A B4 (1,037,425) (1,086,143)
(364,956) (424973)

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in China in respect of their
earnings generated from 1 January 2008, The applicable rate for
the Group is 5%.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities of RMB501,790,000 (2023: RMB388,914,000)
in respect of temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries, amounting to RMBI0,035,805,000 (2023
RMBY7,778,285,000), that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

34. DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by the
Group as financial subsidies for the renovation of factories and
machineries or the construction of new factory premises in
Guangdong, Changchun, Hunan, Hainan, Daging, Hubei, Yunnan,
etc. and rental income received in advance from certain of the
Group's employees for leasing the staff quarters,

The government grants are released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant premises by equal annual
instalments, while rental income received in advance is
recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective lease
terms.

34. iE

Ba% SR R B AR S Y B BB A R) B 2008 F 1
R1REMBAMNmMDENREMS @ A%
EEAMERAEGH AEEMEARE
A 5% e

RMERR ARARREHZEWEA
AIMREBER  BZEBMRA LGRS
KA REME R K MASRBE T EERZSE
MEBARADKEMNEREZEAARE
w0055805000ﬁ(2025¢',kﬁﬁ%
7,7782850007) MIELERIBEEE (AR
ﬁz%ﬁamﬂkiﬁ)AEmewom
JC (2023 F + AR¥3889140007T) °

5E I 2

AR FE UK o5 5 N SR B U ER O BT FE BD - (F
HERR K& #E 88 KE - Hi
K EE LB TR MW BEH TRY
XM MR ARBAKERETEE
BAWBRWEEEIEEHS K -

BEMONEREERRIEAFRARK
FUSHEBRABRANER MR KRR
HeWamRiEs ABBNERRER -
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31 December 2024

2024F 12 A31H
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. &
Shares R4 2024 2023
Authorised: EE
20,000,000,000 (2023:20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 (2023 % : 20,000,000,000) & HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK30.05 each BREMESBTHLER 1,000,000,000% 7 1000000000787
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:
3102418400 (2023: 3102,418,400) 3102418400 (2023 : 3102418400) i HK$155,120,920 HK$155120,920
ordinary shares of HK30.05 each BREESATHLER 155,120,920 3% 7t 155/209203 ¢
Equivalentto EER RMB135,344,000 RMBI35,344,000
AR#135344000T  AR1353440007T

36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of the
Company's subsidiaries registered in the PRC is required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory profit after tax (after
offsetting any prior years' losses) determined in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to the
statutory reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of
its registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital, provided that the
remaining balance of the statutory reserve is not less than 25% of
the registered capital.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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36. f#iE

AEEAFERBEFEOHELBRA
EHEREAMEEDEA2T] -

BEFRARE RPBEFMHEARAS
WEBAREBRERRARSTRAET
MR EFEETEN (KEETABEF
EHER) MOEREETHE BE2H
HESHWEBREINEFMEARNS0% %
THREVANKEBTFEMNBERAR
EMRA AT RESRETORNEME
KEY25% °
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2024512 A3 8
37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 37. LR BERNZ M
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (A) HERRESTE

On 14 May 2024, EDA Group Holdings Limited (‘EDA), a then
subsidiary of the Group, adopted a pre-initial public offering
share option scheme, a post-initial public offering share
option scheme, a pre-initial public offering restricted share
unit scheme and a post-initial public offering restricted
share unit scheme, for the purpose of providing incentives
to directors, senior management, employees and officers
and to reward their performance contribution.

No share option under the share option schemes has been
exercised up to 28 May 2024. And no share was issued or
held under the restricted share unit schemes as at 28 May
2024 when EDA was spun off from the Group.

The Group has recognised share option expense and share
award expense of RMB7,289,000 in total in relation to the
share option schemes and share award schemes during
the period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no
share options outstanding under the share options
schemes (2023: Nil), and no restricted share units under the
restricted share unit schemes (2023: Nil).

R2024F5 148 AEEE B
NAEDASEIZERAER A E ([EDAJ)
RarR A AEEmBRETS -8
RAFRBERERETS - 5ALH
BEFZRHIROBAFTERERAAD
FARERIREHIRMGEBELE - U
BEE SAEEAE EBEXSH
BB - WREERIREE -

BHE2024%5H288 - i EBERAET
EIIET 2 BAR LT - 20244 5
A28 HEDAR AL B SR - &R
BRI MDEM T BT E R

,f/'\ °

B NEE S BE RS MRS
REETE MR IE IR X R I 12
A5t ARB 72890007 °

REREHR - AR R R B ER 28
N A R {7 R AR #E (2023 4F ¢
) SREIRMEMTEE T L E
SRR B MY AL (2023 4F = 48) o

Annual Report 2024
w207




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

31 December 2024
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
(B) SHARE AWARD SCHEME

i208)

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the "Share Award Scheme’) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons to the Group and to
offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted talent
and persannel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group.

Eligible persons include any individuals being employees,
directors, officers, consultants or advisers of any members
of the Group or any affiliate who the Board or its delegate(s)
considers, in their sole discretion, to have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, Shares will be
purchased by the trustee from the open market out of cash
contributed by the Company and held on trust for the
selected participants until such Shares are vested with the
relevant selected participants in accordance with the
Scheme Rules. No new Shares will be granted under the
Share Award Scheme.

The total amount of the funds contributed to the Scheme by
the Company shall not exceed HK$750,000,000 and the
Board shall at its absolute discretion to determine the
amount of fund contributed to the Share Award Scheme for
each financial year of the Company.

The Company shall not make any further grant of award
which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme (excluding award shares that have been forfeited in
accordance with the Share Award Scheme) to exceed 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company without
shareholders” approval. The total number of non-vested
award shares granted to a selected participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total
number of issued shares at all time.

During the year, no ordinary shares of the Group on the
Stock Exchange were purchased for the Share Award
Scheme (2023: Nil). At the end of the reporting period,
22,991,000 ordinary shares have been purchased (2023;
22,991,000 ordinary shares).

No shares have been awarded under the Share Award
Scheme since the adoption.
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38. LOSS OF CONTROL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 28 May 2024, EDA and its subsidiaries (collectively the "EDA
Group’) underwent and completed the spin-off from the Group
and separate listing. EDA was listed (the "EDA Listing’) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”). Upon its
listing, EDA became an associate of the Group. The EDA Group is
principally engaged in the provision of first-mile international
freight services and last-mile fulfillment services, including BARE  BREEINERH HMIEERSE
overseas warehousing, other value-added services and deliveries RN EAE B RERSEE R
for the cross-border e-commerce participants based in Chinese B KPR 7% -

Mainland.

RMB0OO
ARBTT

38. R EMBAEEH#E

R2024%5 A28 ' EDAREMB AR (45
TBIEDAKLE ) BTV TR REAEE DT KL
B LM -EDAREBBBMARSHEBRA
A ([t prl) £ (TEDA L) - RE E
1% - EDARK AR EMEE A5 c EDAS
ErEHERHEiEREeEREMNER

Net assets disposed of: FEEFREE
Property, plant and equipment M - W K& B 7496
Other intangible assets Hibh |\ EE 56420
Right-of-use assets EREEE 198782
Goodwill Bl 35438
Deferred tax assets BT IEEE 8,598
Other financial assets HemEE 49,762
Trade and bills receivables B S RWHIERRE 159,305
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AN - e R EH AW RIA 73,956
Cash and bank deposits Re RIBITER 179,356
Tax payable FETHL IR (4728)
Trade and bills payables B RNFIEREE (119,010
Lease liabilities HEBRE (214,348)
Contract liabilities aHEE (1,675)
Other payables and accruals B E AR ERTE A (21,494)
Borrowings R (67156)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEE (8,654)
Net assets FERE 332,048
Non-controlling interests eSS (181228)
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve b 5 R B e 999
Gain on loss of control of subsidiaries eI EPNGIE = 3 R C P 124,242
Total consideration BRE 276,061
Satisfied by: BATAAEZA
30.27% of total listed equity instrument of EDA FDA iz T BE2%EH 3027% 276,061

REDAREEZGIENR SRR EEY
MHEFBEOMT

RMB0OO
ARBTT

Cash and cash balances disposed of and outflowof ~ BEHEME S RREEH AR
cash and cash equivalents ReMREFEWRL 179,356

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the loss of control of EDA Group is as follows:
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reparting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2023: Nil).

40. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following contractual commitments at the end

of the reporting period:

Property, plant and equipment and

39. NAAE
RIESR AEETEETEALAR

& (20234F : &)

40. ki

WE - BE KR EM

RBMEHR

2024
RMB’'000

AR®TR

AEBEEIAT A LALE

2023
RMB0OO
ARBTT

investment properties KEME 1,735,048 2,072,082
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 41. FBtAN TR S REGER
BALANCES
(A) THE GROUP’'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH (A) FAXREEHEBEBEATHEKXR

RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR

Connected transactions

BEXS

Transactions with companies underthe RZEERT —EFE

common control of a director:

Sales of goods, services,
utilities and others

Rental income

Rental expenses

Purchase of materials

@

Purchase of machinery and/

or equipment
Purchase of electronic accessories
Purchase of other intangible assets
Hotel expenses

Non-connected transactions

Purchase of goods, equipment,
utilities and rental services
from associates

Sales of goods, services, utilities and
others to an associate

Loans to associates

Borrowings from an associate and
related interest expenses

Design and maintenance services
from a joint venture

EHORANRS
HESm R
NAEENEMD
ikl €
Gikas
REEMR
REEHES R
B
REEFRM
REBHMETEE
BIEEM

FEEXRS

A E R RREER

R PREER

HE R
F—EBEARHEEER
R~ AREEREM
RES=PNCIE 27 SN

KA SRR ER R
HHEA A B R X
BEBREHMR R

HEAE IR

R

(vii)
U

(vili)
(ix)
(x)

2024
RMB’000

ARBTR

17,373
2,430
4,650
20,804

175,019
4,069

399
2,907

75,182

2,422
81,154

1,017

1,902

2023
RMB0OO
ARBTT

1350
1349
1383
16,817

206,151
10,285

407
5200

201576

3820
31138

779

21292
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A) THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH

RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)
Note:

(i) Sales of goods, services and others to related companies were made
with reference to the prices and conditions offered by the Group to the
third-party customers, Utilities were provided by related companies at
cost.

(i) Rental income from related parties was made with reference to the
prices and conditions offered by the Group to the third-party
customers.

(if) Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms,

(iv) Purchases of materials from related companies were made based on
mutually agreed terms,

v) Purchases of machinery, equipment, electronic accessories and other
intangible assets from related companies were made with reference
to the prices and conditions offered by the related companies to their
third-party customers.

(vi) Hotel expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

(vii) Purchases of goods, equipment, utilities and rental services from
associates were made on normal commercial terms negotiated on an
arm'’s length basis by the parties with reference to the prevailing
market prices.

(vil)  The covenants of loans to associates were based on mutually agreed
terms.

(ix) The covenants of borrowings from an associate were based on
mutually agreed terms,

x) Services provided by a joint venture were based on mutually agreed
terms.

# These related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules but are exempted from complying with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules.

a1. BABEE N L3 5 R (&)

(A) FAXEEEBBHATIHEKX
X5 (&)
L5

Hp

(i MEABARMHEE D R REA T
K%@ﬁ"zﬁgﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ#
EQEEL NAEETRK A B

NSIE 7

(i) KEBBALTHASKE AR EER
FE=HBEFPHLNER R RLRBETT -
(i) ML NIRETHEOGKETE -
(iv) MEIIRE R BEMNGERABABAREE -
W) W RENETRGEMAMEREE
RS EBHMARME=FEFRALN
BRREFEAEBAREE -
V)  EEERTRESGERIRRETE -
Vi)  MEBEARIKEER BE RAFER

HERBDREF2EZEHTHERE
DT HERE 3 5E B0 IE P 2 R AUETT -

Vi) mBERARRMKERORZEDREES
1 7€ BV IR EEE

(x)  TRE—FEBEARNERNRZE T IRE
R F R IRAEE ©

K BEDETVRET HE MW IRTIRERT o

‘ ZERBA LR Z K LR AIFE 144
BERMAENHEERSIRFEBERS
MR RET EmARAORERE
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(B) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

a. AL SRR (8)

(B) E2BAMEAN L HVAERR

Note
Mo

2024 2023
RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARSTR  ARBTE

Balances with companies under HEZEARAZ —UES
the common control of a director 2NN O FE
arising from: xa -
Deposits paid for the purchase of BEMEE R R
machinery and/or equipment Copisn (i 212,031 199,372
Purchase of machinery and/or BEMER
equipment Fl (i 69,924 14414
Sales of module, utiliies and others  $5EREE - AR EEMEM (i) 126,539 3454
Balances with associates arising from: B2 B & N BB AR K -
Purchase of goods, equipment, RBEm ®E 2AFE
utilities and rental services MHEE R (i 4,294 5408
Sales of module, services, utilities HEER RS RAEE
and others K E A (i) 98 1463
Borrowings from an associate g — & QR E R (iv) 1,017 18,779
Note: B 5

(i) The balances are included in the Group's deposits paid for the
purchase of land, property, plant and equipment.

(if) The balances are included in the Group's trade payables and other
payables and accruals,

(iif) The balances are included in the Group's trade receivables and other
receivables.

(iv) The balances are included in the Group's borrowings and other
payables and accruals,

{i)

()
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(C)

(D)

COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into lease
agreements with a director and a company under the
common control of a director to lease properties for
operations, and sale and purchase agreements with a
company under the common control of a director to
purchase machinery and/or equipment for production. The
capital commitments of RMB68,846,000 (2023:
RMB35,185,000) have been included in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements,

COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of the Company's directors and the senior
management was as follows:

a. AL SR (8

(C)

(D)

BARAEE A T REEIE
AREBAETHEARAHEWEEL
ERRE-ZEER—HERFT M
EFEHHORRTLAERZE LA
BERELR SREEEERGE—
MERZ —NEZEHNARGILE
H i o AR 688460007t (2023
£ AR 35185000 7T) B & AR IE
BERGRET MR L0 -

FEETEEEASHH

ARAEZNEREEBNHFHIOT :

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARBTTT

Short-term employee benefits MEREERT 28,301 28,709
Post-employment benefits RIKEREF 276 282
28,577 28,991
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 42. ERITRAMAAEEE
INSTRUMENTS

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Financial assets

Note RMB'000
B & AR® T

(A) EmMITEEH

RBEMR SRR TANKEE
LI

ETHMEE
2024 2023
RMB0OO
ARBTT

Financial assets at amortised cost:  KEE#5K K F R & Gt B E -
Loan receivables JEUR & 3Kk 20 283,693 310,341
Trade and bills receivables E 5 EWRIE KRR 25 3,938,504 4533468
Financial assets included in other T AE M FE W FRIE R
receivables TREE 754,817 898,845
Financial assets included in other ETAEMIERBEER
non-current assets SREE 1,549,774 1,546,637
Cash and bank deposits & RIRITER 27 6,642,551 6,552,984
13,169,339 13,851275
Financial assets at AR EEF ARMEE Kz
FVTOC!: B & REE -
Debt instruments at BEARBEFTAEMEERE
FVTOCI HEBTE 19 15,403 141,873
Equity instruments at RARBEF ALMDERE
FVTOCI MR ATA 19 1,399,543 1,469,331
1,514,946 1,611,204
Financial assets at AN EEF AR
FVTPL: EHEE -
Debt instruments at BARBEFTABERD
FVTPL ELTA 19 71,228 106,848
Equity instruments at BRARBER ABZD
FVTPL B AT A 19 318,676 230,876
Funds at FVTPL BRARBEIFABZNES 19 70,766 13328
Derivative financial instruments TESMIA 19 5,181 -
465,851 351,052
15,150,136 15,813,531

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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42. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(B)

(Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:

42. SR TRMAREENE @)

(A) BT EER @

TRaE

Note
M5

BEHK AR 2 B A (& -

2024 2023
RMB'000

RMB’000

AR®MTRE ARBTE

Trade and bills payables ZHRNFIERER 29 8,685,107 8,369,185

Financial liabilities included in other 5T A b & (< 2008 N B+ &
payables and accruals MesasE 1,106,967 1,408,929
Borrowings fa&mk 3 19,228,819 19,344,586
Lease liabilities HEAE 13B 416,886 1,351,051
Other long-term payables H fth &= HA JE 1< 5RI8 4,84 5472
29,441,963 30,479,223

FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.

Assets measured at amortised cost:

The fair values of loan receivables, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in other receivables,
cash and bank deposits, trade and bills payables, the
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
current portion of borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

(B) EMIAENQAEE

AEENYHHFIAEETESRTA
AREBEAENBRREERF - RER
T WHIAMASTERmITANE
BEEPLRETEANEENEZHA
g - HERYHAERM ML -

BBENATENEE

FEUAE TR - B 5 I WRA R 9% - AT
AHMBEEFRENEREE R R
RITEFER BZEARERER &
ARMENFRBERETERNSHEA
BEMERNORDHBONAAEERE
RHEABES  TEARZZER
TANBRSEH -
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIRVALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(B)

Assets measured at amortised cost: (Continued)

The fair values of financial assets included in other non-
current assets, non-current portion of borrowings and other
long-term payables have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The difference between carrying
amount and fair value of the non-current portion of the
barrowings as at 31 December 2024 were assessed to be
insignificant because most of them bear interest at floating
interest rates. The carrying amounts of the other long-term
receivables and other long-term payables are not materially
different from their fair values due to the immaterial amount.

Assets measured at fair value:

Level1
EF—%&
RMB’000

42. SR TAENAREETE @

TR T ANAREE @

RBERANTENEE ()

AAEMIERBEENSREE &
FEFERB I D M E M RAENRIE
MNARBEAEFELUEGSR  EER
R & el gk BR PR A9 T A A9 IR BE AT EUAS A9
FIRBIIRFBE R RIS REMTE »
R2024F 12 A31H » XA IERBNI6
DHEEELAAAEEEZERTITA
MTRE  BACMAIEDIRZEHF
it B Bt REEWREREME
HEMRENREEERN BT TE
A BEEARBETESAEZR -

BEAREEFENEE:

2024
Fair value hierarchy
DNABEEERE

Total
4t
RMB’000

Level 3
%Eﬂ&
RMB’000

Level 2
EZR
RMB’000

ARBTT AR TR AR TR AR¥ TR

Other financial assets HttemERE

Debt instruments at EAREBEFAEMEZE

FVTOCI W EH TR - 15,403 - 15,403
Debt instruments at BARBESABZN

FVTPL EFTE - - 71,228 71,228
Equity instruments at BRAREBEFAREMMEZE

FVTOCI WHEMBRARTA 216,240 294,809 888,494 1,399,543
Equity instruments at RARBEFTAERE

FVTPL e = 30,000 = 288,676 318,676
Funds at FVTPL BRANBEFABENES - 70,766 - 70,766
Derivative financial PTHES R

instruments TAH 5,181 - - 5,181

251,421 480,978 1,248,398 1,980,797
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 42. EMTRANAREEE @)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) M I AMNAAEE ()
(Continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued) BRARBEFENEE  (H)

2023
Fair value hierarchy
NABERE

Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— F_H B st
RMB0OOO RMB0OOO RMB0OOO RMB0OO
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT

Other financial assets HithemEE
Debt instruments at BAREBEFAEMEE
FVTOCI WaHEKTA - 141,873 - 141873
Debt instruments at BEAREBEFABREDN
FVTPL ERLTE - 106,848 106,348
Fquity instruments at BRARBEFTAHMEE
FVTOC! Wasa AT A 367776 289,000 812555 1469331
Equity instruments at BRARBEFAEBREY
FVTPL fgEAT A 30,000 - 200,876 230,876
Funds at FVTPL RARBEFABRNES - 13328 - 13328
397,776 444,201 1120279 1962256
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FANEF-—BANAAEBEFESHN
during the year are as follows: N
plop! 2023
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T
As at1January M1ATH 1,120,279 1250128
Additions NE 29,878 66,597
Unrealised gain/(loss) recognised Rz AERERERFm
in profit or loss (E18) 91,081 (38297)
Unrealised gain/(loss) recognised in REMEEKZEAERNARER
other comprehensive income = (E518) 54,205 (56,313)
Disposal k= (48,362) (76,336)
Transfer to Level 1 EEREE—R - (30,000)
Exchange realignment M H SR 1,317 4,500
As at 31 December w12 A31H 1,248,398 1120279
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA - RAABEFEMNS  F—R
measurements between Level 1and Level 2 and no transfers BAZE A o MW B ERRE =R
into or out of Level 3. B3 At 4% Rl 2 R P9 B AT AT S 3 o
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 42. SR TAENAREETE @
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) M I AMNAAEE ()
(Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2023, certain equity RBZE2023F2ANBILEFE - &EF
instruments measured at FVTPL were transferred from Level BRAABEFABROREAIARK
3to Level 1 due to the successful listing on National Equities WEZEHR/NEERDEZE RGBS
Exchange and Quotations. MEBE=ZREREEE—R -
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to UTRRBERREmIAKENE
the valuation of financial instruments together with a AT BREABBERNTEHRE
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at the end of the reporting DITHIEE -
period
Significant Sensitivity of

Valuation technique unobservable input fair value to the input

fE{EH % EXTUEHEHABE ARBEHAAHBNHEE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI Net asset value approach Net assetvalues N/A
BARBEAARMEENE EEFEE EEFE AR

MRATA

Recent transactions approach  Recent transaction prices N/A

R 5% RAR 5B TER

Market approach P/S Ratio from 348 to 1500 10% increase in ratio would resultin

5% MR A 348 £1500 increase in fair value by

RMB28,689,000
L& E0% BB RA R BEEMA
R#286890007T

10% decrease in ratio would result in
decrease in fair value by

RMB28,302,000
LEETRIO% S EHR AR BERDA
R#028,3020007T
EV/S Ratio from 058 to 336 10% increase in ratio would resultin
EEE/HEELERS increase in fair value by
£336 RMB21,237,000

L EF10% S EH AR BEZMA
R 21237,000 7T

10% decrease in ratio would result in
decrease in fair value by
RMB21128,000

LEETREI0%EEB AR BERD A
R#¥ 21128000 7T
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42. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIRVALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Valuation technique

1B

Significant
unobservable input
EXTAHEBARE

42. SR TRMAREENE @)

(B) ERTAMDAEE )

Sensitivity of
fair value to the input
AABEHBAHBNBRE

Funds at FVTPL
BARBEFABRNES

Equity instruments at FVTPL
BAREER AR
BRATA

Net fund value approach
E2HEZE

Recent transactions approach
RAR 5%

Market approach
Mm%

P/E Ratio from 23.72 to 5741
MRBEHIZT2ELT4

Net asset values of the
funds,determined with
reference to observable
(quoted) prices of underlying
investment portfolio

HeMEERFE(K2ZHE
BABEEHTHZREETE)

Recent transaction prices
RAR 5B

EV/EBIT Ratio 0f 1023
1023 2 (R EME/ TR EBA
B R

10% increase in ratio would resultin
increase in fair value by

RMB5,153,000
bR EFAI0% GBS BEENA
R#5153,0007T

10% decrease in ratio would result in
decrease in fair value by
RMB5,153,000

LR TR0 BB AR EBRD A
R#¥5153,0007C

N/A
NEH

N/A
TER

10% increase in ratio would resultin
increase in fair value by

RMB1750,000
HE EFI0% B EH AR BEZIMA
R#17500007T

10% decrease in ratio would result in
decrease in fair value by

RMB1740,000
LR TERI10% S EH AR BEBRDA
R#517400007T
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42. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

42. £Ft

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIRVALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Significant
unobservable input
EXTAHEBAHE

Valuation technique

fE1ER

TRMAREEE (&)

(B) ERMITANDABE @

Sensitivity of
fair value to the input
AABEHBAHBNHRE

Debt instruments at FVTPL
BARBHEFABREN
BETLA

P/S Ratio from 813 to 1164
MEEEHSIZEN64

P/E Ratio of 5125
5125 2 &%

Recent transactions approach
AR 5%

Recent transaction prices
B A ERE

The discount far lack of marketability represents the
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the

10% increase in ratio would resultin
increase in fair value by
RMB7,213,000

HE EFI0% BB R BELMA
R¥72130007T

10% decrease in ratio would resultin
decrease in fair value by

RMB7,213,000
E R TRR10% B EH AR BERDA
R#72130007T

10% increase in ratio would resultin
increase in fair value by

RMBI0,057,000
L EF10% S EH AR BEZMA
R #510,057000 T

10% decrease in ratio would result in
decrease in fair value by
RMBI0,057,000

HETRIO% S EHRAAEBERD A
R#10,0570007C

N/A
i

RZ TSR E TR AR B P
BEMS2REERRECERZE
EEERITESHE -

Group that market participants would take into account
when pricing the investments,

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
hEHEEEERARDA

i220}




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. £REGEEBERBR

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise borrowings
and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade and other receivables and trade and other payables,
which arise directly from its operations,

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to a
minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group enters into
derivative transactions, including the commodity contracts to
manage the commadity price risks arising from the Group's
operations. The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below,

INTEREST RATE RISK

In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group is
subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed
interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value interest
rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax by assuming the floating
rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole vear.

AEBENTZESRIABEERARRS
FIEHER - ZEeMTANTIERRET
RARENEEERES - $Elﬁﬁﬁ
MERGERELNTREREERAE
Bl & 5 e W ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁ% Eﬂ%%
& A5 R TR B L At B A5 R

AEEeMIAELANTIERRAMEE
BoNERR FEERR RBESEAR
KB AN B A o B0 AR SR B AT AR R 3%
F R 4 R AR K - AN EEAE A
ERTETAREMTEAES 2 -
AEEFVZENMETARS (BRERMRA
#) NEBRAKEZERELNPRER
R EFSEERALREZFAREE
HIBRER - 2B AT e

EY 1

FEANERTABERALSERKREERE

I & [ ﬁﬁ.iﬂwlﬂﬂ‘%@ﬁ$§§@
HERALBEFRER

TRETERNBEHRRDREENTD
MEERRE2FNARER BEMBEHM
BERFIEOBERT  AEBERBAGR
AT R]BEH) A R BB GURTE o

Increase/
(decrease)

Increase/
(decrease)

in basis in profit
points before tax

HAEm R Al & F
#in,Cmd) i ORd)
RMB’'000

AR% T

Year ended 31 December 2024 HE2024F 2 AIBILEE 50 (69,394)
Year ended 31 December 2024 HE2024F 12 AR ILEE (50) 69,394
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 2 ABILFEE 50 (67,720)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE2023F 12 ABIEEE (50) 67,720
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. £REREEBFERBUIR (@)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK e L B
The Group's main businesses are located in China and most of AEENFEXBHURFTRE AT
the transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of the Group's RHEANANREHET - REBRBHEE
assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi, except for RBEBEUAREE 8 TH® RIRIT
certain cash and bank deposits, trade and bills receivables and TR -BEHRBEFELEBENERTABT
borrowings denominated in HK dollar and US dollar. The Group RETTEE AKEW B HEXBRRE
has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk. Pl
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRETNBERR  EEEMEHRR
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi FAERBERT  NEBRR SN E A
against the relevant currencies, with all other variables held REHABAESENAEAE (HREE
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair MEERERN AL BEBEZ BB OB
value of monetary assets and loans). g e
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HKS/USS in profit
rate before tax
B/ ER BB AT
BE =& i Fl
EFH(TE) #Ehn (GRD)
RMB’'000
% AR%T T
2024
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBHLETRE 5 26,104
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ i AR ¥E 5 ETLFAE (5) (26,104)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MAREEETEE 5 (96,487)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ fid AR BT A (5) 96,487
2023
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBHETRE 5 9,599
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ i AR HETTHAE (5) (9,599)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ fig AR S LB (B 5 (14,805)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ i AR H BT HE (5) 14,805
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. 2REEEEEHERBEK (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk in
relation to its trade and bills receivables, contract assets, loan
receivables, other receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI and
cash and bank deposits.

The concession operating right of the Group represents sewage
treatment service concession financial receivables in respect of
Build-operate-transfer (‘BOT’) arrangements. Since the parties to
BOT arrangements are local government authorities in Thailand,
the Group considers the credit risk is low at the end of the
reporting period. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

In relation to the Group's financial service business, the Group has
a credit team which is responsible for the evaluation of customers'
credit ratings, financial background and repayment abilities. The
Group only provides credit to customers with creditworthiness
and collateral is narmally required. Except for the individual
customers which bear specific credit risk and whose balances
have been impaired, the risk of default in payment by these
customers is considered not significant.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk as the Group's
major customers are from or are related to the real estate
industry, but the Group has paolicies in place to ensure that sales
are made to purchasers with an appropriate financial strength
and appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recaver overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and bills receivables
and contract assets to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

EeEL

FERAREARSHFELIBITER A
TAFXEFPANBTEEMRZMBER
MER AKEMEEBNEERRELE
HRBFERER  GHNEE - BYRER -
H AL EWRIE - ROABEFAEMEE
W EB TAANR S MRITFREH -

AEENFHAEEREEHRE 2ER
Br((gdE 2ERBR]) RS
K ERIE AR M) & BRI MR IR - MR E HIK -
ENEE RERBRIZHNTNTGT BFE
B R RAKERSEERR
K o AN = B30 48 5 B BR A5 B8 15 A (AT K
Hm e

BRAKRBENERREEY ~AKEHEE
FEEKAERFHEFPNEENR MK
BERREEEN - AEEEREERIN
EPRHEEER—RARHKEAR KA
HEGERRABEGEHCRENENEP
Sh - B EFEREF N RERERSIL T
BEXe

HRASENTIEZEXPRAFEREHR
HENTE AEEAETERERRET
B EAKRETAERRABRAEER
BMBENRAIXNEEB DL &
FWETFEHEE TRAELMBERREF
VARELR SRERBRAE 1T B YR D B ERE 7% © 1t 5h -
AEEEHENZTRMERNE S REFAR
SEMAHNEEMN AT YD SRR - LERL
TRk ESBEELRANBERE K&
BONEERRRAEZARIUFRER
B BBEBAREERBETHIBER

Annual Report 2024
e (223




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024412 A 31 H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. 2REEEEEHERBEK (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK (Continued)

For other receivables, an impairment analysis is performed by
management at the end of each reporting period by considering
historical settlement records, past experience and future
economic conditions. The directors of the Company believe that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's outstanding
balance of other receivables,

The Group's debt instruments at FVTOCI comprised solely of
quoted bonds that are graded in the top investment category and
therefore, are considered to be low credit risk investments.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of financial assets and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is
mainly based on the invoice date unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at the end of each reporting period. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

224 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

43. SRIEEEEHIERBUER (&)

EE R (#)
B B B & R B B 3 ()

2024
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12@AES
FEESE BEFENRAGERE
Simplified

Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-ER ERE E=REE A% @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR¥TR AR¥TT AR%TR AR%T:
Loan receivables FEUUAE 3K 147,335 385,001 - - 532,426
Contract assets’ BREE = - - 452,623 452,623
Trade and bills receivables? BHENGENEE - - - 6,698,879 6,698,879
147,335 385,001 = 7,151,502 7,683,928

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 8 5
EEBE BEFENRHEEER
Simplified
Stage Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F—FEE EFERER E Bl A%E
RMB000 RMB000 RMB0QO RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Loan receivables FEUAE 3K 17,866 52001 - - 701777
Contract assets’ BHEE" - - - 388251 388,251
Trade and bills receivables® BHRWNFBRER" - - - 6,891444 6,891444
171,866 529,91 - 7279695 7981472
# For contract assets and trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies # RAEBRABBH LA EHERENSHEEMN

the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in notes 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

BHRWFARREMN S - EREEHEENER
DRI BE AR A M SRR M FE24 ] 25 ©
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

43. SRIEGEE HIERBUE (@)

REE TR
AEBEBN#ERFRMNRE RS FEY

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and available funding through various sources of finances to meet
its commitments.

WEBITFRREREAERSES °

URENRTBARBERE REERER
SHMRNESRABIRERWT

The maturity profile of the Group’'s financial liabilities at the end of
each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Within
1year

1R
RMB’'000
ARET T

1to 2
years
1224
RMB’000

(0)V/-1¢
2years
2F B E
RMB’'000

ARBTRT AR®TR

Total

4ot
RMB’'000
ARET R

Trade and bills payables B RN FERER 8,685,107 - - 8,685,107

Financial liabilities included in -~ sF AH A& FRIB R
other payables and accruals EErrERMmEmAa’ 1,106,967 - - 1,106,967
Borrowings & 9,203,510 3,239,085 8,385,324 20,827,919
Lease liabilities HERE 88,410 76,563 403,394 568,367
Other long-term payables H fth & BAFE (< 5K IE = = 4,184 4,84
19,083,994 3,315,648 8,792,902 31,192,544

Within
1year

1A
RMB000
ARBFTT

Tt 2

years
1ZE24F
RMB'000

Qver

2 years
2F AL
RMB'000

ARETTT ARBTT

Total

st
RMB'000
ARBET T

Trade and bills payables B HRNFIERER 8,369,185 - - 8369185

Financial liabilities included in -~ & A E ftb fE A kI8 &
other payables and accruals ErrERMEma’ 1408929 - - 1408929
Borrowings & 1,342,424 2,332,506 6,880,237 20,555]67
Lease liabilities HE&AE 199219 184,853 1516827 1900899
Other long-term payables H fth = HAFE (S B - - 5472 5472
21319,757 2,617,359 8402536 32,239,652

P2 W R R A F

i226}

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024

2024412 A31H
43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. £REREEEEERBUER (@)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
EQUITY PRICE RISK B A B LB
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities R 7S (B 4% B e $B AR AN 48 UK F R B B B 5
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and BEZHMEZNRAEZESLALEBETK
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity BR - R2024F 12318 AEBEER
price risk arising from equity instruments at FVTPL and equity HEAABEAABROREATARZR
instruments at FVTOCI (note 19) as at 31 December 2024. The AEEFAHMEEREORATE (T
Group’s listed investments are listed on the PRC and Hong Kong 19) I BHRERR - AEER LHIRER
stock exchanges and are valued at quoted market prices at the FEREEZ SRS LT WRHREH
end of the reporting period. RIEFFwTEE -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% TRIREREBHMEESRSTE REW
change in the fair values of the equity instruments, with all other BT EBA BT BREBHRZEE
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on BitE RATLAZAABEESEHS% 2
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the BRE -BASITME HIRAAEBER
purpose of this analysis, for the equity instruments at FVTOCI, the AHMEPEHWARORATANTERRA
impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve. HRAREBERBEOHZE -
Carrying
amount Change
of equity in profit Changein
instruments before tax equity*
BRATHR BRBE AT
W ERTE B sk BReH”
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®BTR AR¥TR AR%®TR
2024
Equity securities listed in the PRC A E AR AR E % 30,000 1,500 -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong IR & LT IR ATE F 216,240 - 10,812
Unlisted equity securities at FE LT IRANE
fair value (BRAR(EEIE) 1,471,979 14,434 59,165
2023
Equity securities listed in the PRC R E ETRAFES 178,362 1,500 7418
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong = IR & LT IR A % 219,414 - 10,971
Unlisted equity securities at FE LT IRAGE 5
fair value (BRAREBEIE) 1302431 10,044 55078
i Excluding retained profits ! TRRIRE 5
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 43. £REGEEBERBEK (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern and to
maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders' value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
optimise the debt and equity balance, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or new debts or the redemption of existing
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitars capital using a net debt to equity ratio, which
is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes borrowings and
lease liabilities, less cash and bank deposits. Capital represents
the total equity.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a
healthy level in arder to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, without limitation,
reviewing future cash flow requirements and the ability to meet
debt repayment schedules when they fall due, maintaining a
reasonable level of available banking facilities and adjusting
investment plans and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that
the Group has a reasonable level of capital to support its business.
The net debt to equity ratio, at the end of the reporting periods are
as follows:

EXRER
AEEEAEENTIERRAREARE
MENKBEERLENREN  URERA
BENEARLESREER  AEERRD
BERAZERS -

AEERBEERNES EELEARRE
REHAE BELCEBREDESR K
SETHEINTRROBRE - [KRER
BIEAR - BITH RS ELERRAER
FRC-EEEANER BRRIBRIE

= °

AREBMAEH FEM B RETEAN
AL RBEHFERAER - B FEE
RERLBAEEERREMRITER &
ARTyIE AR -

AEBENRBERERERFEE RS X
EREKT  AFEHER - REB RN
MEZREEEBAIRNEHAARKRER
EFRKERNERINRSETEHEES
BEE  REATARITREESEKRTR
HEREFELBMETE (MFE) - U
RAEEHRASTEKFHNEARAIFEER -
RBERRNERFREEELENT

2024 2023

RMB’000 RMB0OO

ARBTRT  AREBTT

Borrowings R 19,228,819 10,344,586
Lease liabilities HEBE 416,886 1,351,051
Less: Cash and bank deposits A Be MRITER (6,642,551) (6,552,084)
Net debt B8 13,003,154 14142,653
Total equity iR 24,415,375 24,311,078
Net debt to equity ratio B FEE R X 53% 58%
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 44. FERERERMEE
CASHFLOWS

(A) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS A) EEXRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FRN BEERHNE  XEEEH
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB160,883,000 and BEENEBERENIFRSE M R
RMB160,883,000 (2023: RMB934,244,000 and A AR160,883000m K AR
RMBO34,244,000) respectively, in respect of lease 160,883,000 7T (2023%F : AR
arrangements. 934,244,000 7t & A R # 934,244,000

JT) °

(B) RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING (B) MEEBELNAEBYHK
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The tables below detail changes in the Group's liabilities TRAMANEBRETHAEENE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and EEH (BREENIRTED) - &
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities BEHMEFZBERREREERN
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will IR AEEGEHEERERANDE
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash REMELZBDRERENEE -

flows as cash flows from financing activities,

Non-cash changes

FRLEH
Amortisation
of borrowing Foreign
arrangement exchange Other
1January Cashflow  Newleases fee  movement changes 31December
BRZH
HEE ERg 12A31R
Borrowings B3 19,344,586 (224,855) - 28,041 148,203 (6756) 19,228,819
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,351,051 (19,799) 160,883 - 2273 (977,522) 416,886
Interest payables ERFIE 34,564 (997,982) - - - 996,458 33,040
Dividends payable to ERARE
ownersofthe Company BB ARE - (560,751) - - - 560,751 -
Dividends payable to FERT 24
non-controlling interests  #Ez MR & - (n,031) - - - 1,031 -
Payables for acquisition of ~ YtBE JEi% 1 2%
non-controlling interests BT EUE - (19,678) - - - 19,678 -
Total liabllities from BAEDH
financing activities BEEE 20,730,201 (1,934,096) 160,883 28,041 150,476 543240 19,678,745
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44. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 44. R RERME (@
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(B) RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING (B) MEEEBELMNAEBEYHER®
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Borrowings B 20,035682 (871492) - 37128 151508 (8240) 19,344586
Lease liabllities HERE 578406 (193280) 934244 - 5500 26161 1351051
Interest payables [ER7IE 13449 (1100,889) - - - 1122004 34564
Dividends payable to ERARE
ownersofthe Company BB ARE - (831903) - - - 831903 -
Dividends payable to FER 2
non-controlling interests &R 8 - (2547) - - - 2541 -
Payables for acquisition of ~ YtiE JEH g 25
non-controling interests &3R8 - [7.041) - - - 7041 -
Total liabilities from HEEHH
financing activities BEESE 20627537 (3030,076) 034244 37128 157,028 2,004,340 20,730,201
(C) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES (C) HERSRLALTE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the BREEHFEREMERNEERESN
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: HAEZENT
2024
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR  ARBTET
Within operating activities KEEENA 54,861 37472
Within investing activities KEZHN 108,102 433313
Within financing activities MEERHA 119,799 103,280
282,762 664,065
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

45. X EMEATFIE
ARRAEBMBARNFEENT -

Place of Issued
incorporation/
registrationand

ordinary share/

registered
business share capital
HEMRL/ ERE

eSS BRATBER/ERRE

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

FRAEGRRLE

Direct Indirect

B 3

Principal activity

IRRE

Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000000 - 100%  Investment holding and sale of building
materials and home improvement
products

FEEEERAT 30 130000007T REBRRHERNERER

Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial Co, Ltd. ¢! the PRC HK$2,900,000000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings

ERBEMREXERLNAY il 29000000007 HEREERHEBREN

Heshan Lesso Industrial Development Co, Ltd. ™ the PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings

BLBZEXERARLAC HE 2699300007 HERBERHEBREN

Lesso Technology Development (Wuhan) Co, Ltd. the PRC HK$11,000000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipefittings

BEREER (RE)ARAFY il 10000007 HERBERHEEREN

Lesso Technology Development (Guiyang) Co, Ltd. ™ the PRC HK$115000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings

BENRER(ER)ERARY il 15000000 T HEREERHEBREN

Nanjing Lesso Technology Industrial Co, Ltd. "™ the PRC 1JS$26,750,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings

ARBENRERERAR" HE 268750000% 7 HERBERHEBREN

Lesso Municipal Pipe (Hebei) Co, Ltd. the PRC US$32790,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipefittings

BETREE (VL) ERARY i 32790000% T HERHEBHERREN

Henan Lesso Industrial Co, Ltd. the PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings

B EERERARC HE AR#2000000007 HEREERHEBREN

Hainan Lesso Technology Industrial Co, Ltd. @ the PRC RMBI50,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings

ERBENRERERARTC i ARH1500000007C HERBERHEBREN

Yunnan Lesso Technology Development Co, Ltd. the PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipefittings

EEROHBRERARLARC i AR$2000000007 HERHEBHERREN

Hunan Lesso Technology Industrial Co, Ltd. " the PRC RMBI00,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of plastic pipes
and pipe fittings

AR ENRERERARC HE AR#100000,0007T HEREERHEBREN

Guangdong Shunde Lesso Management Co, Ltd. the PRC RMBB95,918,000 - 100%  Propertyinvestment

ERIBEERNEFERARAFC PE AR#6950180007C ES &
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. T EMBATIMIFEE (@)
(Continued)
Percentage of
Place of Issued equity attributable
incorporation/ ordinary share/ to the Company
registration and registered AAREEERLE
business share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activity
FMRL/ ERR
EEnY BRTEER/ERRE B TEEHR
Lesso Mall Development (Long Island), Inc. © the United States 1US$104,000,000 - 100%  Propertyinvestment
BHANERE (RE)ARAFC x5 104000000 %7 ES &
Lesso Mall Development (Jurupa Valley) Limited @ the United States US$1000 - 100%  Propertyinvestment
FHBHER(RENA)ARAR *H 1000% 7T nERE
Guangdong Century Xinghui Creative Park the PRC RMBI89,654000 - 100%  Property development
Technology Co, Ltd™®
ERELEREBEMRERAAC ik AR%1896540007C NELR
PT Samanea Tangerang Development © Republic of Indonesia IDR40,000,000000 - 100%  Propertyinvestment
PT Samanea Tangerang Development © EEREEAME 400000000001/ /& nERE
@) Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of the PRC (a)  REFEEEEMA—MIEBEELE
(b) Registered as an equity joint venture under the laws of the PRC (b) REPEEEEMAE—HEERLE
(©) Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of the PRC () REPEEZFMA—HBRAR
(d) Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of the United States (d) REEBREZEMA—HBRAR
) Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of Republic of ) BENEEADHMBEZAMA—MBERA
Indonesia Al
The above table lists the Company's subsidiaries which, in the EERA LXRAHEHINNOKRQFMNERA
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year HAFENKBEREAZENIBREE
or formed a substantial portion of the Group’s net assets. To give EEEFENEADD EFRRMFI
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, HMMEARNER  BEEEHEERB
result in particulars of excessive length. RITK -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the RIERR BEAANARTBMRAERNE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BHOT

46. EATMBRRER

2024 2023

RMB'000 RMB000
AR®TR | AKBTE

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries REBRRNERE 5,018,962 5025936
Other financial assets Hih & mEE 36,228 40,081
Total non-current assets EMBEELTE 5,055,190 5,066,017
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE

Other receivables H A 8 W SR IR 2,778,077 3,646,774
Amount due from subsidiaries JEUR B B A &) FRIE 2,864,541 1,209,758
Cash and bank deposits R& RIRITER 8,685 9176
Total current assets MENVE BT 5,651,303 4,865,708
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Other payables and accruals BB R ERTE A 175,285 230,237
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT I B A &) Z0E 203,356 142,537
Borrowings B 2,052,570 3,815,889
Total current liabilities mB B BERE 2,431,211 4188663
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFH 3,220,092 677,045
TOTALASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEZHBERABERS 8,275,282 5,743,062
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE

Borrowings B 450,001 -
Total non-current liabilities FmBBERTE 450,001 -
Net assets BEFH 7,825,281 5,743,062
EQUITY i

Share capital [N 135,344 135,344
Reserves (note) e (fIaE) 7,689,937 5607718
Total equity G E G 7,825,281 5,743,062
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBMRME

31 December 2024
2024912 B 318

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 46. A AT R R (@)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: PR3 -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARKFEHEHENT ¢

Shares
held for Exchange
Share  share award Fair value fluctuation Retained
premium scheme reserve reserve profits

R 40 S R =t &)
43 55 1B mERG AAEERE ERRSEE R & 5 A

0

As at1January 2023 202351 A18 1005618 (85440 (238418) (27.798) 1097555 3551517
Total comprehensive income W2 B K

for the year ikl - - (57,607) (4,700) 295041 2888104
Dividends recognised as RRAEEAD R

distributions to owners 8 - - - - (831903) (831903)
Asat 31 December 2023and  R2023F12 A 318 Kk

1January 2024 202451 R18 1,905,618 (85,440) (296,025) (32,498) 4,116,063 5,607,718
Total comprehensive income A2 EHEE

for the year FoE = = (4,657) 51,749 2,595,878 2,642,970
Dividends recognised as RRAERAD KL

distributions to owners iz & = = - - (560,751) (560,751)
As at 31 December 2024 12024412 A 318 1,905,618 (85,440) (300,682) 19,251 6151190 7,689,937

47. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 47. #LEEGSHMBERE

STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and RAEPBBRERNR2025F3A2HEESS
authorised for issue by the Board on 28 March 2025, BB AR E -
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FRREUEME

As at 31 December 2024
M2024F12 A 318

Detalls of the Group's investment properties at the end of the reporting  RIREHIR - KEBIREMEDFBOT ¢
period are as follows:

Site area/ Stage of
Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion
WREmE
ith B 5l HEEEE HAH 7€ B P BR
sq. ft.
FHER
79-99 St Hilliers Road, Australia 1B 266,874 Freehold Existing
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,
New South Wales
79-99 St Hilliers Road, M B 266,874 KA B"E
Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,
New South Wales
5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, Canada CB 138,982¢ Freehold Existing
Toronto, Ontario
5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, mEX CB 138,082" KAKRE RE

Toronto, Ontario

South of Longzhou West Road, PRC CL 1775496 Leasehold Under
East of Dengdong Road, development
Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan, Guangdong Province”

BERAHLTIEEEETHE h CL 1775496 HEXE RSB
EMAEEARETRERAIXA

West of Foshan-Kaiping highway, PRC CL 1665995 Leasehold Under
North of Longgao Road, development
Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan, Guangdong Province”

BEREFLTIEEEETHA B CL 1665995 HEXE BRP
BRI =R IAT ~ BEESBRIALL

Shennan Yango Building, West side of the PRC CB 44,922% Leasehold Existing
Interchange of Xinan Road and Chunfeng Road,

Luohu District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province”

& R R 2 W8 R 22 B M & L B A2 T R B CB 44,922* HEXxE BAE
ARRFEB N E

Yango Times Center, NoJ19 Tigiang Road, PRC CB 750487* Leasehold Existing
Liangging District, Nanning, Guangxi Province”
ERAEENRERBEEKION B CB 750487¢ HE¥% B"E

B B (R
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FERREMEBME

As at 31 December 2024
202412 A31H

Site area/
Location Type gross floor area
WEREE

1o B H5l RIEHEES
sq. ft.
FAR

Tangerang New City Estate, Indonesia CX 1,060,073
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Pasir Gadung,

Kecamatan Cikupa, Kabupaten Tangerang,

Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, EERfE CX 1,060,073
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Pasir Gadung,

Kecamatan Cikupa, Kabupaten Tangerang,

Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, Indonesia IL 107181
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Sindang Jaya,

Kecamatan Sindang Jaya,

Kabupaten Tangerang, Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, HERERD: IL 1071181
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Sindang Jaya,

Kecamatan Sindang Jaya,

Kabupaten Tangerang, Banten, Indonesia

Prey Rokar Village, Cambodia CX 5,519,034
Chhak Chheu Neang Commune,

Ang Snuol District,

Kandal Province, Cambodia

Prey Rokar Village, RIS CX 5,510,034
Chhak Chheu Neang Commune,

Ang Snuol District,

Kandal Province, Cambodia

Plot No 2,4, 8,9, Block 59 Myanmar CX 3,232,762
Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing,

Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon

PlotNo 2,4, 8,9, Block 59 k) CX 3232762
Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing,

Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon
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Lease term

HAM

Leasehold

HEX%

Leasehold

HEXxE

Freehold

KA

Leasehold

HEXE

Stage of
completion

52 B PR B

Under
development

BRP

Planning stage

(B

S
=

B B

Under
development

BRP

Under
development

BRT
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FRREMEBE

As at 31 December 2024
M2024F 12 A31RH

Site area/ Stage of

Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion
WEREE

1t 2 Y]l RBHEES HAH 5 PP BR
sq. ft.
FAR

Plot 6218674, Al Warsan First, Dubai United Arab CL 570,487 Freehold Under

Emirates development

Plot 6218674, Al Warsan First, Dubai B4 R & CL 570487 IKAFERE ERT

BERE
NWC Wineville Road and Bellegrave Avenue, us CX 4775918 Freehold  Planning stage
Jurupa Valley, Riverside County, California
NWC Wineville Road and Bellegrave Avenue, =3 CX 4775918 KAKERE BEIER

Jurupa Valley, Riverside County, California

1500 Old Country Road, us CB 723,731 Freehold Existing
Westbury, Nassau County,

Long Island, New York

1500 Old Country Road, EH CB 723,731 KAKERE BnE
Westbury, Nassau County,

Long Island, New York

Note: CL  Commercial land [EEE
Miz£: CX  Complexland iRA M
IL Industrial land TR
CB  Commercial building MEET
B Industrial building TEEF

# Represents gross floor area ERIEEEE
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GLOSSARY
o

‘Board"
=

BVI'
[RBHEARES]

‘China" or "PRC"
[
‘Code’
(=8Il

‘Company’ or “China Lesso”
[ARAR] e[ A B H 28 |

‘Current Ratio”
[mENL |

"EBITDA”
[BR SR Al & T

"FVTOCK
[BAfBEFARLB2EKSE]

"FVTPRL
[EREBE AR

‘Gearing Ratio”
[BEAEEX]

‘Group”
[A&EHE ]

‘Guangdong Liansu Machinery”

[ IR 2B 25 |
HK$'
[t

"Hong Kong' or "HK’
[HH]

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited

i238) EE Y ERERA

the board of directors of the Company

KRBEESR

the British Virgin Islands
REEBARES

the People’'s Republic of Ching, for the purpose of this report, excluding
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

i \RHAME - ABET S - WFREES RPIRAK

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1to the Listing
Rules
EAR RIS CI A B M R X E AT A

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
TEEBEREERER AT

the ratio of current assets to current liabilities
RBEERIRD R ENLE

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation
BRI BIE - I8 R AT E A

fair value through other comprehensive income
BARBEFAREMEZEKR

fair value through profit or loss
BASEEF ARG

the total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity
REBEBERAEER N DS AR BN

the Company and its subsidiaries
EN/NSTDS RG] PN

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co, Ltd.", a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules

ERBPHEIERRAR ERBELEREZERBNLR XAN
RAMBEEALT(FER EHRAD

Hong Kong doallar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BREZEEE® - BT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEFBRRITTHRER




GLOSSARY
Al 5K

‘Indonesia”
[ENEEras]

loT’
[ )

‘Listing Rules”
[ Em AR A

‘Model Code’

‘New Fortune”
[#TE 2]

‘Non-PVvC"
[FEPVC]

pE"
[PE]

"PP-R"
[PP-R]

"PVC’
[pPvC]

"Quick Ratio”
[REP L= |
‘RMB’
[AR# ]

‘SFO’

[%& 77 R BB 1)

‘Share(s)’
[ ]

‘Shareholder(s)’
[ &3 ]

"sgft”
[F7R]

Republic of Indonesia
EEfEermae A

Internet of things
) Bt 49

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B A E A E AR A

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
setout in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
FHRAIMSRCIFEE ETHEITAZERETIE R FHNIRLETA

New Fortune Star Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
New Fortune Star Limited » —FRIR EBEBRASTMA L2 A7)

including PE or PP-R, etc.
BIEPEXPPRE

polyethylene
RWE

polypropylene random
ERABBRRGE

polyvinyl chloride
BREL%

the ratio of current assets less inventories, properties from receivables
settlement and asset held for sale, to current liabilities

MBEERTE FAAEERESMESNMELRSELEEE  BHRAR
PREMLLE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

PREZEEERE - ARK

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
BREVIESNEEF L RAE D

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company
AR AR FAREE 00578 T8 B 1n

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
ZAYNSITSvESEE DN

square feet
FHRR
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GLOSSARY
Al 5

Xi Xi Development’

[PFXER]

"Yan Sing Fu Sing”

"Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ Bk 32 P | BEEBMARHMAERRAF

"tonne(s)’ a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms
[ 0 | ERXEEMEN  HFERI000AT

‘us' the United States of America

== ENEBERE

‘Us$’ US dollar, the lawful currency of US

El EHZEEE® - %

Xi Xi Development Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
FEZERAR AR —ERRBEAREEEMALZ AT

Yan Sing Fu Sing Real Estate (Holdings) Limited, a company ultimately and
wholly-owned by four connected persons of the Company, and therefore a
connected person of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules

[BE=EE] REEEMNESEBRAR  AORARAMEALTERLREEEEN
AR WEANRE FTRAUEE THOARRRZEEAL

%" per cent

[%] Elaysd

The English or Chinese translations in this report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

AN H) B B R (AR ) (2 AR o
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A AN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr.Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Dr. Song Keming

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr.Tao Zhigang
Mr. Cheng Dickson
Ms. Lu Jiandong
Dr.Hong Ruijiang
Ms. Lee Vanessa

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Dickson

Ms. Lu Jiandong

Ms. Lee Vanessa

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Ms. Lu Jiandong

Dr.Hong Ruijiang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Lu Jiandong (Chairlady)
Mr.Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Dr.Tao Zhigang

Dr.Hong Ruijiang

Ms. Lee Vanessa

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFEH

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Zuo Manlun
Mr. Kwan Chi Wal Samuel

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.0O. Box 39 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA

Liansu Industrial Estate
Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318
China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1A, 10th Floor, Tower 2
South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock code:
2128
SHARE INFORMATION
As at 31 December 2024
Share issued 3,102,418400 shares
Market capitalisation HK$10,765 million
Board lot size 1,000 shares
2024 DIVIDENDS
Proposed final dividend  HK20 cents per share

Dividend payout ratio 341%
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P.O. Box 39 Grand Pavilion
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFEH

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
28 March 2025

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

— for determining the entitlement to attend, speak and vote at
annual general meeting from 168 May 2025 to 20 May 2025 (both
datesinclusive)

—  for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend from 18
June 2025 to 20 June 2025 (both dates inclusive)

2025 annual general meeting:
20 May 2025

Payment of 2024 proposed final dividend*:
on or around 9 July 2025

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.0. Box 3M9 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 17121716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy & Mather

40th Floor, United Asia Finance Centre
333 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Emall: ir@lesso.com

+ Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2025 AGM.

M HE

FEHMAE
20253 H28H

TENREROGBEFERLTFE

— BTEERERBEFARSUTRE EBEFRIE
ERE K A2025%5 16 HE20254%5 A
208 (BHEEEMX)

—  HETWEEIKREREMNEIRB2025%6
B18EZE2025F6 8208 (BEEHEMK)

2025 FERMRBF KRG
202555 A20H

IR 2024 F 3R R BRI 8.
20257 AQ BT B F

R 153 38 5 B 5T 48 BE

Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.0. Box 3M9 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road
Grand Cayman, KY1-1205

Cayman Islands

Rz 1338 5 B 5T 53 B2

BEBPREBFZRLBRA
BE

BT 2R RERISIHR
AR
T7TRE2-T7BE

BEERHE

PREZENHE

BB RB3I33%
NS B0 4018

B ¢ (852) 2136 6185

fE & : (352) 3170 6606

FH : ir@lesso.com

+ WERFERRR 2020 FRFIRF ARG LHER - HAEE -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

ATEH

AUDITOR = RED

Ernst & Young K G FH R E T FT

Certified Public Accountants HEGEHRD

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor ERlIPNERS % 2 2l
Hong Kong E

SOLICITOR REm

Baker & McKenzie B  BREEMEBM
PRINCIPAL BANKERS EEERRT
Agricultural Bank of China Limited PEEFERITRDBR DA
Bank of China Limited FRERITIRID AR A A
Bank of Communications Co, Ltd. RBMITRPBR A A
China Development Bank B 5K B 25 4R 1T

DBS Bank Ltd. EREITERAT]

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited #ILEE RN ERITRODER A
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co, Ltd. PEBERERRITROERAA
Sumitormo Mitsui Banking Corporation ZHERIBIT

The Bank of East Asia, Limited RERITARAA

The Export-Import Bank of China B H A RTT

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited R DBELRITERAQA]
WEBSITE gant

http//www.lesso.com http//www.esso.com
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include,
without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The words "believe’, ‘intend’,
"expect’, "anticipate’, 'forecast’, "estimate’, “predict’, “is confident’, "has confidence” and similar
expressions are also intended to represent forward-looking statements. These forward-
looking statements are not historical facts. Rather, the forward-looking statements are based
on the current beliefs, assumptions, expectations, estimates and projections of the directors
and management of China Lesso about the businesses, industries and markets in which
China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are
subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the Company's
control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could differ materially from
those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only the
views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this report only. The
Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to
reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of this report.

70 B 22 B

RRERAAEER - L EAREBABEETRREBEAR
BN - mIAE] - (58] [F8st] - [TBH) - (T8 Tth
sl TR DRE]  TREREL] REMURE TR RAE
BH fIERAINTEEEEEREREEREEYE TER
MEEEAEENTISmARBIIELNBRES  BR HE -
AETRIERAELE  MAFFELEE -

I ERTIE AT IR AR EBRBEHRE - MESE AR
B THANRERAMEARNEYE AR ALRETFIFAR
BIATREIR I ELEEATER © UMt - EWRAE R AT AL B ATBE B B PR
AR BRKERANBEREERER

LA ERERRTEREEEREEERARERRER
FRFs e - B AT — BT R SATIE 28 - ARFAL
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EHRIBER

fORRER R EINE R BIARXARE



LESSOBXEE

Unit 1A, 10th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
FERNBRVDERBEMBE7SHAFPMNEZEI0ORIAZ

R (852) 2592 1388 \ MIX

(852) 2592 1385 o retonibie tovoety

L www.lesso.com iy FSC® C116866
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